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Appreciation & Acknowledgement

We are very grateful to have unwavering 
support of all our stakeholders including our 
shareholders, business associates, financiers, 
government agencies and regulatory authorities, 
throughout our exciting journey of growth and 
expansion. We look forward to your continued 
support in the many years to come.

On behalf of the Board, I would like to express the 
Board’s sincere gratitude to our longest serving 
Independent Director, Tuan Haji Mohamad Faiz 
bin Abdul Hamid, who had opted to retire in 
2016, after serving the Board since its listing in 
1993. Tuan Haji was also the Chairman of our 
Audit Committee and member of Nomination 
and Remuneration Committees. His experience, 
wisdom and selfless guidance and support 
rendered over the years of our public listed 
history have been invaluable to the success of the 
Group. Thank you, Tuan Haji and we wish you all 
the best in your future undertakings. 

I would also like to take this opportunity to welcome 
our new Independent Director, Puan Noor Alina 
binti Mohamad Faiz to the Board. Puan Alina is a 
lawyer by profession and she is the first female 
director in the history of Press Metal Berhad.

During my 22 years of service as the Chairman of 
the Board, I have witnessed and appreciate very 
much the vision, foresight, hard work and 
perseverance of my fellow directors, the 
management team as well as members of staff, 
which have succeeded in taking the Group to its 
commendable and leading position today. Well 
done and thank you.

Dato’ Wira (Dr.) Megat Abdul Rahman 
bin Megat Ahmad
Chairman
April 2017

The Memorable 2016

The year 2016 was quite a memorable year for 
Press Metal Group. 

The Group celebrated its 30th anniversary in May 
2016, a very significant milestone in its history. 
Starting then as Press Metal Aluminium Industries 
Sdn Bhd as a small extrusion company in Selangor, it 
changed to its current name with its listing on the 
Second Board of the then Kuala Lumpur Stock 
Exchange. Thereafter, it took an ambitious step 
venturing into China quadrupling its extrusion 
capacity and then building its own aluminium 
smelters in Sarawak -- Press Metal has indeed come 
a long way to becoming a globally integrated 
aluminium corporation today. With the completion 
of the Samalaju Phase 2 smelter in Sarawak, Press 
Metal owned not only the largest smelting capacity 
in South East Asia, but also one of the largest 
smelters in a single location in the world. 

For financial year 2016, the Group achieved a 
record-high Revenue of RM6.65 billion. This was 
mainly contributed by increased production 
output, improvement of aluminium prices as well 
as the strengthening of the US Dollar against the 
Ringgit Malaysia. It is an impressive 53.88% jump 
from that of RM4.32 billion in 2015. 
Correspondingly, Profit Before Tax (PBT) of the 
Group increased by 190.91%, from RM231.9 
million in a financial year 2015 to RM674.8 million.

As we continue to strengthen our position in the 
aluminium industry, our shareholders are being 
rewarded for their continuous support through 
generous dividend payouts, share split, bonus 
issue and share price appreciation. 

For financial year 2016, the Group declared and 
paid a total dividend of RM170.9 million or 8.5 
sen per ordinary share on average.

Chairman’s Statement

“On behalf of the 
Board of Directors, it 

gives me great pleasure to 
present to you the Annual 

Report and Audited Financial 
Statements of Press Metal 

Berhad and its Group for the 
financial year ended 

31 December 
2016”
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Management Discussion & Analysis 
by Group CEO

 Products, Markets and Manufacturing Bases

 Press Metal as an Aluminium Extruder

 Press Metal has a total of 160,000 tonnes 
annual extrusion capacity. The extrusion 
products cover a wide range of industries 
ranging from aluminium facade for building 
construction to aluminium components for 
solar panel, automotive, electrical and 
electronic appliances. 

 Press Metal has an extrusion plant in 
Peninsular Malaysia, located in Kapar, 
Selangor with an annual capacity of 40,000 
tonnes. Its products are basically distributed 
in Malaysia, Singapore, Australia and America.

 Press Metal’s second extrusion plant with an 
annual production capacity of 120,000 tonnes 
is located in Guangzhou, China. This plant is 
owned and operated by its wholly-owned 
subsidiary namely Press Metal International 
Limited (“PMI”). PMI supplies extrusion 
products mainly to the local market and 
European region.

1. INTRODUCTION

 Press Metal was incorporated in 1986 in 
Malaysia as a private limited company and 
was subsequently converted into a public 
company in 1993 and listed on the then Kuala 
Lumpur Stock Exchange.

 
 Press Metal started as an aluminium extruder 

some 30 years ago producing the 
semi-finished aluminium extruded products. 
In 2007, Press Metal decided to move 
upstream expanding into aluminium smelting 
producing primary aluminium materials such 
as ingots and billets.  

 Since then, Press Metal has increased its 
annual smelting capacity from 120,000 tonnes 
to 760,000 tonnes and is the largest 
aluminium smelter in Malaysia and South East 
Asia.“Press Metal believes the 

global aluminium industry is 
in a more balance situation than 

in the past couple of years. 
Demand is expected to grow at 

a healthy pace but supply 
growth will face more 

challenges”
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 For a more effective marketing network, Press Metal has set up the following subsidiaries to explore and expand its extrusion 
market share worldwide. These subsidiaries are headed by the respective country heads that have many years of working 
experience in the aluminium industry: - 

Subsidiaries Target Customers and Market Segments

1. Press Metal UK Limited European region

2. Press Metal Aluminium (Australia) Pty. Ltd. Australia continent 

3. Press Metal North America Inc American region including Brazil and Mexico

 Press Metal as an Aluminium Smelter  

 Press Metal builds, owns and operates the first-ever aluminium smelting plant in Malaysia via its 80%-owned subsidiary, 
Press Metal Sarawak Sdn Bhd (“PMS”) which commenced operations in 2009 (Mukah Smelter). The Mukah smelter is 
located in Mukah, Sarawak and has  an annual production capacity of 120,000 tonnes. Its main product is aluminium 
billets, a value-added product casted from the molten produced by its aluminium electrolysis pots. PMS sells its product 
to the local extrusion manufacturers as well as to manufacturers in South East Asia region and to as far as Brazil and 
Mexico.

 Subsequently, Press Metal via its 80%-owned subsidiary, Press Metal Bintulu Sdn Bhd (“PMB”) set up its second smelting 
plant in Samalaju, Sarawak with an annual capacity of 640,000 tonnes. PMB’s main products are that of primary ingots 
and alloy ingots. Alloy ingot is another form of value-added product catering for the car wheel manufacturers.

 Corporate Statement 

 Excellence is the ultimate criteria at Press Metal. From our upstream and downstream products to the quality system and 
processes we installed in every plant, we strive to be excellent in all aspects. Our ultimate goal is the satisfaction of our 
customers in terms of product quality and timely delivery.  

 Corporate Objectives and Strategies

 Press Metal’s core-objective is to provide quality products for the global customers for a reasonable return for all of its 
stakeholders. Press Metal employs a simple strategy that is to diversify its product mix, producing value-added products 
for higher return and continually exploring new market segments both domestically and internationally.
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•	 High	Quality	Products

 Our primary aluminium ingot is that of Good Western standard which is registered with the London Metal 
Exchange (LME). We ensure each ingot produced by us does meet the stringent criteria set by LME and guarantee 
to meet the customers satisfaction.

•	 Value-added	Products

 Apart from the basic ingot, Press Metal has been focusing on producing more value-added products to generate 
higher return such as billets, alloy ingots and aluminium rods.

2.	 OVERVIEW	OF	BUSINESS	ENVIRONMENT

 Global Aluminium Trade

 Aluminium is a remarkable material due to its light weight and corrosion resistivity. Aluminium is widely used in 
packaging, consumer durables, aerospace industry and building construction such as building formworks and facade. 

 Today, aluminium is being used to construct vehicle replacing steel, to reduce the vehicle weight and improve the fuel 
consumption. Further, there is increasing trend where aluminium is used to replace copper in the electric cables industry. 

 

3.	 FINANCIAL	REVIEW
 
	 Revenue

 Press Metal Group recorded a substantial increase in revenue for the financial year ended 31 December 2016 as 
compared to the previous financial year. Revenue increased by RM2.33 billion or 53.88% from RM4.32 billion to RM6.65 
billion. 

 Substantial increase in the revenue was mainly contributed by the completion of production ramp-up of its Samalaju 
Phase 2 smelter in May 2016 which had doubled its production capacity from 320,000 to 640,000 tonnes per annum. 
Higher revenue also attributable by its Samalaju Phase 1 smelter which resumed operations after the fire incident in May 
2015. 

 Manufacturing costs

 The Group’s manufacturing costs (cost of sales) for the year increased from RM3.58 billion to RM5.59 billion i.e., increased 
by RM2.01 billion or 55.98%. Increase in the cost of sales was in tandem with the increase in the revenue. 
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	 Expenses

 Other operating expenses which include the distribution, administrative and other expenses decreased by RM175.54 
million or 28.87%. The decrease was mainly due to the lower foreign exchange realised loss during the year amounted to 
RM7.00 million as compared to RM239.55 million in 2015. Higher foreign exchange realised loss in 2015 was attributable 
to the weakening of Ringgit Malaysia/ US Dollar exchange rate. 

	 Finance	Costs
 
 Finance costs increased by RM62.57 million or 64.03% from RM97.73 million to RM160.30 million. Increase in finance 

costs was primarily due to the financing costs associated with the Samalaju Phase 2 smelter project which ceased to be 
capitalised following its completion of production ramp-up in May 2016.

 
	 Taxation

 Taxation remained almost the same as compared to last year despite the substantial increase in the pre-tax profit. This 
was mainly due to the 15-year pioneer status enjoyed by its subsidiary, PMB which operates the Samalaju smelting plants. 

	 Profit	Attributable	to	Equity	Holders	of	the	Company

 The profit after tax and non-controlling interest increased from RM132.35 million to RM483.57 million, in tandem with 
the higher revenue generated.

 Liquidity	and	Capital	Resources
 
 Press Metal Group’s cash position improved from RM305.12 million as at 31 December 2015 to RM377.68 million as at 

31 December 2016. Net cash generated from operating activities was RM936.40 million of which RM424.75 million was 
used for Samalaju Phase 2 capital expenditure, RM242.35 million was repaid for bank borrowings and RM154.71 million 
for dividend payout to its shareholders and to non-controlling interests of a subsidiary.

 
 Gearing

 The Group’s gearing reduced from 1.3 to 1.1 during the year, mainly contributed by the increase in its shareholders’ net 
worth and reduction in its borrowings due to loan repayments.    
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 Dividend

 Press Metal Berhad has declared the following interim single-tier dividends for the financial year ended 31 December 
2016:-

Dividends Sen	per	share

1st interim 2016 3.0

2nd interim 2016 3.0

3rd interim 2016 1.0

4th interim 2016 1.5

Total 8.5
 

 
4.	 OUTLOOK	OF	FUTURE	PROSPECTS

 For 2017, International Monetary Fund projected global growth of about 3.7% as compared to 3.4% projected in 2016. 
The outlook for advanced economies has improved for 2017 as a result of stronger activity in the second half of 2016 
with the fiscal stimulus in the United States. Growth prospects for emerging and developing markets are projected to be 
slightly softened due to the tightening of financial conditions especially in India, Brazil and Mexico.

 However, in view of the overall improved sentiment, commodities prices are expected to increase over the year in 2017.

 With the strong infrastructure demand and real estate investment in China and the expectation of fiscal easing in the 
United States, prices for base metal including aluminium are expected to be strengthened. Since the beginning of the 
year, aluminium price has increased from about USD1,700 to USD1,950 per tonne.   

 The market anticipates that the price may trade at the current level as supply and demand are in a very tight balance. 
In addition, the Chinese government has been very concerned of the environment pollution lately and has ordered 
industries such as aluminium to reduce its production.

 Press Metal believes the global aluminium industry is in a more balance situation than in the past couple of years. Demand 
is expected to grow at a healthy pace but supply growth will face more challenges. As such, the Board and management 
is cautiously optimistic that for this fiscal year, the Group should perform better with the benefit of full production from 
our three smelter lines of 760,000 tonnes capacity and higher value-added products output.
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Group Operation Structure

UPSTREAM (SMELTING)
Press Metal Bintulu Sdn. Bhd.
Press Metal Sarawak Sdn. Bhd.

DOWNSTREAM (EXTRUSION)
Press Metal Berhad
Press Metal International Limited (China)
Press Metal International Technology Ltd. (China)

DISTRIBUTION AND TRADING
Press Metal UK Limited
Press Metal Aluminium (Australia) Pty. Ltd.
Press Metal North America Inc.

PROJECT
Angkasa Jasa Sdn. Bhd.
PMB Development Sdn. Bhd.
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Board of Directors

Independent Non-Executive Chairman

Executive Vice Chairman

Group Chief Executive Officer

Executive Director

Executive Director

Executive Director 

Senior Independent Non-Executive Director

Independent Non-Executive Director 

Independent Non-Executive Director
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Company Secretaries
 (MAICSA 7015852)

 (MAICSA 7054787)   

Share Registrar
Tricor Investor & Issuing House Services Sdn Bhd
Unit 32-01, Level 32, Tower A
Vertical Business Suite
Avenue 3, Bangsar South
No. 8, Jalan Kerinchi
59200 Kuala Lumpur
Wilayah Persekutuan, Malaysia
Tel : +603 – 2783 9299
Fax : +603 – 2783 9222

Corporate Office
Suite 61 & 62, Setia Avenue 
No. 2, Jalan Setia Prima S U13/S
Setia Alam Seksyen U13
40170 Shah Alam
Selangor Darul Ehsan, Malaysia
Tel : +603 – 3362 2188
Fax : +603 – 3362 2000
Website : www.pressmetal.com 

Registered Office
Lot 6.05, Level 6, KPMG Tower
8 First Avenue, Bandar Utama
47800 Petaling Jaya
Selangor Darul Ehsan, Malaysia
Tel : +603 - 7720 1188
Fax : +603 - 7720 1111

Principal Bankers  
Alliance Bank Malaysia Berhad
AmBank (M) Berhad
Export-Import Bank of Malaysia Berhad
Malayan Banking Berhad
Standard Chartered Bank Malaysia Berhad 
Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation Malaysia Berhad

Auditors
KPMG PLT
Firm No. LLP0010081-LCA & AF 0758
(Chartered Accountants)
Level 10, KPMG Tower
8 First Avenue, Bandar Utama
47800 Petaling Jaya
Selangor Darul Ehsan, Malaysia

Stock Exchange Listing 
Main Market of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad









Dato’ Wira (Dr.) Megat Abdul Rahman was appointed 
as the Non-Independent Non-Executive Director of the 
Company on 25 May 1995 and elected as Chairman on 
the same day. On 29 May 2007, he was re-designated 
as the Independent Non-Executive Chairman of the 
Board. He is also the Chairman of the Remuneration 
and Nomination Committees. He attended all the four 
(4) Board meetings held during the financial year. 

Dato’ Wira (Dr.) Megat Abdul Rahman graduated with 
a Bachelor of Commerce Degree from University of 
Melbourne, Australia. He is a fellow of the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants in Australia, a life member and 
past president of the Malaysian Institute of Certified 
Public Accountants, as well as a member of the 
Malaysian Institute of Accountants. He had served as 
Executive Director in Kumpulan Guthrie Berhad from 
1983 to 1994, and was a partner/managing partner of 
KPMG Desa Megat & Co. from 1973 to 1983.  He had 
served as a Director of Lembaga Letrik Negara/Tenaga 
Nasional Berhad from 1977 to 2000 and sat on the 
Board of Universiti Kebangsaan Malaysia from 1985 to 
2014. Currently, he sits on the Board of Boustead 
Holdings Berhad and Yayasan Tenaga Nasional.

Dato’ Wira (Dr.) Megat Abdul Rahman has no conflict of 
interest with the Group, and has no family relationship 
with any other Director and/or major shareholder of the 
Group. He has not been convicted of any offence (other 
than traffic offence, if any) within the past five (5) years.

Mr. Koon Poh Ming has been a Director of the 
Company since inception on 13 May 1986. He is 
also a member of the Remuneration Committee. 
He attended all the four (4) Board meetings held 
during the financial year.

After graduating with a Degree in Civil 
Engineering from the University of Wales in 
United Kingdom, he started his career with an 
international consulting engineering firm based 
in Kuala Lumpur. He is currently a professional 
engineer registered with the Board of Engineers 
and The Institution of Engineers, Malaysia.

While in Press Metal Berhad, Mr. Koon Poh Ming 
has been actively involved in the management 
and business development of the Company. 
Currently, he also holds the position of Chief 
Executive Officer of PMB Technology Berhad.

He is the brother to Dato’ Koon Poh Keong, Koon 
Poh Kong, Koon Poh Weng and Dato’ Koon Poh 
Tat. He has not been convicted of any offence 
(other than traffic offence, if any) within the past 
five (5) years.

Dato’ Wira (Dr.) Megat 
Abdul Rahman Bin 
Megat Ahmad DGMK, DSDK

Independent Non-
Executive Chairman
Malaysian, Male
78 years of age

Koon Poh Ming 
Executive Vice 
Chairman
Malaysian, Male
61 years of age
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Dato’ Koon Poh Keong is one of the founding 
members of the Company and has been the 
Group Chief Executive Officer since the 
Company’s listing on Bursa Malaysia Securities 
Berhad in 1993. He attended all the four (4) Board 
meetings held during the financial year.

Dato’ Koon Poh Keong graduated with a Bachelor 
of Science Degree in Electrical Engineering from 
The University of Oklahoma, United States of 
America, in 1986. He has more than 30 years of 
experience in the aluminium industry. Currently, 
he also acts as the Executive Chairman of PMB 
Technology Berhad.

He is the brother to Koon Poh Ming, Koon Poh 
Kong, Koon Poh Weng and Dato’ Koon Poh Tat. He 
has not been convicted of any offence (other than 
traffic offence, if any) within the past five (5) years.

Dato’ Koon Poh Tat has been appointed as the 
Executive Director of the Company since 7 June 
1999. He attended all the four (4) Board meetings 
held during the financial year. 

Dato’ Koon Poh Tat is a co-founder of Press Metal 
Berhad and has been actively involved in the 
Company’s operations including forming up new 
business outlets both domestic and overseas to 
enlarge the Company’s network and market share. 
His hard work and dedication has led the 
Company to be the pioneer in the aluminium 
industry. Currently, he also acts as the Executive 
Director of PMB Technology Berhad. 

He is the brother to Koon Poh Ming, Dato’ Koon 
Poh Keong, Koon Poh Kong and Koon Poh Weng. 
He has not been convicted of any offence (other 
than traffic offence, if any) within the past five (5) 
years.

Dato’ Koon Poh Tat 
Executive Director
Malaysian, Male
58 years of age

Dato’ Koon Poh Keong 
Group Chief 
Executive Officer
Malaysian, Male
56 years of age

Profile of Directors
Cont’d



27Annual Report ’16

Mr. Koon Poh Weng has been appointed as the 
Executive Director of the Company since 13 May 
1986. He attended three (3) out of four (4) Board 
meetings held during the financial year. 

Being a key founder of the Company, Mr. Koon 
Poh Weng continually strives on the changing 
and creative ideas to meet today’s complex and 
advanced technical skills to all aspects of 
aluminium and glazing industry.

Mr. Koon Poh Weng has also widely involved 
himself in the management of major projects 
both locally and overseas. He has been 
responsible for the design, engineering and 
development of cost-effective, innovative and 
versatile system solutions and in producing 
satisfactory results on large variety of projects 
ranging from commercial buildings, government 
complexes to prominent hotels. He also acts as 
the Executive Director of PMB Technology 
Berhad and Managing Director of Angkasa Jasa 
Sdn Bhd, a company within the Group involved in 
contracting and fabrication of aluminium and 
glazing works, as well as stainless steel products.

He is the brother to Koon Poh Ming, Dato’ Koon 
Poh Keong, Koon Poh Kong and Dato’ Koon Poh 
Tat. He has not been convicted of any offence 
(other than traffic offence, if any) within the past 
five (5) years.

Koon Poh Kong
Executive Director
Malaysian, Male
64 years of age

Koon Poh Weng
Executive Director
Malaysian, Male
62 years of age

Mr. Koon Poh Kong was appointed as the 
Executive Director of the Company on 13 May 
1986. He attended all the four (4) Board meetings 
held during the financial year. 

As a key founder of the Company, his 
experiences include the management of major 
projects throughout the country. He has been 
responsible for all aspects of the management 
and for producing satisfactory results on large 
variety of projects ranging from government 
complexes to prominent hotels. Currently, he also 
acts as the Executive Director of Angkasa Jasa 
Sdn Bhd, a company within the Group involved in 
contracting and fabrication of aluminium and 
glazing works, as well as stainless steel products.

He is the brother to Koon Poh Ming, Dato’ Koon 
Poh Keong, Koon Poh Weng and Dato’ Koon Poh 
Tat. He has not been convicted of any offence 
(other than traffic offence, if any) within the past 
five (5) years.
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Tan Heng Kui
Senior Independent 
Non-Executive Director
Malaysian, Male,
60 years of age

Mr. Tan Heng Kui has been an Independent 
Non-Executive Director of the Company since 26 
December 2001 and re-designated as Senior 
Independent Non-Executive Director on 1 
September 2016. He is also a member of the 
Audit Committee and was appointed as a member 
of Remuneration Committee on 18 October 2016. 
He attended all the four (4) Board meetings held 
during the financial year.

Mr. Tan Heng Kui obtained his Bachelor of Science 
Honours in Civil Engineering from The University of 
Wales, United Kingdom. He was a Vice President for 
The Institution of Engineers, Malaysia from 2000 to 
2004, and was a member of the Professional Practice 
Committee, Board of Engineers Malaysia. He set up 
his own consulting firm, Perunding Pertama 
Consulting Engineers in 1988. He is also the 
Executive Director of Kumpulan IKRAM (Sabah) Sdn. 
Bhd. since 1997 and sits in the Board of Prostaco 
Berhad as Non-Independent Non-Executive Director 
since 10 December 2012. 

He was awarded the title of Honorary Fellow of the 
Asian Federation of Engineering Organisations in 
2015 for his contribution to the engineering industry.

He has no conflict of interest with the Group and 
has no family relationship with any Director and/or 
major shareholder of the Group. He has not been 
convicted of any offence (other than traffic 
offence, if any) within the past five (5) years.
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Loo Lean Hock
Independant Non- 
Executive Director
Malaysian, Male
58 years of age

Mr. Loo Lean Hock was appointed as an Independent 
Non-Executive Director of the Company on 14 
September 2001. He is also the Chairman of the 
Audit Committee and a member of the Nomination 
Committee. He attended all the four (4) Board 
meetings held during the financial year. 

Mr. Loo Lean Hock is a Chartered Accountant of the 
Malaysian Institute of Accountants; a practising 
member of Malaysian Institute of Certified Public 
Accountants; a Fellow of CPA Australia; a 
professional member of Institute of Internal 
Auditors Malaysia; and an associate member of 
Chartered Tax Institute of Malaysia and Malaysian 
Institute of Management. He obtained his Master of 
Business Administration from University of Bath, 
United Kingdom in 1992. He started his professional 
career in Coopers & Lybrand from 1980 to 1990. He 
joined Press Metal Berhad in 1990 as the Financial 
Controller. Thereafter, he joined The Crown Princess 
Kuala Lumpur (a hotel division of Asia Pacific Land 
Berhad) as the Financial Controller. He set up his 
own auditing firm, L.H. Loo & Co. in July 1993 as the 
sole practitioner. He is currently a Director of LH Loo 
Taxation Services Sdn. Bhd., Managing Director and 
Chief Executive Officer of LVIO Precision Sdn. Bhd. 
In addition, he also acts as the Independent 
Non-Executive Director of PMB Technology Berhad. 

He has no conflict of interest with the Group and 
has no family relationship with any Director and/or 
major shareholder of the Group. He has not been 
convicted of any offence (other than traffic offence, 
if any) within the past five (5) years.

Puan Noor Alina was appointed to the Board as an 
Independent Non-Executive Director on 18 
October 2016. She also serves as members of 
Audit and Nomination Committees of the 
Company. She attended one (1) Board meeting 
subsequent to her appointment to the Board 
during the financial year. 

She is a lawyer by profession and read law at the 
University of Leicester, United Kingdom. She is a 
member of the Middle Temple and was called to 
the Bar of England and Wales in 1998. After her 
return to Malaysia, she chambered with Messrs 
Lee, Perara & Tan and upon being called to the 
Malaysian Bar in 1999, she practised with the said 
firm until 2009. Between 2010 and 2015, she was 
the Group General Manager and subsequently, 
Head of Department of the legal and secretarial 
departments of Media Prima Berhad and Peremba 
(Malaysia) Sdn Bhd respectively. In 2016, she 
provided consultancy services for legal and 
secretarial matters for various companies before 
resuming practise in 2017 as the sole proprietor of 
the Chambers of Noor Alina Faiz. She also acts as 
the Independent Non-Executive Director of PMB 
Technology Berhad.

She has no conflict of interest with the Group and 
has no family relationship with any Director and/or 
major shareholder of the Group. She has not been 
convicted of any offence (other than traffic offence, 
if any) within the past five (5) years.

Noor Alina Binti 
Mohamad Faiz
Independent 
Non-Executive Director
Malaysian, Female
43 years of age
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Mr. David Tan joined Press Metal as the Head of Corporate Affairs in 2007. He holds a Master Degree 
in Business Administration from University of Georgia and a Bachelor of Science Degree (Banking & 
Finance) from University of Arkansas.

Mr. Tan started his career as corporate finance analyst and advisor both locally and overseas. Prior to 
joining Press Metal, he was the Corporate Affairs General Manager of a public listed company, overseeing 
various corporate developments and expansion. He is also an Executive Director of PMB Technology 
Berhad.

Mr. Loo Tai Choong joined Press Metal in 2001 and was promoted to the position of Group Financial 
Controller in 2002. He is a qualified Chartered Accountant and a member of the Malaysian Institute of 
Certified Public Accountants (MICPA).

Mr. Loo started his career as an auditor, involved in a wide range of audit and tax consultation, as well as 
corporate investigation works, specialised particularly in manufacturing, banking and insurance industries. 
Prior to joining Press Metal, he was the Finance Manager of a local banking group. 

 

Mr. Lim Heng Kam joined Press Metal in 2003 and was promoted as the Manufacturing Director of Press 
Metal International Ltd (“PMI”) in 2006. Mr. Lim was appointed as the Executive Director of PMI in 2012. He 
holds a Master in Science Degree in Manufacturing System Engineering from Warwick University. 

Prior to joining Press Metal, Mr. Lim was the Production Engineer of a local aluminium company.

Key Senior Management & Country Heads

(Profiles of the Executive Vice Chairman, Group Chief Executive Officer and Executive Directors are listed in pages 25 to 27)

CHINA
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Mr. Andrew David Brace joined Press Metal UK Limited as the Operations Director in 2004. He holds a 
Bachelor of Science (Hons) Degree from the University of Nottingham. 

Mr. Brace has more than 30 years of experience in the aluminium industry. Prior to joining Press Metal, he 
was the Sales Director of a world-renowned aluminium company. 

Mr. Paul Ingram joined Press Metal Aluminium (Australia) Pty Ltd as the Managing Director in 2014. He 
holds a High School Certificate from Saint Ignatius College Riverview.

Mr. Ingram has more than 20 years of experience in the aluminium industry. Prior to joining Press Metal, he 
was the owner and director of a long-established aluminium fabrication company in Australia.

Mr. Keith Burlingame joined Press Metal North America Inc. as a director in 2009. He holds a Bachelor of 
Science Degree in Economics from the University of Illinois. 

Mr. Burlingame has over 30 years of experience in the aluminium industry, specializing in the realm 
of marketing, including key account & sales team management, manufacturing operations as well as 
business planning and improvement.

Save as disclosed, the Key Senior Management members above have no family relationship with any director and/or major shareholder 
of Press Metal, have no conflict of interest with Press Metal, have no directorship in any public company & listed issuer and have not been 
convicted of any offences (other than traffic offences, if any) within the past five years.

UNITED KINGDOM

AUSTRALIA

NORTH AMERICA



STATEMENT



Our inaugural Sustainability Statement (the 
“Statement”) covers Press Metal Berhad and 
its two subsidiaries, i.e. Press Metal Bintulu 
Sdn. Bhd. (“PMB”) and Press Metal Sarawak 
Sdn. Bhd. (“PMS”) located in Malaysia, 
collectively referred to as “Press Metal” or the 
“Group”. The information disclosed in this 
Statement covers our smelting division, 
which contributes more than 80% of the 
Group’s total revenue. Our reporting period is 
from 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2016, 
unless otherwise stated. This Statement has 
been prepared in reference to the 
Sustainability Reporting Guide and Toolkits, 
issued by Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad 
(“Bursa Malaysia”). In preparing this 
Statement, we have engaged an external 
sustainability consultant to both facilitate and 
strengthen our reporting approach from the 
business sustainability perspective.

Sustainability Statement
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“Aluminium is a metal of the future, it is not expensive, it is durable and light. Growth potential is 
huge in this industry. During the expansion period, we were very mindful of our cash flows. The 
Company has endured the challenging times and we are stronger now, especially in terms of skills 
and knowledge in plant management. Press Metal is still a growing company and we are always 
on the lookout for new opportunities”.

-Dato’ Koon Poh Keong, Group Chief Executive Officer-

(Refer to pp. 40 – 45) (Refer to pp. 45 – 47) (Refer to pp. 48 – 49)

Diagram 1: Intrinsic connection between our Guiding Principles and sustainability matters categorised across the three themes

As reported in the KPMG International Publication 2016 – 
Global Metal Outlook, metal organisations are investing into 
new technologies, markets, alliances and innovations to drive 
the next wave of growth. When aluminium prices started 
to bottom out in early 2016, many aluminium producers 
wondered whether they had moved too quickly to reduce 
capacity and slow production. Some started to consider re-
firing their now idle smelter capacity to gear up for higher 
prices.

At Press Metal, armed with our five strong Guiding Principles, 
we have been progressing well over the years. Throughout 
this journey, we have discovered a series of opportunities 
that are weaved into our day-to-day business operations, 
as a way forward in becoming a trusted nation builder, an 
attractive employer and an eco-conscious corporate citizen. 
This is depicted in Diagram 1 below.
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We continuously serve as a trusted nation builder that 
contribute to both national & global economy through 
our sustainability-driven business acumen without 
compromising our social responsibilities towards 
stakeholders throughout the business value chain.

As an attractive employer, we nurture a diverse pool of 
employees through talent development, focused teamwork 
and maintaining their well-being at workplace. 

We maintain our position as an eco-conscious corporate 
citizen by taking into account environment-related factors in 
offering our products and services of excellent quality.

Bolstered by an overarching Sustainability Policy, we are able 
to achieve the right balance between meeting our business 
objectives and addressing the needs of our stakeholders. 
The Sustainability Policy (the “Policy”) outlines the following 
key objectives:

into the Press Metal’s strategies, policies and 
procedures.

code of practices.

Management in implementing the Policy and review of 
sustainability performance.

and the community, with an emphasis on integrating 
environmental, social and governance considerations 
into decision making process as well as in the delivery 
of our outcomes.

 
In year 2016, we formed a Sustainability Working Group 
(“SWG”) at the management level, as part of strengthening 
our existing governance ecosystem. The Group Financial 
Controller, as the Chairman of SWG, is supported by four 
Head of Departments of Press Metal, i.e. Head of Internal 
Audit, Group Head of Human Resources, Head of Smelting 
and Head of Corporate Affairs. 

The role of SWG is to monitor the performance of Press 
Metal’s sustainability initiatives set under the direction of 
Group Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”). The SWG is also 
supported by sustainability champions or representatives 
from various functions within Press Metal.

The CEO is responsible to oversee the implementation 
of sustainability strategies set by the Board. The Board of 
Directors (the “Board”) is ultimately accountable to review 
and approve the sustainability strategy.

Starting year 2017, SWG will provide progress updates on 
Press Metal’s sustainability performance to the CEO and 
the Board periodically. Diagram 2 below illustrates our 
sustainability governance structure:

Diagram 2: Sustainability Governance
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Diagram 3: Our Stakeholder Engagement Channels
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We partner with our stakeholders to address the issues that 
are important to our business. We consistently reach out to 
them to better understand and identify new opportunities 
for collaboration. In support of this, Diagram 3 below 
demonstrates how feedback was gathered from respective 
stakeholder groups through various engagement channels 
and carefully casted into sustainability initiatives that were 
moulded into our strategic decisions whilst meeting the 
expectations of our stakeholders.
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In year 2016, with guidance from an external sustainability 
consultant, we carried out a structured stakeholder 
prioritisation exercise to identify and prioritise our 
stakeholders, based on the level of influence and 
dependence of these stakeholders over Press Metal. As 
shown in Diagram 4 below, Government and regulatory 
authorities, Board of Directors, Business Partners, Employees 
and Shareholders were the prioritised stakeholder groups 
that required most attention from Press Metal. 

Diagram 4: Stakeholder Prioritisation Matrix 
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Following this, we conducted a sustainability risk assessment 
exercise. Spearheaded by SWG, the level of impact of 
each sustainability matters, from the business perspective 
was determined. The outcome of materiality assessment is 
presented in the Diagram 5 below. 

Backed up by our Guiding Principles, the initiatives associated 
with managing our top ten material sustainability matters 
have been weaved into our day-to-day business operations, 
as depicted in Diagram 6 on the following page.

The details of our initiatives that are geared towards 
managing these material sustainability matters that are 
categorised across three main themes i.e. Trusted Nation 
Builder, Attractive Employer and Eco-conscious Corporate 
Citizen are discussed in the following pages. 

 
In year 2016, we adopted a structured materiality assessment 
process to identify and assess the significance of sustainability 
matters to our business and our stakeholder groups. 

We started with developing a comprehensive list of 
sustainability matters that are relevant to our business by 
taking into account both internal and external factors such 
as our business strategy, business risks as identified in our 
risk registers and emerging sustainability risks as reported 
in industry specific publications and international voluntary 
reporting standards. 

For the purpose of year 2016 materiality assessment and 
reporting, we engaged with our key internal stakeholders 
i.e. a Director and employees from Senior Management 
level. We conducted a survey to gauge their perception 
on the level of importance of the identified sustainability 
matters. For future reporting, we plan to extend the scope of 
engagement to external stakeholders.

(Refer to pp. 48 – 49)(Refer to pp. 45 – 47)(Refer to pp. 40 – 45)

Diagram 5: Materiality Matrix

Sustainability Statement
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Diagram 6: Interweaving Stakeholders’ Expectations and Business Strategies

((Referff to pp. 40 – 45) (Referff to pp. 45 – 47)) (RReferff to pp. 48 – 49)
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Opportunities 

 
With a history spanning over 30 years, we are recognised as 
one of the major aluminium producers at both national and 
regional arena. We are honoured to be part of the Malaysian 
society and to be able to support the national economy as 
one of the key national economic contributors.

KPMG International Publication 2016 – Global Metal 
Outlook reported that, there is a rising trend amongst 
global metal organisations to channel significant investment 
towards developing and implementing new manufacturing 
technologies, such as robotic and artificial intelligence aimed 
at driving efficiency, lowering costs and improving safety 
for many sectors and particularly niche manufacturers and 
suppliers. At Press Metal, we deploy latest and environmental-
friendly technology to promote operational efficiency whilst 
creating a safer working environment for our employees. 

Casting is a process in which high temperature molten 
aluminium is poured into a mould for solidification. During 
this process, our operators are exposed to the possibility of 
splash of fumes and flames or other direct exposure that may 
result in injuries or death as well as destruction of equipment 
and plant facilities. Methods to eradicate this problem have 

Diagram 7: Our key accomplishments as a trusted nation builder

In demonstrating our commitment as a trusted nation 
builder, we leveraged on the latest technological innovation, 
strengthening our partnership with regional industry players 
and embracing sustainable business practices. We focus on 
contributing to both national and global economy through 
sustainability-driven business acumen without compromising 
our social responsibilities towards stakeholders throughout the 
business value chain. Diagram 7 below highlights some of our 
key accomplishments as a trusted nation builder, in year 2016.

been topics of growing concern in both boardroom and 
management meetings.

In year 2016, we invested an approximate amount of 
RM200,000 to install automated mechanical devices i.e. 
Robotic Arms at our manufacturing plants. The Robotic Arms 
are able to move very precisely, repeating exactly the same 
movement over and over again. It is controlled by motion 
sensors to make sure it moves just the right amount to lift and 
stack heavy finished goods to improve stacking efficiency 
and minimise the possibilities of occupational injuries. By 
having these mechanical devices in place, we observed an 
increase in production efficiency and reduction in injury 
rates. Similarly, the installation of dedusters worth RM3.7 
million contributed to the reduction of emission of dust from 
our manufacturing plants.

Sustainability Statement
Cont’d
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We recognise that quality of our products is important for 
maintaining high customer satisfaction and loyalty. Providing 
quality products also helps us to build positive reputations 
and enhance profitability in the long run. We place high 
emphasis on retaining and strengthening our relationships 
with our customers. We are the first aluminium extruder 
in Malaysia accredited with ISO 9001 certification in year 
1993. Our two subsidiary companies, PMS and PMB are the 
first Malaysian companies that produce primary aluminium 
ingots, listed as High Grade Primary Aluminium on the 
LME since year 2011 and 2014 respectively. The initiatives 
discussed in this section reflects our commitment towards 
both complying with the international standards on quality 
and sustaining customer satisfaction.

Staying Ahead 
of Technological Shift

At Press Metal, we constantly anticipate and 
lead through market transitions. Our Group CEO 

and team actively participate in various international 
exhibitions and conferences with the aim of keeping 

abreast of latest technology in the aluminium industry. 
They dedicate ample time to visit smelting plants owned 
by other leading aluminium producers (e.g. Aluminum 
Corporation of China Limited (CHALCO)) and key suppliers 
to learn and share best practices in the application of 
technological innovation that enhances safety, process 
efficiency and cost optimisation. As a member of the 
International Aluminium Association (“IAI”), we are 

able to engage closely with peer organisations 
to learn and share new updates on innovative 

approaches to resolve issues of common 
interest. 

In maintaining our position as a global integrated aluminium 
producer, we are guided by the Group’s Quality Policy. We 
have adopted the Quality Management System (“QMS”) to 
ensure that high quality services and products are delivered 
to our customers. On an annual basis, we carry out a statistical 
analysis to evaluate our quality performance against specific 
targets set across criteria such as quality of material, 
cost effectiveness, timeliness in delivery of products and 
efficiency in resolving customer complaints. In year 2016, we 
have maintained the performance of our indicators for the 
set criteria well on target. 

Regular audits are conducted by our customers. The audit 
focus areas involve compliance with the requirements of TS 
16969 standard, a technical specification for automotive-
related products. 

Our Sales and Marketing Department (“SMD”) is responsible 
to review and validate any complaints that we receive from 
our customers. SMD is required to conduct a root cause 
analysis and thereafter, develop corrective and preventive 
action plans to resolve the complaints. SMD is also able to 
gauge the level of customers’ satisfaction through feedback 
provided by them via a survey that we conduct on an annual 
basis. A set of questionnaire is given to customers to rate 
our services across key areas such as product quality and 
timeliness in delivery of products as well as responding to 
their queries.

We believe that capitalising on strategic partnerships and 
alliances accelerates sustainable growth. Our strategic 
alliance with Sumitomo Corporation since year 2010, has 
allowed us to reach out to new customers by capitalising on 
the network and marketing expertise of the Sumitomo Group 
in the aluminium industry. On the other hand, this has opened 
new business opportunities for Sumitomo Group in the Asian 
market, where the demand for aluminium is expected to 
increase in the coming years. In addition, we have inked a 
joint venture partnership with a major aluminium raw material 
supplier from China. Through this partnership, we are able to 
secure a long-term supply of pre-baked carbon anode, which 
is one of the major raw materials used for manufacturing our 
products.

Sustainability Statement
Cont’d
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Our active participations in conferences and public 
consultations allow us to form a close collaboration with 
existing and new business partners, suppliers, customers 
and government agencies. Conferences and dialogues 
organised by regulatory bodies are avenues for us to 
express our views on the development and improvement of 
aluminium industry in the local context. 

Press Metal is a member of IAI, a worldwide association 
for aluminium producers that promotes a healthy, safe and 
environmentally sound production of aluminium along its 
entire value chain. On top of that, our representation in the 
Board of IAI allows us to strengthen our partnership with 
other global players and effectively access to the global 
industry initiatives that are aimed at achieving efficient and 
cost effective operation. 

In year 2016, we participated in the Aluminium Manufacturers 
Group of Malaysia taskforce organised by the Federation of 
Malaysian Manufacturers (“FMM”). During the participation, 
we were given the opportunity to showcase our expertise as 

well as interact with other industry players to address industry-
related issues of common interest. We also participated in 
the public consultation exercise organised by Department of 
Environment (“DOE”) on the proposed amendment of Clean 
Air Regulation 2014. 

Aluminium producers have always been mindful in managing 
the environmental and social impacts arising from aluminium 
production process and its value chain. We believe that these 
impacts can be minimised by embracing sustainable practices 
and embedding adequate internal controls within business 
processes. Diagram 8 below illustrates the major stages of 
our value chain i.e. starting from sourcing of raw materials, 
aluminium processing (smelting) and delivery of primary 
products to customers. The primary products will be further 
processed into parts or components used in industries such as 
automotive, building infrastructure and utilities. 

Diagram 8: An overview of our value chain 

Sustainability Statement
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Our procurement practices are guided by the Procurement 
Guidelines, which emphasises on acquisition of goods 
and services with the required quality at optimum prices. 
Since our raw material supplies are acquired from external 
sources, sustainability practices across our supply chain are 
important. We keep a close watch on our suppliers to ensure 
that the raw materials that we receive from them are coming 
from sustainable sources. Prior to appointment, these 
suppliers are required to undergo an evaluation process 
i.e. Production Material Approval Process. The suppliers 
are evaluated based on key criteria such as compliance 
with regulatory requirements, availability of internal control 
procedures and sustainable sourcing practices.

Since the beginning, all suppliers of pre-baked carbon anodes 
have agreed to limit the sulphur content in their supply within 
2% and this requirement has been included in our purchase 
agreement with them. Since year 2015, we have shifted to 
local suppliers for the purchase of secondary raw material 
such as silicon, pig iron and aluminium strontium, as an 
effective way to maintain quality of product and reduce lead 
time of product delivery. Purchasing from local suppliers also 
allows us to reduce logistic costs, eradicate import duties, 
minimise exposure to risks arising from volatile exchange rate 
and benefit from a more reasonable raw material price based 
on local market conditions.

We have taken several initiatives to ensure that a robust 
ethical and corporate governance culture is embedded at 
every level of the organisation. This is particularly important 
to earn the trust of our stakeholders. We comply with the 
Group Code of Conduct designed for the Directors, Senior 
Management and employees of Press Metal, as discussed 
in the Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control 
(“SORMIC”). In addition, the Sustainability Policy focuses 
on managing economic, environmental and social (“EES”) 
related risks and opportunities in a responsible manner.

The Group Internal Audit Department is responsible to assess 
the adequacy and test the operating effectiveness of internal 
controls over strategic and operational business processes. 
Some of these processes involve managing EES related risks 
and opportunities. Our Vendor Code of Conduct touches 
upon clauses for our vendors on subject matter such as fair 
competition, employment practices, anti-corruption and 
data protection.

Reducing
environmental impacts 

arising from our value chain

Currently, our products are shipped to our 
customers through Bintulu Port, which is located 60km 

away from our operating plant at PMB. We believe, the 
environmental impacts i.e. emission of air pollutants 
arising from transporting the products in this manner, 
can be reduced upon commissioning of  the Samalaju 
Port, scheduled in mid-2017, which is located adjacent 
to PMB. In addition, we plan to build a conveyor from 
Samalaju Port to PMB, as a measure to minimise the 

emission of air pollutants and dust throughout 
the transportation channel. 

Sustainability Statement
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As we grow and extend our footprint across the global 
market, it is important for us to remain resilient and 
responsive in the face of changing market conditions and 
risk environment. With this in mind, we take into account the 
economic, environment and social considerations in making 
business decisions.

Business expansion is a driving force for job creation, 
economic growth and development of the surrounding 
areas where we are operating in. In year 2016, our smelting 
plants at PMB (Phase 2) achieved its full production capacity 
and this marked another major milestone in our sustainability 
journey. This has created more employment opportunities 
for the local community. Over the years, our presence in 
Sarawak has also helped the local government to attract 
new business investment, support local economy by utilising 
hydropower from Bakun Dam, as well as in the development 
of new infrastructure in the surrounding areas where our 
plants are located. 

 

Value-added 
products for our 

customers

In view of the growing demand for 
aluminium-based parts/components in the 
automotive and infrastructure industries, 
we are looking into expanding our existing 
product lines to offer more value-added 
products such as wire rod. In September 
2016, we started the production of wire 

rod. We plan to increase the production 
of similar value-added products to 

50% of our production, by end 
of year 2017.

Santa Run 
2016 

“Santa Run” is an annual event 
organised by Press Metal to raise funds for 

those in needs whilst promoting awareness 
on healthy lifestyle. The fund collected 
through this event is channelled to various 
charity and welfare organisations. In year 
2016, we contributed more than RM 110,000 
to Bintulu Perpikat Centre, in support of 

raising children with special needs.

At Press Metal, we recognise that the local communities in 
the areas where we operate are diverse in nature, each with 
their unique concerns, values and customs. It is important to 
respect the local communities as well as to foster positive 
long term relationships for mutual benefit. 

As a sign of commitment, we have established a Corporate 
Social Policy to meet the expectations of our stakeholders. 
The Policy is focused on demonstrating our responsibilities 
towards our stakeholders through various social activities. In 
year 2016, we contributed to the local community in many 
different ways, focusing in aiding the underprivileged. In our 
view, such community engagements serve as one of the best 
avenues for us to engage with and listen to their concerns. 
Our good rapport with the village chiefs and representatives 
of local community enables us to receive and respond to 
their queries in a timely manner. 
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We contributed to various schools for improvement of 
facilities and developing school programmes. We also 
organised celebration events during various festive 
seasons to both interact and build relationship with the 
local communities and other stakeholders. In year 2016, 
we engaged with approximately 7,000 local communities 
through contributions and celebration events. Among others, 
a blood donation drive was organised for Hospital Bintulu 
and was participated by 900 employees of Press Metal. 

 

At Press Metal, we believe that our employees are our vital 
assets and the wheels that drive our sustainable growth. 
As we continue to grow, we believe it is important to retain 
skilled employees and continue to attract new talents from 
a diversified background. A safe and healthy working 
environment is able to motivate them to perform to the 
best of their ability. We provide customised learning and 
development programme that allows our employees to 
realise their full potential and survive through the changing 
business environment. 

As an employer, providing a healthy and safe working 
environment for our employees is not just a duty, but it also 
reflects our organisational culture. We are guided by the 
Group Environmental Health & Safety Policy, which outlines 
the policies and procedures for ensuring a safe and injury-
free working environment for our employees. Our health 
and safety-related management initiatives are managed by 
the Environmental, Health and Safety (“EHS”) Committee. 
The Committee is responsible to implement and monitor 
the progress of all environment, health and safety-related 
initiatives. This includes reviewing the effectiveness of EHS 
programmes, conducting safety inspections and carrying out 
investigations on accidents/incidents that occurred at the 
workplace. The EHS Committee provides progress updates 
on the initiatives to Management on a monthly basis. The 
details of the initiatives are discussed in the following section. 

During the year, we conduct a plant-wide health and safety 
trainings to educate, train and motivate our employees 
to carry out their duties in accordance with the health and 
safety requirements set by the Group. The type of trainings 
provided to individual employees may vary, depending on 
their job requirements as per Training Need Analysis (“TNA”) 
and Employee Skill Matrix. Safety training is also included as 
part of induction programme for our new employees.

We provide adequate PPE such as respirators, ear plugs, 
face shield and safety helmet to our employees to protect 
them against health and safety risks when they work at the 
production sites.

Our responsibility in creating a safe and healthy environment 
is not limited to our employees only. All visitors are required 
to attend a briefing on safety prior to entering production 
sites. The briefing is conducted based on the Group Safety 
Guidelines for Visitors. The objective of the briefing is to 
educate the visitors on the potential hazards and understand 
precautionary measures to be taken in case accidents occur.

On an annual basis, the EHS team conducts an assessment to 
evaluate the level of our employees’ exposure to noise and 
chemicals at the production sites. 

The Permit-To-Work (PTW) System is in place for the 
assessment of risks and controls related to non-routine works 
at the plant sites. Similar assessment is carried out for routine 
activities in accordance with the Hazard Identification, 
Risk Assessment and Determining Control (“HIRADC”) 
procedures. A Chemical Health Risk Assessment (“CHRA”) is 
conducted every five years to evaluate the effectiveness of 
internal controls in the existing health and safety procedures. 
Subsequently, relevant action plans are taken and monitored. 
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Fire drill exercises are conducted at all plants on an annual 
basis to evaluate the effectiveness of our evacuation plans 
during emergency situations.

Our Emergency Response Plan (“ERP”) serves as a guide 
and outlines the procedures for responding to emergency 
situations. ERP also includes the roles and responsibilities 
of the Emergency Response Team (“ERT”) and the potential 
hazards at specific areas within the plant.

At Press Metal, the EHS Committee closely monitors the 
work-related incidents that occur within our plant compound. 
These include both major accidents and minor injuries. At 
PMS, the incident rate recorded in year 2016 was 31.3, which 
is lower than the rate achieved in year 2015 i.e. 35.8. The 
incident rate is maintained well below the targeted rate of 
32.2 per annum. 

At PMB, the incident rate recorded for year 2016 is 19.6, which 
exceeded our targeted rate of 17.6 per annum. This is due to 
large number of new joiners at our plant at Phase 2, who lack 
experience and were at the stage of familiarising themselves 
with plant equipment and processes. We will continue to 
closely monitor the implementation of existing preventive 
safety measures to reduce the reported incident rate. 

We recognise that adapting to the changing economic 
environment is a key part of sustainable growth. At Press 
Metal, having skilled employees and workers that are 
trained and able to adapt with the changes in the business 
environment has become a key requirement for sustainable 
growth going forward. In support of this, we have developed 
a number of training programmes and career development 
opportunities that are designed to enhance their 
competencies as well as retain skilled talents.

On an annual basis, Human Resource Department is 
responsible to develop a training plan for individual 
based on the outcome of the Training Need Analysis and 
Employee Skill Matrix. In year 2016, our investment in the 
learning and development programme for employees has 
increased by 2% against the budgeted amount. The learning 
and development programme focuses on both technical 
and soft skills. Trainings are also conducted in the form of 
team building exercises to promote a more engaging and 
enjoyable learning experience.

Besides that, the close collaboration between our operating 
companies across various countries promote active transfer 
of technical knowledge and expertise. For example, technical 
experts from China recently collaborated with our local 
team in a project related to enhancement of the electrolysis 
function. Similarly, employees from the local team regularly 
visits smelting plants in China.Battling with 

the Fire

In May 2015, PMB experienced a fire 
incident, which resulted in damages 

to a few smelting pots. Thankfully, there 
were no injuries or fatality reported 
during the incident. Post the fire incident, 
we developed a new Emergency 
Response Plan, particularly focusing 

on handling emergency situations 
involving the operation of 

smelting pots.
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Learning from 
the Experts

In year 2016, two employees from 
the Production Department visited a 

carbon anode manufacturing plant in 
China. The learning experience from the 
visit has been valuable for Press Metal 
to experiment new approaches to 

optimise the consumption of carbon 
anode in the smelting plants. 

e Our Employees, 
Our Pride

In 2016, Press Metal participated in the Indonesia 
Migrant Workers Award (“IMWA”) organised by the 

Indonesia Consulate. Two of our employees became 
the second and third runner-up for the Construction & 

Manufacturing Category. IMWA is an award ceremony 
organised to particularly recognise Indonesian workers who 
are working in Sarawak (in the areas such as palm oil plantation, 
construction and manufacturing industries) for more than 
three years. The participants are evaluated based on criteria 
such as involvement in community activities, knowledge 

and skills and discipline records.

Besides 
that, the 5-Year 

Service Award is organised 
on annual basis to recognise the 

contribution of employees that have 
served Press Metal for over five years. In 

year 2016, a total of 57 employees received 
this award.

We also organised events such as inter-
departmental sports tournament (e.g. 
futsal, football and badminton) and 

PMS Got Talent, as an avenue for our 
employees to bond and get to 

know each other closely.

Picture 1: Our Employees – the second and 
third runner up for IMWA, Construction and 

Manufacturing Category 
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As an eco-conscious corporate citizen, environmental 
concerns are essential to our decision making. We conduct 
ourselves as responsible stewards within our communities by 
adopting environmentally sustainable policies and practices.

Our production plants are recognised by international 
accreditation body, namely ISO 14001 - Environmental 
Management Standard. This accreditation demonstrates our 
capacity in maintaining our operations without compromising 
the negative impacts to the environment. Being in an energy-
intensive industry, we are particularly focused on managing our 
energy consumption in an environmentally responsible way. 
One key example is the use of hydroelectric power generated 
from the Bakun Dam to run our plants in Sarawak. Diagram 9 
below highlights some of our key accomplishments as an eco-
conscious corporate citizen, in year 2016.

year 2016, the total quantity of air emissions has increased 
upon the commissioning of Phase 2 in PMB, as presented 
in the Table 1 below. Nevertheless, the total quantity is 
maintained well within the acceptable limit, as set by 
Department of Environment. The percentage of air emission 
over the acceptable limit has also reduced in comparison to 
the preceding year. 

Table 1: Total Air Emission at PMB

2015

Total Total 

Total 
Particulate 
Matter 181.1 320.4 337.4 670.0

Sulphur 
Dioxide 4,017.1 6,409.0 6,474.5 13,400.6

Hydrogen 
Fluoride 20.9 32.0 43.0 67.0

Total Fluoride 34.6 48.1 69.7 100.5

* Refers to the acceptable limit as enumerated in the Environmental 
Quality (Clean Air) Regulations 2014.

The EHS Department, with the support from respective 
plant managers, is responsible for monitoring our waste 
management processes. Our waste management initiatives 
are guided by the Waste Management Procedures and 
Housekeeping Policy. Our wastes are segregated, properly 
packaged, labelled, stored separately at designated areas 
and disposed safely through licensed waste collectors. The 
amount of scheduled waste generated and disposed from 
the plants are monitored and reported to the Department of 
Environment (“DOE”). 
 
In year 2016, the total volume of scheduled waste generated 
at PMS was 1,760 MT, which had decreased by 15% in 

Diagram 9: Our Key Accomplishments as an Eco-
conscious Corporate Citizen 

At Press Metal, the emission of air pollutants from our 
production plants are closely monitored. The Fume Treatment 
Department is responsible to ensure that all machineries and 
plant equipment are working in good condition and comply 
with the relevant regulatory requirements. This includes 
ensuring that the emission rate of air pollutants such as 
hydrogen fluoride, total particulate matter and sulphur 
dioxide are within the acceptable limits, as enumerated in 
the Environmental Quality (Clean Air) Regulations 2014. In 
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comparison to the previous year. In consonance with the 
increase in production capacity from 440,000 MT per annum 
to 760,000 MT per annum, the total volume of scheduled 
waste generated at PMB had increased by 13.5%, with a total 
amount of 6,100 MT.

Aluminium dross, is generated as a byproduct during 
aluminium smelting process. The valuable aluminium metal 
in the dross is recovered by using an aluminium recovery 
system and subsequently, repurposed into the casting 
process. The aluminium metal can be recovered either by 
using an in-house aluminium recovery system or sent over 
to external contractors, depending on the complexity and 
condition of the dross. In year 2016, we established an in-
house aluminium recovery system to optimise the amount 
of valuable aluminium recovered from the aluminium dross. 
With this new system in place, the average aluminium 
dross recovery rate has increased between a range of 30% 
to 40% and the amount of residual waste generated from 
this process had decreased. Besides that, the bath material 
recovered from spent carbon anode are collected, stored 
and reused as cover material in the electrolysis cell in our 
smelting plant. 

The Power Distribution Department is responsible to monitor 
the rate of electricity consumption at respective plants. At 
operations level, shift technicians are in-charge to inspect 
and report on the daily rate of electricity consumption for 
every three hours. Managers at the plants are responsible to 
review the monthly rate of electricity consumption, analyse 
the causes of significant variances and develop appropriate 
action plans for continuous improvement.

In year 2016, PMS and PMB (Phase 1) have maintained its 
annual rate of electricity consumption within the set target. 
For PMB (Phase 1), the consumption rate appears to be 
relatively higher by 30% in year 2016 and this is attributed 
to the lower electricity consumption rate in 2015 due to 
temporary stoppage of plant operations due to a fire incident. 

In June 2016, the plant operations at PMB (Phase 2) achieved 
its full production capacity. The average rate of electricity 
consumption is being monitored to ensure that the rate is 
maintained within the set target. 

Our water consumption rate is monitored on a daily basis. 
On a monthly basis, we carry out preventive maintenance 
activities to prevent leakages across our water pipeline 
system. The details of the corrective actions taken are 
recorded in the Daily Shift Report. In year 2016, we have 
installed flow meters, as part of enhancing our existing 
measures for monitoring water consumption rate. This is 
being done by phases and is expected to complete by end 
of year 2017.

At PMB, the volume of water consumption had increased 
upon the commissioning of new plants located in Phase 2. 
We will continue our effort to monitor and reduce the water 
consumption rate. At PMS, the volume of water consumption 
had increased by 5.4% in year 2016, with an approximate 
consumption of 263,400 cubic meter per annum. This is 
mainly due to the increase in water usage for cleaning of hot 
and cold water pond and installation of new equipment (e.g. 
emergency water storage tanks, auto flushing filter and new 
billets casting line in the casting house). 

Recognition 
for our 

environmental practices

Press Metal received the Gold 
Award in Sarawak Chief Minister’s 

Environmental Award (“CMEA”), for the 
Large Enterprise Manufacturing category. 
CMEA is a prestigious recognition given 
by the state government of Sarawak 
as appreciation of the commitment 
demonstrated by various public and 

private companies in managing 
the environment.  

Picture 2: CMEA Award 
2016 Gold
Award for Large Enterprise
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Corporate Governance Statement

The Board of Directors (“the Board”) of Press Metal Berhad (“the Company”) is committed to exercising good corporate 
governance by supporting and applying the Principles and Recommendations set out in the Malaysian Code on Corporate 
Governance 2012 (“the Code”). The Board recognises that maintaining good governance ethics is critical to business integrity 
and performance, and key to delivering shareholders’ value. In addition, the Board evaluates and where appropriate, 
implements relevant proposals to ensure that the Company and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) continue to adhere to good 
corporate governance with the aim of safeguarding shareholders’ investment and ultimately enhancing shareholders’ value. 

The Board is pleased to share the manner in which the Principles of the Code have been complied within the Group in respect 
of the financial year ended 31 December 2016. 

 

 The Board is ultimately responsible for determining the Group’s strategic direction, managing operating performance 
and the overall corporate governance as to realise shareholders’ value whilst accounting for stakeholders’ interest. To 
ensure the effective discharge of its function and responsibilities, the Board retains full and effective control to direct 
and supervise the business and affairs of the Group with the assistance of Board Committees, namely Audit Committee, 
Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee whom are entrusted with specific responsibilities. Details of each 
Board Committee are contained on Pages 54 to 56, 58 to 60 and 71 to 75 respectively.

 Authority and responsibilities of each Board Committee are well defined in their respective written Terms of Reference 
approved by the Board. The Board Committees are responsible to examine key issues and keep the Board informed of 
their key deliberations and major findings in accordance with their respective Terms of Reference. However, the ultimate 
responsibility for decision making remains with the Board.

 
 The Board has also established sub-holding boards for each of the Group’s businesses to ensure that the strategies and 

policies set at the Group level are implemented at the respective business divisions. 

 The day-to-day management of the Group’s business is delegated to the Group Chief Executive Officer (“Group CEO”), 
Executive Directors and Management except the following significant matters which are reserved for the Board as 
stipulated in the Board Charter established since 29 May 2013 which was subsequently reviewed on 25 February 2016 
and approved by the Board on the same day:
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financial and operational controls, are in place and properly implemented.

 The Board meets on a regular and scheduled basis, at least four (4) times a year with additional meetings held as and 
when urgent issues warrant matters to be attended to. Quarterly Board Meeting is conducted to review the financial 
performance of the Group for the period as well as updates on key strategic initiatives and significant operational issues. 
The Board is also provided with sufficient business related insights, information and assurance from the Group CEO 
towards attaining the corporate objectives and making informed decision.  

 
1.2 Clear roles and responsibilities

 The Management leads and manages specific businesses or key functions of the Group under the supervision of the 
Group CEO. Catering to the dynamic business environment, the Group CEO, Executive Directors and Management 
are responsible for formulating strategic plans to accommodate changes swiftly with their intensive knowledge and 
professionalism. 

 Sub-holding board of each business is structured with participation of at least three members from the Board of the 
Company whom plays an active role in reviewing and challenging strategic plans formulated before presenting it to the 
Board for adoption. 

 This process allows the Board to gain assurance and preserve efficiency whilst reviewing strategic plans presented. With 
the presence of Independent Directors, further deliberation is available to enhance the value of strategic plans prior to 
the conclusion and development of a value added business strategy.

 With regard to overseeing performance of the Group, the Group CEO is appointed by the Board to be ultimately liable to 
conserve the operational effectiveness, implementation of Board policies and strategies, and the attainment of corporate 
objective. Strong leadership and intensive supervision being demonstrated by the Group CEO has devoted significantly 
in discharging his responsibilities and in steering the Group on the right path in achieving the goals and objectives with 
Management team’s expertise and skills. 

 The Board has unrestricted access to operational information and a transparent relationship with the Group CEO and 
Management. The Board deliberately reviews operational and financial results presented to them and are informed on 
the latest business conditions on a quarterly and yearly basis. The Audit Committee comprises three (3) members, all of 
whom are Independent Non-Executive Directors to assess operational and financial adequacy impartially. Key issues will 
be disclosed and presented by the Chairman of the Audit Committee as a routine part of the Board meeting’s agenda.
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1.2 Clear roles and responsibilities  cont’d

 Risk Management is regarded by the Board as an integral part of the Group’s business operations which helps identify, 
evaluate and monitor key business risks obstructing the achievement of the Company’s goals and objectives. Audit 
Committee was delegated by the Board to develop, implement and maintain an effective risk management framework 
with assistance of the Group’s Internal Audit Department. In line with the universal accepted standard ISO 31000, the 
Group Internal Audit Department has initiated a risk management framework in conjunction with the Risk Management 
Policy established by the Board on 29 May 2013. 

 
 The Board is committed to establish and maintain adequate internal control system throughout the Group in all its 

business functions that not limiting to financial aspects of the business but also operational, regulatory compliance as 
well as risk management matters. In order to fulfill the commitment, internal audit function both In-house and outsourced, 
is assisting the Board to review the effectiveness and adequacy of internal control system independently and perpetually. 
Details pertaining to risk management and adequacy of internal control system are set out in the Statement on Risk 
Management and Internal Control of the Annual Report on Pages 76 to 78. 

 Succession planning is critical element in preventing business disruptions and promoting operational sustainability 
for which the Nomination Committee is entrusted by the Board to review and recommend candidates for executive 
management. Succession Planning is established for Nomination Committee to effectively discharge responsibilities in 
identifying and assessing potential candidates with assistance of the Group CEO, to ascertain that potential successors 
have sufficient experience and are the right fit for the Company. 

 The Board values the dialogue with shareholders and appreciates the keen interest of shareholders on the Group’s 
performance. In this regard, the Board had on 29 May 2013 established a Corporate Disclosure Policies and Procedures 
to provide accurate, timely, consistent and fair disclosure of corporate information to the shareholders and stakeholders 
of the Group and the public generally. The Group CEO has been appointed as the primary spokesperson of the 
Company to communicate with audience constituents and respond to questions in relation to corporate vision, strategies, 
developments, future prospects, financial plans and operation matters.

 The Board acknowledges the importance of establishing a corporate culture which engenders ethical conduct that 
permeates throughout the Company. The Board had on 29 May 2013 adopted and implemented a Code of Conduct for 
Directors, Management and employees of the Group as well as Code of Ethics for the Board.

 The Code of Conduct embodies the principles contained in various policies adopted by the Group that commits Directors, 
Management and employees to high ethical values and expected standards of conduct. The Code of Conduct covers 
among others, all aspects of the business operations such as human rights, environmental issue, business gifts and 
hospitalities, integrity and professionalism, confidentiality of business information and proper safeguarding of company 
assets. Code of Ethics includes, inter alia, matters relating to duties and responsibilities of Directors, conflict of interests 
and their social responsibilities. 
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 The Board is mindful of the importance of building a sustainable business. The Board had on 29 May 2013 developed 
and implemented the Sustainability Policy to ensure that the Group’s strategies continue to promote sustainability, with 
attention given to environmental, social and governance aspects (“ESG”) of the Group’s business.  

 The Group’s initiatives on sustainability for the year under review are set out in Pages 33 to 49 of this Annual Report. 

1.5 Access to information and advice

 The Board recognises that the decision making process is highly dependent on the quality of information furnished. As 
such, Directors have unrestricted access to any information pertaining to the Company. 

 The Chairman plays a key role in ensuring that all Directors have full and timely access to information with Board papers 
circulated at least five (5) days in advance of each Board meetings. This ensures that Directors have sufficient time to 
appreciate issues deliberated at the Board meetings and expedite the decision making process. A comprehensive 
balance of financial and non-financial information is encapsulated in the papers covering strategic, operational, 
regulatory, marketing and human resource issues. 

 There is also a formal procedure sanctioned by the Board, whether as the Board as a whole or in their individual capacity, 
for Directors to obtain independent professional advice at the Company’s expense. The Board may also invite external 
parties such as external auditors, solicitors and consultants as and when the need arises.

 Detailed periodic briefings on the industry outlook and Company performance are also conducted for the Directors to 
ensure that the Board is well informed on the latest market and industry trends. 

 The Board is supported by the Company Secretaries who play a vital role in advising the Board in relation to the 
Company’s constitution, Board policies and procedures, and compliance with the relevant regulatory requirements, 
codes or guidance and legislations.  

 The Companies Secretaries ensure that all Board and Board Committee meetings are properly convened and that 
accurate and proper records of the deliberations, proceedings and resolutions passed are recorded and statutory 
registers are properly maintained at the registered office of the Company. The Company Secretaries also assisting the 
provision of information to the Board and Board Committees, and between Non-Executive Directors and Management 
from time to time. 
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 The Directors have individual and independent access to the advice and dedicated support services of the Company 
Secretaries in ensuring the effective functioning of the Board.

 The removal of Company Secretaries, if any, is a matter for the Board to decide collectively.

 The Board is guided by the principles contained in the Code and the Board Charter. The Board had in year 2013 
formalised a Board Charter to clearly deliberate the roles of the Board, Chairman, Board Committees and Management. 
The Board Charter is available on the Company’s official webpage www.pressmetal.com. 

 The Nomination Committee comprised the following members during the financial year ended 31 December 2016: 

Dato’ Wira (Dr.) Megat Abdul Rahman Bin 
Megat Ahmad

Chairman Independent Non-Executive Director

Loo Lean Hock Member Independent Non-Executive Director

Noor Alina Binti Mohamad Faiz
(Appointed on 18 October 2016)

Member Independent Non-Executive Director

Tuan Haji Mohamad Faiz Bin Abdul Hamid
(Resigned on 1 September 2016)

Member Senior Independent Non-Executive Director

 The Nomination Committee consists entirely of Independent Non-Executive Directors. The Board takes note that the 
Code recommends that the Chairman of the Nomination Committee should be a Senior Independent Non-Executive 
Director identified by the Board. The Board will review the recommendation and make the necessary appointment as and 
when it deems fit. 

 The Nomination Committee is empowered by the Board and its Terms of Reference to bring to the Board recommendations 
as to the appointment of new Directors. The Nomination Committee assesses the suitability of candidates, taking into 
account the required mix of skills, knowledge, expertise and experience, professionalism, integrity, competencies, time 
commitment and other qualities of the candidates before recommending their appointment to the Board for approval.

Corporate Governance Statement
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 The Nomination Committee systematically assesses the effectiveness of the Board, its Board Committees, the Group 
CEO and the contribution and performance of each individual Director on an annual basis. The Nomination Committee 
also keeps under review the Board’s structure, size and composition.

 The Board as a policy will select candidate as a Director who will best serve the Company regardless of gender, ethnicity 
and age. Despite the Board has no immediate plan to implement a diversity policy nor set any target or undertake any 
specific measures to recruit suitable women candidates to the Board, the Board had on 18 October 2016 appointed 
Puan Noor Alina Binti Mohamad Faiz as an Independent Non-Executive Director. With Puan Alina on the Board, the Board 
views that this will bring different perspectives and approaches to the Board discussions.

 The Nomination Committee held two (2) meetings during the financial year ended 31 December 2016. The details of 
attendance of each Nomination Committee members are as follows:

Member Attendance

Dato’ Wira (Dr.) Megat Abdul Rahman Bin Megat Ahmad 2/2

Loo Lean Hock 2/2

Noor Alina Binti Mohamad Faiz
(Appointed on 18 October 2016)

-

Tuan Haji Mohamad Faiz Bin Abdul Hamid
(Resigned on 1 September 2016)

1/2

 During the financial year 2016, the Nomination Committee has undertaken the following activities:

(i) Assessed the overall effectiveness of the Board, its Committees and the contribution and performance of each 

(iv) Reviewed the character, experience, integrity, competence and time commitment of the Group CEO and Chief 

(viii) Reviewed and recommended Independent Directors who have served as Independent Non-Executive Director of 
the Company for a cumulative term of nine (9) years, to continue to act as Independent Non-Executive Director of 
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(x) Identified and recommended candidate to the Board for the position of Independent Non-Executive Director of 

(xi) Identified and recommended the appointment of Chairman and/or new member of the Audit Committee, 
Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee.

 The Nomination Committee via the meeting held in February 2016 reviewed the Board composition to identify and close 
any possible gap in the Board’s functional knowledge and competencies by bringing in new experience, knowledge and 
expertise on the Board to meet the current and future needs of the Company. Based upon requirement stipulated in both 
the Board Charter and Terms of Reference of Nomination Committee, the Board through the Nomination Committee’s 
annual appraisal concluded that the Board has the right balance of expertise, skills and attributes including relevant core 
competencies and the Board’s size is conducive for effective discussion and decision-making.  

 The Terms of Reference of the Nomination Committee is accessible at the Company’s website www.pressmetal.com.

 Appointment process

 The Nomination Committee is delegated with responsibilities to assess and recommend the candidates in line with 
criteria stipulated in Nomination Committee’s Terms of Reference and Directors’ Assessment Policy adopted in year 2013, 
inter-alia, the required mix of skills, knowledge, expertise and experience, time commitment, integrity and competencies 
in meeting the needs of the Company. 

 The Nomination Committee leads the process for identifying and making recommendations for the Board’s approval on 
suitable candidates for directorship to the Board and members to the Board Committees. The Board will then, based 
on the recommendation of the Nomination Committee, evaluates and decides on the appointment of the proposed 
candidate(s). The Company Secretaries will ensure that all appointments are properly conducted, and that legal and 
regulatory obligations are met.

 In regards to the candidates for appointment as Independent Director position, the Nomination Committee would assess 
the potential candidate’s suitability and the candidates are required to declare and confirm in writing their independence 
based on the criteria on independence as set out in the Main Market Listing Requirements (“MMLR”) of Bursa Malaysia 
Securities Berhad (“Bursa Securities”).
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 Appointment process  cont’d

 The Nomination Committee had in September 2016 reviewed and recommended the appointment of Puan Noor Alina 
Binti Mohamad Faiz as an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company. In evaluating the suitability of Puan 
Noor Alina Binti Mohamad Faiz, the Nomination Committee had reviewed and considered her education background, 
professionalism, skills, knowledge, expertise and experience.  In addition, the Nomination Committee also discussed and 
considered boardroom diversity including gender, age and ethnicity diversity with a view to achieving a sustainable and 
balance Board. Upon due consideration, the Nomination Committee agreed to recommend the appointment of Puan 
Noor Alina Binti Mohamad Faiz as an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company to the Board for approval.

 Re-election of Directors

 The Articles of Association of the Company provide that all Directors shall retire at least once in every three (3) years. The 
Directors to retire in each year are the Directors who have been longest in office since their appointment or last election. 
A retiring Director is eligible for re-election. This provides an opportunity for shareholders to renew their mandates. The 
re-election of each Director is voted on separate resolution during the Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the Company. 
To assist shareholders in their decision, sufficient information such as personal profile, meeting attendance and the 
shareholdings in the Group of each Director standing for re-election are furnished in the Profile of Directors contained in 
the annual report.

 Board Evaluation

 The Nomination Committee is responsible to the Board in evaluating performance and effectiveness of the entire 
Board, the Board Committees and individual Director on a yearly basis. The evaluation process is led by the Nomination 
Committee Chairman and supported by the Company Secretary via questionnaires. The Nomination Committee reviews 
the outcome of the evaluation and recommends to the Board on areas for continuous improvement and also for them to 
form the basis of recommending relevant Directors for re-election at the AGM.

 The Board has developed Directors’ Assessment Policy to facilitate the effectiveness of assessment activities with well-
defined assessment criteria and procedures. Primary criteria adopted for assessing performance of the Board and Board’s 
Committees are the adequacy of board structure, the effectiveness of board operation, and the fulfillment of designated 
roles and responsibilities.  

 For the financial year ended 31 December 2016, the Nomination Committee assessed the effectiveness of the Board, 
its Committees and the contribution of each Director with the aim of improving individual contribution, effectiveness of 
the Board and its Committees, identify gaps, maximise strengths and address weaknesses of the Board. The evaluation 
includes a review of the administration of the Board and its Committees covering the operation of the Board and its 
Committees, agendas, reports, information produced for consideration and the Board’s relationship with its Committees 
and Management.  
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 Board Evaluation  cont’d

 The Board Committees were assessed based on their roles and responsibilities, scope and knowledge, frequency and 
length of meetings, supply of sufficient and timely information to the Board and also overall effectiveness and efficiency 
in discharging their function. 

 The individual Director each undertook self-assessment of their individual performance during the financial year ended 
31 December 2016 based on the criteria, amongst others, integrity, professionalism, business knowledge, judgment 
and decision making, teamwork and character, leadership and competence in order to discharge their respective roles 
as Directors of the Company. Additionally, the criterion of independency and tenure is also applied to the Independent 
Director.

 From the performance assessment conducted by the Nomination Committee in February 2017, it was concluded that the 
Board as whole, Board Committees and individual Directors have discharged their respective roles and responsibilities 
in a commendable manner. 

 Remuneration Committee

 The Remuneration Committee comprised two (2) Independent Non-Executive Directors and one (1) Executive Director 
with Dato’ Wira (Dr.) Megat Abdul Rahman Bin Megat Ahmad as the Chairman. The Remuneration Committee is 
responsible for recommending the remuneration packages of Executive Directors to the Board with reference to the 
guidance available in the Directors’ Remuneration Policy. None of the Executive Directors participated in any way in 
determining their individual remuneration. 

 Non-Executive Directors’ remuneration is a matter to be decided by the Board as a whole with the Director concerned 
abstaining from deliberations and voting on decisions in respect of his individual remuneration. Directors’ Remuneration 
Policy stipulates that Non-Executive Directors are entitled to fixed directors fees with certain benefits and allowances 
which should be decided by the Board as a whole. Directors’ fees for Non-Executive Directors is benchmarked against 
market rate apart from the extent of their duties and responsibilities, attendance at Board meetings and qualifications 
and contributions. The Board recommends the Directors’ fees payable to Independent Non-Executive Directors on a 
yearly basis to the shareholders for approval at the AGM.

 Upon review conducted in February 2017, the Board is of the view that the current remuneration level suffices to attract, 
retain and motivate qualified Directors to serve on the Board.
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 Remuneration Committee  cont’d

 The members of the Remuneration Committee are as follows:-

Dato’ Wira (Dr.) Megat Abdul Rahman Bin 
Megat Ahmad

Chairman Independent Non-Executive Director

Koon Poh Ming Member Executive Director

Tan Heng Kui
(Re-designated as Senior Independent 

Non-Executive Director on 1 September 
2016 and appointed as member of 
Remuneration Committee on 18 October 
2016)

Member Senior Independent Non-Executive Director

Tuan Haji Mohamad Faiz Bin Abdul Hamid
(Ceased as member on 1 September 2016)

Member Senior Independent Non-Executive Director

 The Remuneration Committee held one (1) meeting during the financial year ended 31 December 2016 and all the 
members (except for Mr Tan Heng Kui who was appointed as member of Remuneration Committee on 18 October 2016) 
registered full attendance.

 Remuneration Package

 The aggregate Directors’ remuneration paid or payable or otherwise made available to all Directors of the Company who 
served during the financial year ended 31 December 2016 are as follows:

Directors Directors Directors Directors
 
Fees (RM’000) - 278 - 278

Remuneration (RM’000) 6,122 - 4,993 -
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 Remuneration Package  cont’d

 Breakdown of Directors’ remuneration for the financial year ended 31 December 2016, by category and in each successive 
band of RM50, 000, is as follows:-

Directors Directors Directors Directors

RM50,001 – RM100,000 -     4 - 4

RM1,100,001 – RM1,150,000 2           - 1 -

RM1,150,001– RM1,200,000 - - - -

RM1,200,001 – RM1,250,000 1 - 1 -

RM1,250,001 – RM1,300,000 - - - -

RM1,300,001 – RM1,350,000 2 - 2 -

Total 5 4 4 4

 The Company does not disclose each Director’s remuneration separately as such information is considered highly 
sensitive and confidential in nature.

 

 The Board recognises the importance of independence and objectivity in decision-making process. The Independent 
Directors are professionals of high calibre and integrity and possess extensive experience and knowledge of the business 
as required for the successful direction of the Group. The Board is committed in ensuring that Independent Directors are 
capable and willing to make decisions in the best interests of the Company and the shareholders free from interest or 
influence and are independent of the Management.
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 The Independent Directors namely, Dato’ Wira (Dr.) Megat Abdul Rahman Bin Megat Ahmad, Mr Tan Heng Kui, Mr Loo 
Lean Hock and Puan Noor Alina Binti Mohamad Faiz fulfilled the criteria of “Independence” as prescribed under the 
MMLR. The Board composition also complies with the MMLR which requires that at least two (2) Directors or one-third 
(1/3) of the Board of the Company, whichever is the higher, to be Independent Directors.

 In line with the Code and the Board Charter, the tenure of an independent Director should not exceed a cumulative 
term of nine (9) years. However, an Independent Director may continue to serve on the Board upon reaching the 9-year 
limit subject to the Independent Director’s re-designation as a Non-Independent Non-Executive Director. In the event 
the Board intends to retain the Director as Independent after the latter has served a cumulative term of nine (9) years, 
the Board must justify the decision and seek shareholders’ approval at general meeting. In justifying the decision, the 
Nomination Committee is entrusted to assess the candidate’s sustainability to continue as an Independent Non-Executive 
Director based on the criteria on independence.

 Mr Loo Lean Hock, Mr Tan Heng Kui and Dato’ Wira (Dr.) Megat Abdul Rahman Bin Megat Ahmad have served as 
Independent Directors on the Board for more than nine (9) years. They contributed to the Company’s business with their 
vast knowledge, industrial experience and familiarity to the operations of the Company. They have continued to exercise 
their independence and due care during their tenure as Independent Non-Executive Directors of the Company, carried 
out their professional duties in the best interest of the Company and shareholders, and have shown great integrity of 
independence. Following an assessment by the Nomination Committee and the Board, the Board recommended that 
they continue to act as Independent Directors of the Company subject to shareholders’ approval at the Thirty-First AGM 
of the Company. 

 Further justifications for the recommended continuance as Independent Non-Executive Director for the Directors are 
reflected in the Notice of Thirty-First AGM on Pages 224 to 231 of the annual report. 

 The Board recognises the importance of having a clearly accepted division of power and responsibilities. There is a clear 
division of responsibilities at the head of the Group to ensure a balance of authority and power. The Board is led by 
Dato’ Wira (Dr.) Megat Abdul Rahman Bin Megat Ahmad, an Independent Non-Executive Chairman and the executive 
management of the Group is led by Dato’ Koon Poh Keong, the Group CEO. 

 The roles of the Chairman and the Group CEO are clearly defined in the Board Charter. The Chairman is responsible for 
leading the Board in oversight of management and other responsibilities assigned by the Board from time to time. The 
Group CEO is responsible for the business and day-to-day management of the Company and is primarily accountable 
to the Board for the authority that is delegated to him. Following the resignation of Tuan Haji Mohamad Faiz Bin Abdul 
Hamid on 1 September 2016, the Board had on the same day appointed Mr Tan Heng Kui as the Senior Independent 
Non-Executive Director to clarify matters or enquiries that may be raised by shareholders or investors. 
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 As at the date of this Statement, the Board consists of an Independent Non-Executive Chairman, an Executive Vice 
Chairman, a Group CEO, three (3) Executive Directors and three (3) Independent Non-Executive Directors. A brief profile 
of each Director is presented on Pages 25 to 29 of this annual report. 

 The Non-Executive Directors contribute significantly in areas such as policy and strategy, performance monitoring, 
allocation of resources as well as improving governance and controls. Together with the Executive Directors who have 
in-depth knowledge of the business, the Board constituted of individuals who are committed to business coupled with 
integrity and professionalism in all its activities. 

 The Board has an appropriate mix of relevant skills, knowledge and experience necessary to govern the Company. The 
Non-Executive Directors contribute international and operational experience, and understanding of the financial and 
capital markets as well as legal and secretarial field. 

 The Board is satisfied that the current Board composition provides the appropriate balance and size necessary to promote 
all shareholders’ interests and fairly reflects the interests of minority shareholders in the Company.

 

4.1 Time Commitment

 The Board is satisfied with the level of time commitment given by the Directors towards fulfilling their roles and 
responsibilities as Directors. Meetings for the year are scheduled at the end of the preceding year to enable the 
Directors to plan ahead and ensure that the Board and Board Committees meetings are accounted for in their respective 
schedules. It provides the scheduled dates for meetings of the Board and Board Committees and the AGM, as well as the 
closed periods for dealings in securities by Directors based on the targeted dates of announcements of the Company’s 
quarterly results. The Board meets for both scheduled meetings and on other occasions to deal with urgent matters. Due 
notice is given for all scheduled and additional meetings.

 During the financial year ended 31 December 2016, the Board met on four (4) occasions, where it deliberated upon and 
considered a variety of matters including the financial results, strategic decisions, the business plan and direction of the 
Group. 

 The Board receives documents on matters requiring its consideration prior to and in advance of each meeting. The 
Board papers are comprehensive and encompass both quantitative and qualitative factors so that informed decisions are 
made. At Board meetings, the Chairman encourages constructive and healthy debates, and Directors are free to express 
their views. Any Director who has a direct or deemed interest in the subject matter shall abstain from deliberation and 
voting on the respective resolution. Decisions of the Board are made unanimously or by consensus. All proceedings from 
the Board meetings are minuted and signed by the Chairman of the meeting. 
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4.1 Time Commitment  cont’d

 Procedures are in place for Directors to seek both independent professional advice at the Company’s expense and have 
access to the Company Secretary in order to fulfill their duties and specific responsibilities.

 The Board members are required to notify the Board’s Chairman prior to their acceptance of new directorships in other 
companies notwithstanding that the MMLR allows a Director to sit on the Board of five (5) listed issuers. Such notification 
is expected to include an indication of time that will be spent on the new appointment.

 The details of attendance of each Board member at the Board Meetings held during the tenure of office of the Directors 
for the financial year ended 31 December 2016 are as follows: 

Dato’ Wira (Dr.) Megat Abdul  Rahman Bin Megat Ahmad
Independent Non-Executive Chairman

4/4

Koon Poh Ming
Executive Vice Chairman

4/4

Dato’ Koon Poh Keong
Group CEO

4/4

Koon Poh Weng
Executive Director

3/4

Koon Poh Kong
Executive Director

4/4

Dato’ Koon Poh Tat
Executive Director

4/4

Tan Heng Kui
Senior Independent Non-Executive Director
(Re-designated as Senior Independent Non-Executive Director on 1 September 2016)

4/4

Loo Lean Hock
Independent Non-Executive Director

4/4

Noor Alina Binti Mohamad Faiz 
Independent Non-Executive Director
(Appointed on 18 October 2016)

1/1

Tuan Haji Mohamad Faiz Bin Abdul Hamid
Senior Independent Non-Executive Director
(Resigned on 1 September 2016)

2/3
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4.2 Directors’ training

 The Board, via the Nomination Committee, assesses the training needs of each of its Directors on an annual basis in 
accordance with the Nomination Committee’s Terms of Reference, by determining areas that would best strengthen 
their contributions to the Board. Review of the trainings accomplished by the Directors and determination of the training 
needs of each Director was conducted in February 2017 by the Nomination Committee. From the assessment, the 
Nomination Committee concluded that the Directors have attended adequate trainings enabling them to discharge 
their responsibilities. 

 The Directors have participated in various training programmes, seminars, conferences and briefings in areas of finance, 
tax, corporate governance and risk management, industry and regulatory developments to keep abreast of changes 
in legislations and regulations affecting the Group. All the Directors have completed the Mandatory Accreditation 
Programme (“MAP”) prescribed by Bursa Securities. Puan Noor Alina Binti Mohamad Faiz, who was appointed to the 
Board on 18 October 2016 had attended and completed the MAP on 7 and 8 November 2016.

 Amongst the training programmes, seminars and briefings attended by the Directors during the financial year are as 
follows:- 

 The Senior Management had also briefed the Directors on general economic, industry and technical developments from 
time to time.

 The Directors will continue to attend relevant training courses to further enhance their skills and knowledge to enable 
them to discharge their responsibilities more effectively. 

 The Company Secretaries facilitate the organisation of internal training programmes and keep Directors informed of 
relevant external training programmes. The Company Secretaries also circulate the relevant guidelines on statutory and 
regulatory requirements from time to time for the Board’s reference and brief the Board quarterly on these updates 
at Board meetings. The External Auditors also briefed the Board members on any changes to the Malaysian Financial 
Reporting Standards that affect the Group’s financial statements during the year.

Corporate Governance Statement
Cont’d



65Annual Report ’16

 Financial Reporting

 The Board commits to provide and present a balanced and meaningful assessment of the Group’s financial performance 
and prospects at the end of the financial year, primarily through the annual financial statements and quarterly results to 
shareholders as well as the Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion & Analysis in the Annual Report. 

 The Board is assisted by the Audit Committee to oversee the Group’s financial reporting processes and the quality 
of its financial reporting. The Audit Committee also reviews the annual and interim financial statements, and the 
appropriateness of accounting policies. Timely release of quarterly results announcements, annual financial statements 
and annual report reflects the Board’s commitment to provide transparent and up-to-date disclosures to the public.

 Directors’ responsibility statement in respect of the preparation of the audited financial statements

 The Board is responsible for ensuring that the financial statements of the Group give a true and fair view of the state of 
affairs of the Group and of the Company as at the end of the accounting period and of their results and cash flows for the 
period then ended. In preparing the financial statements, the Directors have ensured that Malaysian Financial Reporting 
Standards (MFRS), International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and the provisions of the Companies Act 2016 in 
Malaysia have been applied with and reasonable and prudent judgement and estimates have been made. 

 In preparing the financial statements, the Directors have selected and applied consistently suitable accounting policies 
and made reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates. 

 The Directors also have a general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the 
assets of the Group and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.

 The Board is satisfied that it has met its obligation to present a balanced and understandable assessment of the Company’s 
position and prospects in the Directors’ Report and the Financial Statements of this annual report.

 Related Party Transactions

 An internal compliance framework exists to ensure that the Group meets its obligations relating to related party 
transactions under the MMLR. The Board, through its Audit Committee, reviews all material related party transactions 
involved. A Director who has an interest in a transaction must abstain from deliberation and voting on the relevant 
resolution in respect of such transaction at the Board and at any general meeting convened to consider such matters.  

 Further details of these transactions are set out in the Recurrent Related Party Transactions’ Circular to Shareholders 
dated 28 April 2017.
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 Key features underlying the relationship of the Audit Committee with the External Auditors are stated in the Audit 
Committee’s Terms of Reference which are available in the Company’s website at www.pressmetal.com. 

 A summary of the activities of the Audit Committee during the year are set out in the Audit Committee Report on Pages 
72 to 73 of the annual report. 

 The External Auditors provide mainly audit-related services to the Company. Due to the strong knowledge of the 
Company, the External Auditors also undertake certain non-audit services such as interim reviews, regulatory reviews 
and reporting, and other services. 

 The Board upholds the integrity of financial reporting by the Company and as such, the External Auditors have confirmed 
to the Board their independence in providing both audit and non-audit services up to the date of this statement. 

 The External Auditors attended two (2) out of four (4) of the Audit Committee meetings held in the first (1st) and fourth 
(4th) quarter of fiscal year 2016 to present their audit plans and audit findings. The Audit Committee also discussed key 
concerns and obtained feedback from the External Auditors on the matter relating to the Company’s affairs during both 
meetings without the presence of the Management. 

 The External Auditors are required to declare their independence annually to the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee 
was satisfied with the External Auditors’ technical competency and audit independence.

 The Board has the ultimate responsibility for reviewing the Company’s risks, approving the risk management framework 
and policy as well as overseeing the Company’s strategic risk management and internal control framework. 

 The Company had in year 2013 adopted the Risk Management Policy. The Board through its Audit Committee reviews 
the key risks identified on a regular basis to ensure, as far as possible, the protection of its assets and its shareholders’ 
investment. 

 
 The key features of the Risk Management framework are set out in the Statement on Risk Management and Internal 

Control of the Company as set out on Pages 76 to 77 of this annual report.

Corporate Governance Statement
Cont’d



67Annual Report ’16

cont’d

 In addition to the outsourced internal audit function, the Board has established an internal audit function within the 
Company, which is led by the Head of Internal Audit who reports directly to the Audit Committee. The representatives of 
both internal audit functions participated in all the four (4) Audit Committee meetings during the fiscal year to highlight 
and discuss significant issues noted. During the meeting, the Audit Committee also reviewed the adequacy, competency 
and suitability of internal audit resources available, and assess whether the scope of internal audit engagement aligns 
with the Company’s risk management profile. 

 The Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control furnished on Pages 76 to 78 of the annual report provides an 
overview on the state of internal controls within the Group, in an effort to manage risk. 

 

 Information Disclosure

 The Board acknowledges the importance to disclose information in a timely manner and will ensure the compliance of 
the disclosure requirements under the MMLR and other applicable laws. 

 Investor Relations and shareholder’ communication

 The Company’s website, www.pressmetal.com provides an avenue for information, such as dedicated sections on 
corporate information, including financial information, share price information, announcements and press releases. The 
website is continuously updated to ensure that the information contained within is current. 

 The Board acknowledges the need for the shareholders to be informed of all material business matters affecting the 
Company. In addition to various announcements made, the timely release of financial results on a quarterly basis provides 
shareholders with an overview of the Group’s performance and operations.
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 The AGM is the principal forum for dialogue with shareholders. Notice of AGM together with a copy of the Company’s 
annual report will be sent to shareholders at least twenty-one (21) days before the meeting. Notice of the AGM is also 
advertised in national circulated daily newspaper. Members of the Board as well as the External Auditors will be present to 
answer questions relevant to the resolution being proposed, the financial performance, business operations or corporate 
governance of the Company and other matters affecting the Company’s shareholders’ interests. 

 Shareholders are encouraged to ask questions both about the resolutions being proposed before putting a resolution to 
vote as well as matters relating to the Group’s operations in general. During the last AGM as well as Extraordinary General 
Meetings (“EGM”) and Court Convened Meetings (“CCM”) held in October 2016 and February 2017 respectively, a 
question and answer session was held where the Chairman invited shareholders and warrantholders to raise questions 
with responses from the Board. All the resolutions set out in the Notice of the Thirtieth AGM were put to vote by show of 
hands and duly passed whilst the resolutions set out in the Notices of EGM and CCM were voted by way of poll in line 
with the MMLR which require all resolutions in general meetings held on or after 1 July 2016 to be voted by poll. The 
outcome of the AGM, EGM and CCM were announced to Bursa Securities on the same meeting day.

 The Board encourages shareholders participation at general meetings. In accordance with the MMLR, all resolutions 
set out in the Company’s Notice of AGM or Notices of Resolutions received, and its related amendments will be subject 
to poll voting. An independent scrutineer would be appointed to validate the votes cast at the general meetings and a 
summary of the key matters discussed at the Company’s AGM will then be posted onto the Company’s website.  
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Additional Compliance Information

 
 There were no material contracts entered into by the Company and its subsidiaries involving interest of Directors, Chief 

Executive and major shareholders during the financial year ended 31 December 2016.

 
 During the financial year ended 31 December 2016, the amount of audit and non-audit fees paid by the Company and 

the Group to the external auditors are as follows:

Group

Audit services rendered 1,438 260

Non-audit services rendered    

(i) Professional services rendered in relation to:

- Proposed Share Split and Bonus Issue 70 70

- Proposed Internal Reorganisation 80 80

(ii) Review of the Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control 20 20

(iii) Appointment as Independent Scrutineer for conduct of poll 15 15

(iv) Review of the Supplementary financial information on the breakdown of 
realised and unrealised retained earnings

5 5

Total 450
  

 The RRPTs of the Group have been entered into in the normal course of business. Further details of the RRPT of a revenue 
or trading nature conducted during the financial year are disclosed in Note 31 to the financial statements on Pages 202 
to 203 of the annual report.   

 Please refer to section 2.2 of the Circular to Shareholders dated 28 April 2017 on the name of the related parties and the 
Company’s relationship with the related parties.
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 During the financial year, the Company did not undertake any corporate proposal to raise proceeds. Instead, the 
Company had undertaken a Bonus Issue on the basis of 2 bonus shares for every 5 shares held after the Share Split in 
November 2016.

 Notwithstanding that, a total of approximately RM24.0 million was raised from the exercise of the Company’s warrants 
during the financial year ended 31 December 2016.  The proceeds were utilised for working capital purposes of the 
Group.
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The Audit Committee comprises three (3) members, all of whom are Independent Non-Executive Directors.

The members of the Audit Committee are as follows:-
 

(Chairman)
Independent Non-Executive Director; Member of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants
- Re-designated as the Chairman of the Audit Committee on 1 September 2016

Senior Independent Non-Executive Director

Independent Non-Executive Director
- Appointed as a member of the Audit Committee on 18 October 2016

Senior Independent Non-Executive Director
- Ceased as the Chairman of the Audit Committee on 1 September 2016

Mr Loo Lean Hock is a Chartered Accountant of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants, a practicing member of Malaysian 
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, Fellow of CPA Australia, associate member of Chartered Tax Institute of Malaysia and 
Malaysian Institute of Management, which is in compliance with Paragraph 15.09(1) of the Main Market Listing Requirements 
(“MMLR”) of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (“Bursa Securities”).

The duties and responsibilities of the Audit Committee are spelt out in the Terms of Reference of the Audit Committee, a copy 
of which is available in the Company’s website at www.pressmetal.com.
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Attendance of Meetings
 
The details of attendance of each member at the Audit Committee meetings held during the financial year ended 31 December 
2016 are as follows:-

Audit Committee Members meetings attended

Loo Lean Hock 4/4

Tan Heng Kui 4/4

Noor Alina Binti Mohamad Faiz 
(Appointed on 18 October 2016)

1/1

Tuan Haji Mohamad Faiz Bin Abdul Hamid 
(Ceased on 1 September 2016)

2/3

 

The activities carried out by the Audit Committee during the financial year were summarised as below:- 
       
1. Ensured that the quarterly financial results of the Group complied with the Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards 

(“MFRS”) and Appendix 9B of the MMLR. To discharge their duties, they reviewed the unaudited quarterly financial results 

2. Reviewed the audited financial statements of the Group and the Company for the financial year ended 31 December 

3. At the meeting held on 25 February 2016, the Audit Committee reviewed and discussed with the External Auditors the 
status of audit for the financial year ended 31 December 2015 including the issues arising from their audit of the annual 

4. Reviewed, discussed and approved the Audit Plan and its scope of work for the financial year ended 31 December 2016 

5. Reviewed and discussed the findings on the internal audit reports which were tabled during the year, the audit 
recommendations as well as the management’s response to these recommendations and the implementation of agreed 

6. Reviewed and approved the Internal Audit Plan for 2016 as tabled by the outsourced Internal Auditors on 25 February 
2016 whilst the Internal Audit Plan for 2016 and 2017 were tabled on 16 August 2016 by the in-house Internal Auditors 
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7. Reviewed and considered any related party transactions and conflict of interest situation that may arise within the 
Company or the Group, including any transactions, procedure or course of conduct that raise questions of management 

9. At the meeting held on 25 February 2016, the Audit Committee reviewed and discussed the following:

(a) Re-appointment of the External Auditors and their audit fee, after taking into consideration the independence, 

(c) Reviewed and discussed with the internal auditors the risk appetite of the Group and evaluated the overall 
effectiveness of the system of internal control of the Group.

10. Met with the External Auditors on 25 February 2016 and 28 October 2016 respectively without the presence of any 

11. Met with the Internal Auditors, both outsourced and in-house on 25 February 2016 and 16 August 2016 respectively 
without the presence of any executive Board members and management of the Group for discussion on internal audit 

12. Reviewed the revised Terms of Reference of Audit Committee at the meetings held on 25 February 2016 and 16 August 

13. Reviewed the Audit Committee Report and Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control prior to their inclusion 

14. Conducted a self-assessment exercise to evaluate its effectiveness in discharging its duties and responsibilities for the 
financial year ended 31 December 2015. 

      
The primary role of the internal audit function is to undertake regular and systematic review of the systems of internal control 
so as to provide sufficient assurance that the Group has sound system of internal control and that established policies and 
procedures are adhered to.
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The Company has established an in-house internal audit team as well as engaging an independent external audit firm to carry 
out the internal audit function for the Group and the Company.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2016, the outsourced Internal Auditors performed operational audits on 
business units of the Group to ascertain the adequacy of the internal control systems and to make recommendations for 
improvement where weaknesses exist in accordance with the risk based internal audit plan approved by the Audit Committee. 
The auditable entity and business process are as follows:

Auditable areas

Press Metal Bintulu Sdn Bhd Plant Security and Safety Management
Procurement and Payment Processing

Press Metal Berhad Management of Information System
General IT Controls 
Data Recovery Plan
Order Processing and Credit Control
Corporate Governance Compliance

Findings from the internal audit reviews, including the recommended corrective actions, were discussed with Management 
and the relevant head of departments prior to present to Audit Committee at their scheduled meetings on a quarterly basis.

The in-house Internal Auditors will then perform follow-up audit. During the year under review, the following follow up reviews 
were conducted to ensure that corrective actions have been implemented on a timely manner:

Auditable areas

Press Metal Sarawak Sdn Bhd Sales and Marketing
Quality Assurance and Quality Control Management
Environment Health and Safety Management
Human Resource Management
Scrap Management

Press Metal Bintulu Sdn Bhd Sales and Marketing
Production on Anode Rodding
Maintenance Management
Quality Assurance and Quality Control Management
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The in-house Internal Auditors will then perform follow-up audit. During the year under review, the following follow up reviews 
were conducted to ensure that corrective actions have been implemented on a timely manner:  

Auditable areas

Press Metal International Ltd. Production Management

Press Metal Glomag Precision Co. Ltd. Production Management
Account and Finance
Account Receivables
Account Payable

The total cost incurred for the internal audit function of the Group for the financial year ended 31 December 2016 was 
RM320,000 (2015: RM345,000).
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Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control 

In accordance with Paragraph 15.26(b) of the Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad, the 
Board of Directors of public listed companies are required to include in their annual report a statement about the state of risk 
management and internal control of the listed issuer as a group. The Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance requires listed 
companies to maintain a sound system of internal control to safeguard shareholders’ investments and the group’s assets. Set 
out below is the Board’s Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control, which has been prepared in accordance with the 
“Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control: Guidelines for Directors of Listed Issuers” (the “Guidelines”).

The Board is committed to maintaining both a sound system of risk management and internal control and the proper 
management of risks throughout the operations of the Group in order to safeguard shareholders’ investments and assets of 
the Group. The Board acknowledges that it is ultimately responsible for the Group’s system of internal control including the 
establishment of an appropriate control environment and framework, which encompass financial, operational and compliance 
controls, and risk management. 

The Board is responsible in identifying, evaluating and managing the significant risks of the Group, as well as reviewing the 
adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management and internal control system on an ongoing basis. This process has been 
in place for the financial year under review and up to the date of approval of this statement for inclusion in the annual report.

The Board believes the risk management and internal control system in place are adequate and effective to manage the risk 
of the Group. Nevertheless, it should be noted that due to the inherent limitations in any system, such systems are designed to 
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives. In addition, it should be noted that any system 
can provide only reasonable, but not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.
 

The Board delegates the responsibility of monitoring the system of risk management and internal control to the Audit 
Committee. For the current financial year, both the outsourced internal auditors and in-house internal auditors assisted 
the Audit Committee to fulfill its responsibilities by conducting internal audits in accordance with audit plans reviewed 
and approved by the Audit Committee. A risk-based approach is adopted via the development of internal audit policies, 
establishment of annual audit plans, audit work processes and audit work reporting. 

During the year, the outsourced internal auditors conducted three (3) audits covering six (6) business functions and the in-
house internal auditors conducted seven (7) audits covering eighteen (18) business functions. The internal auditors also 
conducted follow up reviews on the implementation status of action plans previously agreed by management. 

The results of the internal audits and recommendations for improvement co-developed with management were tabled at 
the Audit Committee meetings for discussion and assessment. Key and significant issues were reported to the Board by the 
Chairman of the Audit Committee for further deliberation. 
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Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control 

Cont’d

cont’d

The Audit Committee reviewed the adequacy of the scope, functions, competency and resources of the internal audit function 
to ascertain its effectiveness in discharging duties assigned. The details on the Internal Audit function are further explained on 
pages 73 to 75 of this annual report.

A few internal control weaknesses were identified during the period, all of which have been, or are being addressed. None of 
these weaknesses resulted in any material errors, losses, contingencies or uncertainties that would warrant a disclosure in the 
Group’s annual report. 

Apart from risk management and internal audit, the other key elements of the Group’s internal control system are described 
below:

Press Metal Berhad ISO 9001:2008 on Quality Management Systems
ISO 14001:2004 on Environmental Management Systems
BS OHSAS 18001:2007 on Occupational Health and Safety Management 

Press Metal International Limited ISO 9001:2008 on Quality Management Systems
ISO 14001:2004/Cor 1:2009 on Environmental Management Systems
BS OHSAS 18001:2007 on Occupational Health and Safety Management

Press Metal Sarawak Sdn. Bhd. ISO 9001:2008 on Quality Management Systems
ISO 14001:2004 on Environmental Management  Systems
BS OHSAS 18001:2007 on Occupational Health and Safety Management

Press Metal Bintulu Sdn. Bhd. ISO 9001:2008 on Quality Management Systems

Press Metal International Technology Ltd. ISO/TS 16949:2009 on Quality Management System
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Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control 
Cont’d

cont’d

Apart from risk management and internal audit, the other key elements of the Group’s internal control system are described 
below:  cont’d

key performance indicators, such as cash flow performance, product sales analysis and operating cost analysis. These 

Committee and Remuneration Committee.

In line with the Guidelines, the Group Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have provided assurance to the Board 
stating that the Group’s risk management and internal control system has operated adequately and effectively, in all material 
aspects, to meet the Group’s objectives during the financial year under review.

The external auditors have reviewed this Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control pursuant to the scope set out in 
Recommended Practice Guide (“RPG”) 5 (Revised 2015), Guidance for Auditors on Engagements to Report on the Statement 
on Risk Management and Internal Control included in the annual report issued by the Malaysian Institute of Accountants (“MIA”) 
for inclusion in the annual report of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016, and reported to the Board that nothing 
has come to their attention that cause them to believe that the statement intended to be included in the annual report of the 
Group, in all material respects:

a) has not been prepared in accordance with the disclosures required by paragraphs 41 and 42 of the Statement on Risk 
Management and Internal Control: Guidelines for Directors of Listed Issuers, or

b) is factually inaccurate.

RPG 5 (Revised 2015) does not require the external auditors to consider whether the Directors’ Statement on Risk Management 
and Internal Control covers all risks and controls, or to form an opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s risk 
management and internal control system including the assessment and opinion by the Board of Directors and management 
thereon. The auditors are also not required to consider whether the processes described to deal with material internal control 
aspects of any significant problems disclosed in the annual report will, in fact, remedy the problems.
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Directors’ Report
for the year ended 31 December 2016

Directors’ Report
for the year ended 31 December 2016

The Directors have pleasure in submitting their report and the audited financial statements of the Group and of the 
Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2016. 

Principal activities 

The Company is principally engaged in the manufacturing and trading of aluminium products and investment holding 
activities, whilst the principal activities of the subsidiaries are as stated in Note 6 to the financial statements. There has been 
no significant change in the nature of these activities during the financial year.

Subsidiaries

The details of the Company’s subsidiaries are disclosed in Note 6 to the financial statements.

Results

Group Company

RM’000 RM’000

Profit for the year attributable to:

Owners of the Company 483,572 151,797

Non-controlling interests 122,198 -

605,770 151,797

Reserves and provisions

There were no material transfers to or from reserves and provisions during the financial year under review except as 
disclosed in the financial statements.
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Directors’ Report

for the year ended 31 December 2016
Cont’d

Dividends

Since the end of the previous financial year, the amount of dividends paid by the Company were as follows: 

i)  In respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2015 as reported in the Directors’ Report of that year: 

ii)  In respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2016: 

2016 and paid on 20 September 2016.

2016 and paid on 25 November 2016.

Subsequent to the end of the current financial year, the Directors declared a fourth interim ordinary dividend of 1.5 sen 

under review.

Directors of the Company 

Directors who served during the financial year until the date of this report are:

 Dato’ Koon Poh Keong

 Dato’ Koon Poh Tat
 Koon Poh Kong
 Koon Poh Weng
 Loo Lean Hock 
 Tan Heng Kui
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Directors’ interests in shares

The interests and deemed interests in the shares and warrants of the Company and of its related corporations (other 
than wholly owned subsidiaries) of those who were Directors at financial year end (including the interests of the spouses 
or children of the Directors who themselves are not Directors of the Company) as recorded in the Register of Directors’ 
Shareholdings are as follows:

 Number of ordinary shares

At
1.1.2016  Bought 

Bonus issue/
Share split Sold

At
31.12.2016

Interests in the Company:

 
- 100,000 180,000 - 280,000

Dato’ Koon Poh Keong

- own 220,663,812 2,000,000 400,794,860 - 623,458,672

- spouse 27,179,400 - 48,922,920 - 76,102,320

- own 55,666,878 - 100,200,380 - 155,867,258

- spouse 25,200,000 - 45,360,000 - 70,560,000

Dato’ Koon Poh Tat

- own 32,830,600 - 59,095,080 - 91,925,680

- spouse 1,238,760 - 2,229,768 - 3,468,528

Koon Poh Kong

- own 23,482,388 - 42,268,298 - 65,750,686

- spouse 292,900 106,000 718,020 - 1,116,920

Koon Poh Weng

- own 43,842,096 - 78,915,772 - 122,757,868

- spouse 19,418,600 20,000 34,953,480 - 54,392,080

- child 15,600 - 28,080 - 43,680

Tan Heng Kui 212,300 - 382,140 - 594,440

Directors’ Report
for the year ended 31 December 2016
Cont’d
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Directors’ interests in shares  cont’d

 Number of ordinary shares

At
1.1.2016  Bought 

Bonus issue/
Share split Sold

At
31.12.2016

Deemed interests in the Company:

Dato’ Koon Poh Keong * 319,575,756 - 575,236,359 - 894,812,115

319,575,756 - 575,236,359 - 894,812,115

* Deemed interested by virtue of the Directors’ interests in Alpha Milestone Sdn. Bhd.

 Number of warrants

At
1.1.2016 Bought

Bonus issue/
Share split Sold

At
31.12.2016

Interests in the Company:

- spouse 2,000,000 - - (2,000,000) -

Dato’ Koon Poh Tat

- spouse 266,348 - 479,426 - 745,774

Koon Poh Kong

- spouse 106,000 - - (106,000) -

Koon Poh Weng

- spouse 380,000 - 684,000 - 1,064,000

- child 4,000 - 7,200 - 11,200

Tan Heng Kui 74,000 - 133,200 - 207,200

Deemed interests in the Company:

Dato’ Koon Poh Keong * 80,639,720 - 145,151,495  - 225,791,215
* 80,639,720 - 145,151,495 - 225,791,215

* Deemed interested by virtue of the Directors’ interests in Alpha Milestone Sdn. Bhd.

Directors’ Report
for the year ended 31 December 2016

Cont’d
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Directors’ interests in shares  cont’d

in the shares and warrants of the Company and of its related corporations (other than wholly owned subsidiaries) shall be 
treated as the interests of the Directors also.

Poh Kong and Koon Poh Weng are also deemed interested in the shares of the subsidiaries during the financial year to the 

None of the other Directors holding office at 31 December 2016 had any interest in the shares and warrants of the 
Company and of its related corporations during the financial year.

Directors’ benefits

Since the end of the previous financial year, no Director of the Company has received nor become entitled to receive any 
benefit (other than those fees and other benefits included in the aggregate amount of remuneration received or due and 
receivable by Directors as shown in the financial statements or the fixed salary of a full time employee of the Company or of 
related corporations) by reason of a contract made by the Company or a related corporation with the Director or with a firm 
of which the Director is a member, or with a company in which the Director has a substantial financial interest, other than a 
Director who received rental income from a company in the Group in the ordinary course of business as disclosed in Note 
31 to the financial statements.

There were no arrangements during and at the end of the financial year which had the object of enabling Directors of the 
Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body 
corporate apart from the issue of warrants by the Company.

Issue of shares and debentures

During the financial year, the Company increased its authorised share capital from 2,000,000,000 ordinary shares to 
8,000,000,000 ordinary shares.

During the financial year, the Company issued:

b) 1,054,157,000 new ordinary shares arising from the bonus issue on the basis of 2 bonus shares for every existing 5 
shares held.

c) 27,204,000 new ordinary shares arising from the exercise of warrants.

Directors’ Report
for the year ended 31 December 2016
Cont’d
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Issue of shares and debentures  cont’d

There were no other changes in the authorised, issued and paid-up capital of the Company during the financial year. 

There were no debentures issued during the financial year. The redeemable cumulative secured loan stocks (“RCSLS”) have 
been fully redeemed by the Company or converted into ordinary shares by the holders in the previous financial year.

Options granted over unissued shares 

No options were granted to any person to take up unissued shares of the Company during the financial year apart from the 
issue of warrants by the Company pursuant to the share split and bonus issue of the ordinary shares of the Company.

Warrants

The warrants are in registered form and constituted by a deed poll. The registered holders are entitled to subscribe for one 

ordinary shares of the Company during the financial year) per ordinary share for every warrant held. The conversion ratio 
is subject to the aforesaid deed poll and can be exercised at any time during the eight-year subscription period up to 22 

Indemnity and insurance costs 

During the financial year, the total amount of indemnity sum insured and premium paid for Directors of the Group and of 

and auditors of the Group and of the Company.

Qualification of subsidiaries’ financial statements
 
The auditors’ report on the audit of the financial statements of Company’s subsidiaries did not contain any qualification.

Directors’ Report
for the year ended 31 December 2016

Cont’d
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Other statutory information 

Before the financial statements of the Group and of the Company were made out, the Directors took reasonable steps to 
ascertain that: 

i) all known bad debts have been written off and adequate provision made for doubtful debts, and

ii) any current assets which were unlikely to be realised in the ordinary course of business have been written down to an 
amount which they might be expected so to realise.

i) that would render the amount written off for bad debts or the amount of the provision for doubtful debts in the Group 
and in the Company inadequate to any substantial extent, or 

ii) that would render the value attributed to the current assets in the financial statements of the Group and of the 
Company misleading, or  

iii) which have arisen which render adherence to the existing method of valuation of assets or liabilities of the Group and 
of the Company misleading or inappropriate, or

iv) not otherwise dealt with in this report or the financial statements that would render any amount stated in the financial 
statements of the Group and of the Company misleading.

i) any charge on the assets of the Group or of the Company that has arisen since the end of the financial year and which 
secures the liabilities of any other person, or 

ii) any contingent liability in respect of the Group or of the Company that has arisen since the end of the financial year. 

No contingent liability or other liability of any company in the Group has become enforceable, or is likely to become 
enforceable within the period of twelve months after the end of the financial year which, in the opinion of the Directors, will 
or may substantially affect the ability of the Group and of the Company to meet their obligations as and when they fall due. 

In the opinion of the Directors, except for the impairment loss on property, plant and equipment and amounts due from 
subsidiaries, insurance claims received and realised derivative gain as disclosed in Note 21 to the financial statements, the 
financial performance of the Group and of the Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2016 have not been 
substantially affected by any item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature nor has any such item, transaction 
or event occurred in the interval between the end of that financial year and the date of this report.

Directors’ Report
for the year ended 31 December 2016
Cont’d
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Significant events

The subsidiary was unable to operate its smelting plant for the next few months. Plant and machinery of approximately 

Court (“the Court”). The insurer subsequently entered appearance and an application for stay of proceedings to refer 
the matter for arbitration. 

 In June 2014, the Court allowed the insurer’s application for stay of proceedings for reference of the matter for 

stay of proceedings for reference of the matter for arbitration.

and commencement of arbitration.

subsidiary was unable to operate its smelting plant for the next few months. Plant and machinery of approximately 

owned subsidiary of the Company.

Directors’ Report
for the year ended 31 December 2016

Cont’d
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Subsequent event

approval of its shareholders and warrant holders for the below proposals:

(c) Proposed assumption of the listing status of the Company by Newco and the admission of Newco to and withdrawal 

Auditors 

willingness to accept re-appointment.

The auditors’ remuneration is disclosed in Note 21 to the financial statements.

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors in accordance with a resolution of the Directors:

Dato’ Koon Poh Keong      Dato’ Koon Poh Tat

Petaling Jaya, Selangor

Directors’ Report
for the year ended 31 December 2016
Cont’d
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 Group  Company

Note 2016 2015 2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Assets

 Property, plant and equipment 3 5,186,244 5,194,390 114,578 126,259

 Investment properties 4 9,797 6,335 3,375 -

 Goodwill 5 10,497 10,497 - -

 Investments in subsidiaries 6 - - 1,254,124 1,237,083

 Investment in an associate 7 44,023 41,637 11,812 11,812

 Other investments 8 1,803 1,803 750 750

 Deferred tax assets 9 67,933 99,434 - -

Total non-current assets 5,320,297 5,354,096 1,384,639 1,375,904

 Inventories 10 1,011,299 869,889 51,461 47,381

 Other investments 8 26,000 - - -

 Trade and other receivables 11 885,283 731,320 886,316 699,647

Prepayments 12 27,611 77,441 1,004 1,127

 Current tax assets 749 7,783 167 7,158

 Derivative financial assets 13 52,918 28,408 - -

 Cash and cash equivalents 14 377,679 305,120 11,159 21,300

Total current assets 2,381,539 2,019,961 950,107 776,613

Total assets 7,701,836 7,374,057 2,334,746 2,152,517

Equity

 Share capital 924,473 649,416 924,473 649,416

 Share premium 1,889 83,816 1,889 83,816

 Reserves (175,164) (66,734) 29,503 34,795

 Retained earnings 1,455,096 1,272,659 72,680 219,423

Equity attributable to owners of the Company 15 2,206,294 1,939,157 1,028,545 987,450

Non-controlling interests 510,048 428,560 - -

Total equity 2,716,342 2,367,717 1,028,545 987,450

Statements of Financial Position
as at 31 December 2016

as at 31 December 2016
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 Group  Company

Note 2016 2015 2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Liabilities

 Loans and borrowings 16 1,780,161 1,989,882 4,599 5,021

 Deferred tax liabilities 9 144,501 129,277 17,023 17,023

Total non-current liabilities 1,924,662 2,119,159 21,622 22,044

 Trade and other payables 17 1,325,688 1,455,420 1,263,484 1,065,422

 Loans and borrowings 16 1,602,139 1,424,869 21,095 77,601

 Current tax liabilities 4,693 2,480 - -

 Derivative financial liabilities 13 128,312 4,412 - -

Total current liabilities 3,060,832 2,887,181 1,284,579 1,143,023

Total liabilities 4,985,494 5,006,340 1,306,201 1,165,067

Total equity and liabilities 7,701,836 7,374,057 2,334,746 2,152,517

The notes on pages 100 to 205 are an integral part of these financial statements.

as at 31 December 2016
Cont’d
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 Group  Company

Note 2016 2015 2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Revenue 18 6,649,451 4,321,271 995,205 841,132
Cost of sales (5,590,417) (3,584,043) (765,145) (759,270)

Gross profit 1,059,034 737,228 230,060 81,862
Other income 201,686 196,492 59,329 52,102
Distribution expenses (132,092) (96,216) (13,354) (11,195)

(158,158) (137,202) (31,919) (19,058)
Other expenses (142,297) (374,668) (64,399) (47,642)

Results from operating activities 828,173 325,634 179,717 56,069

19 3,987 1,928 - 3,189

20 (160,298) (97,726) (18,105) (23,796)

Net finance costs (156,311) (95,798) (18,105) (20,607)
Share of profit of an equity-accounted associate,  

net of tax 2,970 2,140 - -

Profit before tax 21 674,832 231,976 161,612 35,462
Tax expense 22 (69,062) (71,007) (9,815) (4,539)

Profit for the year 605,770 160,969 151,797 30,923

Other comprehensive expense, net of tax
Items that are or may be reclassified subsequently 

to profit or loss
Cash flow hedge (102,842) (187,239) - -

operations: (20,336) 28,319 - -

 - (Losses)/Gains arising during the year (20,826) 26,391 - -

 - Share of gain of an equity-accounted associate 490 1,928 - -

Other comprehensive expense for the year,  
net of tax (123,178) (158,920) - -

Total comprehensive income for the year 482,592 2,049 151,797 30,923

Statements of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 December 2016

Statements of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 December 2016
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 Group  Company

Note 2016 2015 2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Profit attributable to:

 Owners of the Company 483,572 132,345 151,797 30,923

 Non-controlling interests 122,198 28,624 - -

Profit for the year 605,770 160,969 151,797 30,923

Total comprehensive income attributable to:

 Owners of the Company 380,434 10,447 151,797 30,923

 Non-controlling interests 102,158 (8,398) - -

Total comprehensive income for the year 482,592 2,049 151,797 30,923

2016 2015
Restated

Basic earnings per ordinary share (sen) 23 13.22 3.71

Diluted earnings per ordinary share (sen) 23 12.43 3.48

Statements of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 December 2016
Cont’d

The notes on pages 100 to 205 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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 Attributable to owners of the Company 

Non-
controlling

interests
Total

equity

 Non-distributable Distributable

Group Note
Share

capital
Share

premium
Translation

reserve
Hedging

reserve
RCSLS

reserve
Warrants

reserve
Retained
earnings Total

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

At 1 January 2015 550,397 4,164 20,369 - 8,766 36,113 1,256,922 1,876,731 304,042 2,180,773

Cash flow hedge - - - (149,791) - - - (149,791) (37,448) (187,239)

differences for foreign 
operations:

 - Gains arising during the
 year - - 25,965 - - - - 25,965 426 26,391

 - Share of gain of an 
 equity-accounted 
 associate - - 1,928 - - - - 1,928 - 1,928

Total other comprehensive 
expense for the year - - 27,893 (149,791) - - - (121,898) (37,022) (158,920)

Profit for the year - - - - - - 132,345 132,345 28,624 160,969

Total comprehensive 
income for the year - - 27,893 (149,791) - - 132,345 10,447 (8,398) 2,049

Contributions by and 
distributions to owners of 
the Company

Issue of ordinary shares:

- Conversion of RCSLS 15 96,300 75,181 - - (8,669) - - 162,812 - 162,812

15 2,719 4,471 - - - (1,318) - 5,872 - 5,872

Dividends to owners of the 
Company 24 - - - - - - (116,705) (116,705) - (116,705)

Subscription of additional 
interest in a subsidiary - - - - - - - - 132,916 132,916

Total transactions with 
owners of the Company 99,019 79,652 - - (8,669) (1,318) (116,705) 51,979 132,916 184,895

Transfer to retained 
earnings on redemption 
of RCSLS - - - - (97) - 97 - - -

At 31 December 2015 649,416 83,816 48,262 (149,791) - 34,795 1,272,659 1,939,157 428,560 2,367,717

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 31 December 2016

for the year ended 31 December 2016
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for the year ended 31 December 2016
Cont’d

 Attributable to owners of the Company 

Non-
controlling

interests
Total

equity

 Non-distributable Distributable

Group Note
Share

capital
Share

premium
Translation

reserve
Hedging

reserve
RCSLS

reserve
Warrants

reserve
Retained
earnings Total

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

At 1 January 2016 649,416 83,816 48,262 (149,791) - 34,795 1,272,659 1,939,157 428,560 2,367,717

Cash flow hedge - - - (82,274) - - - (82,274) (20,568) (102,842)

differences for foreign 
operations:
- Losses arising during 

the year - - (21,354) - - - - (21,354) 528 (20,826)
- Share of gain of an 

equity-accounted 
associate - - 490 - - - - 490 - 490

Total other comprehensive 
expense for the year - - (20,864) (82,274) - - - (103,138) (20,040) (123,178)

Profit for the year - - - - - - 483,572 483,572 122,198 605,770

Total comprehensive 
income for the year - - (20,864) (82,274) - - 483,572 380,434 102,158 482,592

Contributions by and 
distributions to owners of 
the Company

Issue of ordinary shares:

- Bonus issue 15 263,539 (99,705) - - - - (163,834) - - -
15 11,518 17,778 - - - (5,292) - 24,004 - 24,004

Dividends to owners of the 
Company 24 - - - - - - (134,706) (134,706) - (134,706)

Dividends to  
non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - (20,000) (20,000)

interests in a subsidiary 
from non-controlling 
interests 32 - - - - - - (2,595) (2,595) (670) (3,265)

Total transactions with 
owners of the 

 Company 275,057 (81,927) - - - (5,292) (301,135) (113,297) (20,670) (133,967)

At 31 December 2016 924,473 1,889 27,398 (232,065) - 29,503 1,455,096 2,206,294 510,048 2,716,342

The notes on pages 100 to 205 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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 Non-distributable Distributable

Company Note
Share

capital
Share

premium
RCSLS

reserve
Warrants

reserve
Retained
earnings

Total
equity

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

At 1 January 2015 550,397 4,164 8,766 36,113 305,108 904,548

Profit and total comprehensive income  
for the year - - - - 30,923 30,923

Contributions by and distributions to  
owners of the Company

Issue of ordinary shares:

- Conversion of RCSLS 15 96,300 75,181 (8,669) - - 162,812

15 2,719 4,471 - (1,318) - 5,872

Dividends to owners of the Company 24 - - - - (116,705) (116,705)

Total transactions with owners of the 
Company 99,019 79,652 (8,669) (1,318) (116,705) 51,979

Transfer to retained earnings on redemption 
of RCSLS - - (97) - 97 -

At 31 December 2015/1 January 2016 649,416 83,816 - 34,795 219,423 987,450

Profit and total comprehensive income  
for the year - - - - 151,797 151,797

Contributions by and distributions to owners 
of the Company

Issue of ordinary shares:

- Bonus issue 15 263,539 (99,705) - - (163,834) -

15 11,518 17,778 - (5,292) - 24,004

Dividends to owners of the Company 24 - - - - (134,706) (134,706)

Total transactions with owners of the 
Company 275,057 (81,927) - (5,292) (298,540) (110,702)

At 31 December 2016 924,473 1,889 - 29,503 72,680 1,028,545

Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 31 December 2016

for the year ended 31 December 2016

The notes on pages 100 to 205 are an integral part of these financial statements.



96 Press Metal Berhad 153208 W

 Group  Company

2016 2015 2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit before tax 674,832 231,976 161,612 35,462

Adjustments for:

Depreciation of investment properties 72 42 34 -

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 365,115 257,381 14,668 16,694

Dividend income - - (173,634) (34,099)

23,996 (15,502) - 1,091

160,298 97,726 18,105 23,796

(3,987) (1,928) - (3,189)

Impairment loss on amounts due from subsidiaries - - 64,334 -

Impairment loss on investment properties - 200 - -

Impairment loss on investments in subsidiaries - - - 14,883

Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment 30,000 - - -

Loss/(Gain) on disposal of property, plant and 
equipment 733 491 (127) (64)

Property, plant and equipment written off 16,338 54,632 78 -

Reversal of impairment loss on amounts due from 
subsidiaries - - (558) (34,334)

Reversal of impairment loss on investments in 
subsidiaries - - (13,776) -

Share of profit of an equity-accounted associate,  
net of tax (2,970) (2,140) - -

Unrealised foreign exchange loss/(gain) 42,344 60,113 (9,635) 27,888

Operating profit before changes in working capital 1,306,771 682,991 61,101 48,128

Statements of Cash Flows
for the year ended 31 December 2016

for the year ended 31 December 2016
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 Group  Company

2016 2015 2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Operating profit before changes in working capital  
(cont’d) 1,306,771 682,991 61,101 48,128

Change in inventories (141,410) (314,703) (4,080) (10,070)

Change in trade and other payables (119,310) 692,225 616,139 58,607

Change in trade and other receivables and prepayments (97,708) (76,705) 66,153 100,646

Cash generated from operations 948,343 983,808 739,313 197,311

Tax paid (12,088) (16,550) (2,966) (6,084)

Tax refunded 142 - 142 -

Net cash from operating activities 936,397 967,258 736,489 191,227

Cash flows from investing activities

(3,265) - - -

(3,534) (502) (3,409) -

(26,000) - - -

(424,753) (1,814,318) (3,519) (5,208)

Dividends received from a subsidiary - - - 33,240

Dividends received from an associate 1,074 859 1,074 859

Increase in investments in subsidiaries - - (3,265) (531,665)

Interest received from fixed deposits 3,987 1,928 - -

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and 
equipment 1,228 416 781 168

Subscription of additional interest in a subsidiary by 
non-controlling interests holder - 132,916 - -

Net cash used in investing activities (451,263) (1,678,701) (8,338) (502,606)

for the year ended 31 December 2016
Cont’d
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 Group  Company

2016 2015 2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Cash flows from financing activities

Change in pledged deposits (14,730) (40,453) - -

(Decrease)/Increase in amounts due to subsidiaries - - (411,357) 338,581

Dividends paid to non-controlling interests of a 
subsidiary (20,000) - - -

Dividends paid to owners of the Company (134,706) (116,705) (134,706) (116,705)

Drawdown/(Repayment) of bankers’ acceptances 122,023 (114,142) (58,238) (85,457)

Increase in amount due from an associate (7) (386) - -

Increase/(Decrease) in amount due to an associate 410 (1,365) (10) 10

(Increase)/Decrease in amounts due from subsidiaries - - (138,688) 169,756

Interest paid on loans and borrowings (144,853) (96,435) (18,105) (23,796)

Interest received from loan to a subsidiary - - - 3,189

Proceeds from issue of shares via exercise of warrants 24,004 5,872 24,004 5,872

Redemption of RCSLS - (1,319) - (1,319)

(Repayment)/Drawdown of bank loans (152,507) 1,049,905 (528) (6,748)

Repayment of finance lease liabilities (16,474) (14,420) (1,261) (1,302)

Repayment of revolving credits (73,368) (49,016) - -

Net cash (used in)/from financing activities (410,208) 621,536 (738,889) 282,081

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 74,926 (89,907) (10,738) (29,298)

(19,543) (1,137) (2,220) -

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 227,421 318,465 21,300 50,598

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 282,804 227,421 8,342 21,300

for the year ended 31 December 2016
Cont’d
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Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents included in the statements of cash flows comprise the following statements of financial position 
amounts:

 Group  Company

Note 2016 2015 2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Deposits 14 106,646 138,007 3,173 455

Less: Pledged deposits 14 (90,940) (76,210) - -

15,706 61,797 3,173 455

Cash and bank balances 14 271,033 167,113 7,986 20,845

Bank overdrafts 16 (3,935) (1,489) (2,817) -

282,804 227,421 8,342 21,300

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment

During the financial year, the Group and the Company acquired property, plant and equipment with an aggregate cost 

Subscription of shares

balance due from the subsidiary.

for the year ended 31 December 2016
Cont’d

The notes on pages 100 to 205 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Company are as follows:

Principal place of business
Lot 6464 Batu 5 ¾
Jalan Kapar, Sementa
42100 Klang

Registered office
Lot 6.05, Level 6

47800 Petaling Jaya

The consolidated financial statements of the Company as at and for the financial year ended 31 December 2016 comprise 
the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group” and individually referred to as “Group entities”) and 
the Group’s interest in an associate. The financial statements of the Company as at and for the financial year ended 31 
December 2016 do not include other entities.

The Company is principally engaged in the manufacturing and trading of aluminium products and investment holding 
activities, whilst the principal activities of the subsidiaries are as stated in Note 6.

1. Basis of preparation 

 (a) Statement of compliance

  The following are accounting standards, amendments and interpretations that have been issued by the 

  MFRSs, Interpretations and amendments effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017
 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities (Annual Improvements to MFRS 

Standards 2014-2016 Cycle)
Statement of Cash Flows – Disclosure Initiative
Income Taxes – Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses

Notes to the Financial Statements
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Cont’d

1. Basis of preparation  cont’d

 (a) Statement of compliance  cont’d

  MFRSs, Interpretations and amendments effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018
Financial Instruments (2014)

Revenue from Contracts with Customers
Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration
First-time Adoption of Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards (Annual 

Improvements to MFRS Standards 2014-2016 Cycle)
Share-based Payment – Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment 

Transactions
Insurance Contracts – Applying MFRS 9 Financial Instruments with MFRS 4 

Insurance Contracts
Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures (Annual Improvements to MFRS 

Standards 2014-2016 Cycle)
 Investment Property – Transfers of Investment Property

  MFRSs, Interpretations and amendments effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019
, Leases

  MFRSs, Interpretations and amendments effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date yet to be 
confirmed

 Consolidated Financial Statements , Investments in Associates and 
Joint Ventures – Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

  
  The Group and the Company plan to apply the abovementioned accounting standards, amendments and 

interpretations:

and interpretation that are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, except for 

annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.
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1. Basis of preparation  cont’d

 (a) Statement of compliance  cont’d

  The initial application of the accounting standards, amendments or interpretations is not expected to have any 
material financial impact to the current period and prior period financial statements of the Group and of the 
Company except as mentioned below:

  (i) MFRS 9, Financial Instruments

Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement on the 
classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities, and on hedge accounting.

  (ii) MFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Construction Contracts Revenue, IC Interpretation 
13, Customer Loyalty Programmes, IC Interpretation 15, Agreements for Construction of Real Estate, 
IC Interpretation 18, Transfers of Assets from Customers and IC Interpretation 131, Revenue – Barter 
Transactions Involving Advertising Services.

  (iii) MFRS 16, Leases

Leases, IC Interpretation 4, Determining whether an 
Arrangement contains a Lease, IC Interpretation 115, Operating Leases – Incentives and IC Interpretation 
127, Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease.

 (b) Basis of measurement

  The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis other than as disclosed in Note 2 and 
on the assumption that the Group and the Company are going concerns.

  The Group and the Company have prepared their financial statements by applying the going concern 
assumption, notwithstanding that as of 31 December 2016, the Group’s and the Company’s current liabilities 

existence of a material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt about the Group’s and the Company’s ability 
to continue as going concerns. 
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1. Basis of preparation  cont’d

 (b) Basis of measurement  cont’d

  The Directors have prepared and considered prospective financial information derived based on assumptions 
and events that may occur in the next twelve months and the possible actions to be taken by the Group. 
Prospective financial information includes the Group’s profit and cash flow forecasts. 

  The Group expects, at the minimum, to achieve the following:

  (ii) the Group will successfully obtain continuous short term credit facilities from its bankers, which include 

2016.

the Group will not successfully achieve the above action plans/activities, which will enable profitable subsidiaries 

to the recoverability and classification of recorded asset amounts and classification of liabilities that would be 
required should the going concern basis prove to be invalid.

 (c) Functional and presentation currency

stated.

 (d) Use of estimates and judgements

estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, 

recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.
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1. Basis of preparation  cont’d

 (d) Use of estimates and judgements  cont’d

  There are no significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgements in applying accounting policies 
that have significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements other than those disclosed in 
the following notes:

2. Significant accounting policies

 The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to the periods presented in these financial 
statements and have been applied consistently by Group entities, unless otherwise stated.

 (a) Basis of consolidation

  (i) Subsidiaries

   Subsidiaries are entities, including structured entities, controlled by the Company. The financial statements 
of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date that control commences 
until the date that control ceases. 

   The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with 
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. Potential voting rights 
are considered when assessing control only when such rights are substantive. The Group also considers 
it has de facto power over an investee when, despite not having the majority of voting rights, it has the 
current ability to direct the activities of the investee that significantly affect the investee’s return.

   Investments in subsidiaries are measured in the Company’s statement of financial position at cost less any 
impairment losses, unless the investment is classified as held for sale or distribution. The cost of investment 
includes transaction costs. 

  (ii) Business combinations

   Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method from the acquisition date, which is 
the date on which control is transferred to the Group.

Cont’d
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2. Significant accounting policies  cont’d

 (a) Basis of consolidation  cont’d

  (ii) Business combinations  cont’d

assumed.

   When the excess is negative, a bargain purchase gain is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

acquiree either at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets at the 
acquisition date.

   Transaction costs, other than those associated with the issue of debt or equity securities, that the Group 
incurs in connection with a business combination are expensed as incurred.

(iii) Acquisitions of non-controlling interests

   The Group accounts for all changes in its ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of 

between the Group’s share of net assets before and after the change, and any consideration received or 
paid, is adjusted to or against Group reserves. 

  (iv) Loss of control

   Upon the loss of control of a subsidiary, the Group derecognises the assets and liabilities of the former 
subsidiary, any non-controlling interests and the other components of equity related to the former 

of control is recognised in profit or loss. If the Group retains any interest in the former subsidiary, then 
such interest is measured at fair value at the date that control is lost. Subsequently, it is accounted for as 
an equity-accounted investee or as an available-for-sale financial asset depending on the level of influence 
retained. 

Cont’d
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2. Significant accounting policies  cont’d

 (a) Basis of consolidation  cont’d

(v) Associates

not control, over the financial and operating policies.

 Investment in an associate is accounted for in the consolidated financial statements using the equity 
method less any impairment losses, unless it is classified as held for sale or distribution. The cost of the 
investment includes transaction costs. The consolidated financial statements include the Group’s share of 
the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the associate, after adjustments if any, to align the 
accounting policies with those of the Group, from the date that significant influence commences until the 
date that significant influence ceases.

 When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in an associate, the carrying amount of that 

discontinued except to the extent that the Group has an obligation or has made payments on behalf of the 
associate.

 When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an associate, any retained interest in the former 
associate at the date when significant influence is lost is measured at fair value and this amount is regarded 
as the initial carrying amount of a financial asset. The difference between the fair value of any retained 
interest plus proceeds from the interest disposed of and the carrying amount of the investment at the date 
when equity method is discontinued is recognised in profit or loss.

 When the Group’s interest in an associate decreases but does not result in a loss of significant influence, 

reclassified proportionately to profit or loss if that gain or loss would be required to be reclassified to profit 
or loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities.

 Investment in an associate is measured in the Company’s statement of financial position at cost less any 
impairment losses, unless the investment is classified as held for sale or distribution. The cost of investment 
includes transaction costs. 

Cont’d
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2. Significant accounting policies  cont’d

 (a) Basis of consolidation  cont’d

(vi) Non-controlling interests

 Non-controlling interests at the end of the reporting period, being the equity in a subsidiary not 
attributable directly or indirectly to the equity holders of the Company, are presented in the consolidated 
statement of financial position and statement of changes in equity within equity, separately from equity 
attributable to the owners of the Company. Non-controlling interests in the results of the Group is 
presented in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as an allocation 
of the profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the year between non-controlling interests and 
owners of the Company. 

 Losses applicable to the non-controlling interests in a subsidiary are allocated to the non-controlling 
interests even if doing so causes the non-controlling interests to have a deficit balance. 

(vii) Transactions eliminated on consolidation

 Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised income and expenses arising from intra-group 
transactions, are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements. 

 Unrealised gains arising from transactions with equity-accounted associate are eliminated against the 
investment to the extent of the Group’s interest in the investee. Unrealised losses are eliminated in the 
same way as unrealised gains, but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

 (b) Foreign currency 

  (i) Foreign currency transactions

   Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective functional currencies of Group entities at 
exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.

retranslated to the functional currency at the exchange rate at that date. 

   Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are not retranslated at the end of 
the reporting period, except for those that are measured at fair value are retranslated to the functional 
currency at the exchange rate at the date that the fair value was determined. 

Cont’d
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2. Significant accounting policies  cont’d

 (b) Foreign currency  cont’d

  (i) Foreign currency transactions  cont’d

arising on the retranslation of available-for-sale equity instruments or a financial instrument designated as a 
hedge of currency risk, which are recognised in other comprehensive income.

  In the consolidated financial statements, when settlement of a monetary item receivable from or payable to 
a foreign operation is neither planned nor likely to occur in the foreseeable future, foreign exchange gains 
and losses arising from such a monetary item are considered to form part of a net investment in a foreign 
operation and are recognised in other comprehensive income, and are presented in the foreign currency 

  (ii) Operations denominated in functional currencies other than Ringgit Malaysia 

the end of the reporting period, except for goodwill and fair value adjustments arising from business 

at exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.
   

in equity. However, if the operation is a non-wholly owned subsidiary, then the relevant proportionate 
share of the translation difference is allocated to the non-controlling interests. When a foreign operation 
is disposed of such that control, significant influence or joint control is lost, the cumulative amount in the 

   When the Group disposes of only part of its interest in a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, the 
relevant proportion of the cumulative amount is reattributed to non-controlling interests. When the Group 
disposes of only part of its investment in an associate that includes a foreign operation while retaining 
significant influence or joint control, the relevant proportion of the cumulative amount is reclassified to 
profit or loss.

 (c) Financial instruments

  (i) Initial recognition and measurement

when, the Group or the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
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2. Significant accounting policies  cont’d

 (c) Financial instruments  cont’d

  (i) Initial recognition and measurement  cont’d

fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of 
the financial instrument.

if, and only if, it is not closely related to the economic characteristics and risks of the host contract and 
the host contract is not categorised as fair value through profit or loss. The host contract, in the event an 
embedded derivative is recognised separately, is accounted for in accordance with policy applicable to the 
nature of the host contract.

  (ii) Financial instrument categories and subsequent measurement 

   The Group and the Company categorise financial instruments as follows:

   Financial assets

   (a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

derivatives (except for a derivative that is a financial guarantee contract or a designated and effective 
hedging instrument) or financial assets that are specifically designated into this category upon initial 
recognition.

    Derivatives that are linked to and must be settled by delivery of unquoted equity instruments whose 
fair values cannot be reliably measured are measured at cost. 

    Other financial assets categorised as fair value through profit or loss are subsequently measured at 
their fair values with the gain or loss recognised in profit or loss.

   (b) Loans and receivables

    Loans and receivables category comprises debt instruments that are not quoted in an active market. 

using the effective interest method.



110 Press Metal Berhad 153208 W
Notes to the Financial Statements
Cont’d

2. Significant accounting policies  cont’d

 (c) Financial instruments  cont’d

  (ii) Financial instrument categories and subsequent measurement  cont’d

   Financial assets  cont’d

   (c) Available-for-sale financial assets

    Investments in equity instruments that do not have a quoted market price in an active market and 
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are measured at cost. 

impairment (see Note 2(j)(i)).

   Financial liabilities

value through profit or loss.

a derivative that is a financial guarantee contract or a designated and effective hedging instrument) or 
financial liabilities that are specifically designated into this category upon initial recognition.

   Derivatives that are linked to and must be settled by delivery of equity instruments that do not have a 
quoted price in an active market for identical instruments whose fair values otherwise cannot be reliably 
measured are measured at cost. 

   Other financial liabilities categorised as fair value through profit or loss are subsequently measured at their 
fair values with the gain or loss recognised in profit or loss.

  (iii) Financial guarantee contracts

reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in 
accordance with the original or modified terms of a debt instrument.

to profit or loss using a straight-line method over the contractual period or, when there is no specified 
contractual period, recognised in profit or loss upon discharge of the guarantee. When settlement of a 
financial guarantee contract becomes probable, an estimate of the obligation is made. If the carrying 
value of the financial guarantee contract is lower than the obligation, the carrying value is adjusted to the 
obligation amount and accounted for as a provision.
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2. Significant accounting policies  cont’d

 (c) Financial instruments  cont’d

  (iv) Regular way purchase or sale of financial assets 

require delivery of the asset within the time frame established generally by regulation or convention in the 
marketplace concerned.

trade date accounting. Trade date accounting refers to:

   (a) the recognition of an asset to be received and the liability to pay for it on the trade date, and 
   (b) derecognition of an asset that is sold, recognition of any gain or loss on disposal and the recognition 

of a receivable from the buyer for payment on the trade date. 

  (v) Hedge accounting 

   Cash flow hedge

risk associated with a recognised asset or liability or a highly probable forecast transaction and could affect 
the profit or loss. In a cash flow hedge, the portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument that is 
determined to be an effective hedge is recognised in other comprehensive income and the ineffective 
portion is recognised in profit or loss.

   Subsequently, the cumulative gain or loss recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified from 
equity into profit or loss in the same period or periods during which the hedged forecast cash flows affect 
profit or loss. If the hedge item is a non-financial asset or liability, the associated gain or loss recognised 
in other comprehensive income is removed from equity and included in the initial amount of the asset 
or liability. However, loss recognised in other comprehensive income that will not be recovered in one or 
more future periods is reclassified from equity into profit or loss.

   Cash flow hedge accounting is discontinued prospectively when the hedging instrument expires or 
is sold, terminated or exercised, the hedge is no longer highly effective, the forecast transaction is no 
longer expected to occur or the hedge designation is revoked. If the hedge is for a forecast transaction, 
the cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument remains in equity until the forecast transaction 
occurs. When the forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, any related cumulative gain or loss 
recognised in other comprehensive income on the hedging instrument is reclassified from equity into profit 
or loss.
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2. Significant accounting policies  cont’d

 (c) Financial instruments  cont’d

  (vi) Derecognition

from the financial asset expire or control of the asset is not retained or substantially all of the risks and 
rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred to another party. On derecognition of a financial 
asset, the difference between the carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received (including 
any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) and any cumulative gain or loss that had been 
recognised in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference 
between the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished or transferred to another party and the 
consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit 
or loss.

 (d) Property, plant and equipment

  (i) Recognition and measurement

equipment are measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment 
losses.

   Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset and any other 
costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to working condition for its intended use, and the costs 
of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on which they are located. The cost of self-

costs are capitalised in accordance with the accounting policy on borrowing costs. Cost also may include 
transfers from equity of any gain or loss on qualifying cash flow hedges of foreign currency purchases of 
property, plant and equipment. 

   Government grants related to assets, including non-monetary grants at fair value, are presented in the 
statement of financial position by deducting the grant in arriving at the carrying amount of the asset.

   Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is capitalised as part of that 
equipment. 
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2. Significant accounting policies  cont’d 

 (d) Property, plant and equipment  cont’d 

  (i) Recognition and measurement  cont’d 

   When significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are 
accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

   The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined by comparing the 
proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment and is recognised net 
within “other income” or “other expenses” respectively in profit or loss.

  (ii) Subsequent costs

   The cost of replacing a component of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the 
carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the 
component will flow to the Group or the Company, and its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying 
amount of the replaced component is derecognised to profit or loss. The costs of the day-to-day servicing 
of property, plant and equipment are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

  (iii) Depreciation

   Depreciation is based on the cost of an asset less its residual value. Significant components of individual 
assets are assessed, and if a component has a useful life that is different from the remainder of that asset, 
then that component is depreciated separately. 

   Depreciation is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of 
each component of an item of property, plant and equipment from the date that they are available for 
use. Leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful lives unless it is 

depreciated. Capital work-in-progress are not depreciated until the assets are ready for their intended use.
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2. Significant accounting policies  cont’d 

 (d) Property, plant and equipment  cont’d

  (iii) Depreciation  cont’d

   The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative periods are as follows: 

leasehold land 24 - 99 years
buildings and renovation 10 - 50 years
plant and machinery 5 - 25 years
office equipment 10 years
motor vehicles 5 - 10 years
furniture and fittings 10 years
moulds and dies 3 - 6 years

   Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of the reporting period, and 
adjusted as appropriate.

 (e) Leased assets 

  (i) Finance lease 

   Leases in terms of which the Group or the Company assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of 
ownership are classified as finance leases. Upon initial recognition, the leased asset is measured at 
an amount equal to the lower of its fair value and the present value of the minimum lease payments. 
Subsequent to initial recognition, the asset is accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy 
applicable to that asset. 

and the reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance expense is allocated to each period during the 
lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. 
Contingent lease payments are accounted for by revising the minimum lease payments over the remaining 
term of the lease when the lease adjustment is confirmed. 

   Leasehold land which in substance is a finance lease is classified as property, plant and equipment, or as 
investment property if held to earn rental income or for capital appreciation or for both.
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2. Significant accounting policies  cont’d 

 (e) Leased assets  cont’d 

  (ii) Operating lease

   Leases, where the Group or the Company does not assume substantially all the risks and rewards of 
ownership are classified as operating leases and the leased assets are not recognised on the statement of 
financial position. 

  
   Payments made under operating leases are recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the 

term of the lease. Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the total 
lease expense, over the term of the lease. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in the reporting 
period in which they are incurred. 

 (f) Goodwill 

  Goodwill which arises on business combinations is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. 

  Amortisation

  Goodwill is not amortised but is tested for impairment annually and whenever there is an indication that it may 
be impaired.

 (g) Investment properties

  Investment properties carried at cost

  Investment properties are properties which are owned or held under a leasehold interest to earn rental income 
or for capital appreciation or for both, but not for sale in the ordinary course of business, use in the production 
or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes. These include freehold land, leasehold land 
and buildings which in substance are finance leases held for a currently undetermined future use. Investment 
properties are initially and subsequently measured at cost and are accounted for similarly to property, plant and 
equipment.

 (h) Inventories 

  Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. 

  The cost of inventories is calculated using the first-in-first-out method, and includes expenditure incurred in 
acquiring the inventories, production or conversion costs and other costs incurred in bringing them to their 
existing location and condition. In the case of work-in-progress and finished goods, cost includes an appropriate 
share of production overheads based on normal operating capacity.
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2. Significant accounting policies  cont’d 

 (h) Inventories  cont’d 

  Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of 
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

 (i) Cash and cash equivalents

  Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, balances and deposits with banks and highly liquid 
investments which have an insignificant risk of changes in fair value with original maturities of three months or 

the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents are presented net of bank overdrafts and 
pledged deposits.

 (j) Impairment 

  (i) Financial assets

in subsidiaries and investment in an associate) are assessed at each reporting date whether there is any 
objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events having an impact on the estimated 
future cash flows of the asset. Losses expected as a result of future events, no matter how likely, are not 

below its cost is an objective evidence of impairment. If any such objective evidence exists, then the 
impairment loss of the financial asset is estimated.

as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash 
flows discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced 
through the use of an allowance account. 

measured as the difference between the asset’s acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment and 
amortisation) and the asset’s current fair value, less any impairment loss previously recognised. Where a 
decline in the fair value of an available-for-sale financial asset has been recognised in other comprehensive 
income, the cumulative loss in other comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to profit or loss.

loss and is measured as the difference between the financial asset’s carrying amount and the present value 
of estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset.
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2. Significant accounting policies  cont’d 

 (j) Impairment  cont’d 

  (i) Financial assets  cont’d 

   Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss for an investment in an equity instrument classified as 
available for sale is not reversed through profit or loss. 

   If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of a debt instrument increases and the increase can be objectively 
related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in profit or loss, the impairment loss 
is reversed, to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed what the carrying amount would 
have been had the impairment not been recognised at the date the impairment is reversed. The amount of 
the reversal is recognised in profit or loss.

  (ii) Other assets

   The carrying amounts of other assets (except for inventories and deferred tax assets) are reviewed at the 
end of each reporting period to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such 

estimated each period at the same time.

that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other 
assets or cash-generating units. Subject to an operating segment ceiling test, for the purpose of goodwill 
impairment testing, cash-generating units to which goodwill has been allocated are aggregated so that 
the level at which impairment testing is performed reflects the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored 
for internal reporting purposes. The goodwill acquired in a business combination, for the purpose of 
impairment testing, is allocated to a cash-generating unit or a group of cash-generating units that are 
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

   The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair 
value less costs of disposal. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to 
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value 
of money and the risks specific to the asset or cash-generating unit.

exceeds its estimated recoverable amount.

   Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the cash-
generating unit (or a group of cash-generating units) and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other 
assets in the cash-generating unit (or a group of cash-generating units) on a pro rata basis.
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2. Significant accounting policies  cont’d 

 (j) Impairment  cont’d 

  (ii) Other assets  cont’d

recognised in prior periods are assessed at the end of each reporting period for any indications that 

the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. 

carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment 
loss had been recognised. Reversals of impairment losses are credited to profit or loss in the financial year 
in which the reversals are recognised.

 (k) Equity instruments

  Instruments classified as equity are measured at cost on initial recognition and are not remeasured subsequently.

  (i) Issue expenses

   Costs directly attributable to the issue of instruments classified as equity are recognised as a deduction 
from equity.

  (ii) Ordinary shares

   Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

 (l) Compound financial instruments

component.
 
  Compound financial instruments issued by the Group comprise RCSLS that can be converted to share capital at 

the option of the holder, when the number of shares to be issued does not vary with changes in their fair value.

  The proceeds are first allocated to the liability component, determined based on the fair value of a similar 
liability that does not have a conversion feature or similar associated equity component. The residual amount 

equity components in proportion to their initial carrying amounts.
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2. Significant accounting policies  cont’d 

 (l) Compound financial instruments  cont’d 
 
  Subsequent to initial recognition, the liability component of a compound financial instrument is measured at 

amortised cost using the effective interest method. The equity component of a compound financial instrument is 
not remeasured subsequent to initial recognition.

  Interest and losses and gains relating to the financial liability are recognised in profit or loss. On conversion, the 

 (m) Employee benefits

  (i) Short-term employee benefits

   Short-term employee benefit obligations in respect of salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and sick 
leave are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service is provided.

plans if the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past 
service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

  (ii) State plans

   The Group’s contributions to statutory pension funds are charged to profit or loss in the financial year to 
which they relate. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a 
reduction in future payments is available.

 (n) Revenue and other income

  (i) Goods sold

   Revenue from the sale of goods in the course of ordinary activities is measured at fair value of the 
consideration received or receivable, net of returns and allowances, trade discounts and volume rebates. 
Revenue is recognised when persuasive evidence exists, usually in the form of an executed sales 
agreement, that the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the customer, 
recovery of the consideration is probable, the associated costs and possible return of goods can be 
estimated reliably, there is no continuing management involvement with the goods, and the amount of 
revenue can be measured reliably. If it is probable that discounts will be granted and the amount can be 
measured reliably, then the discount is recognised as a reduction of revenue as the sales are recognised.
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2. Significant accounting policies  cont’d 

 (n) Revenue and other income  cont’d 

  (ii) Services

   Revenue from services rendered is recognised in profit or loss in proportion to the stage of completion 
of the transaction at the end of the reporting period. The stage of completion is assessed by reference to 
surveys of work performed.

  (iii) Rental income

   Rental income from property is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the 
lease. Lease incentives granted are recognised as an integral part of the total rental income, over the term 
of the lease. 

  (iv) Dividend income

   Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss on the date that the Group’s or the Company’s right to 
receive payment is established, which in the case of quoted securities is the ex-dividend date.

 (v) Interest income

  Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective interest method in profit or loss except for interest 
income arising from temporary investment of borrowings taken specifically for the purpose of obtaining a 
qualifying asset which is accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy on borrowing costs.

 (o) Borrowing costs

  Borrowing costs that are not directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying 
asset are recognised in profit or loss using the effective interest method.

  Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are 
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised 
as part of the cost of those assets.

  The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure 
for the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare 
the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases 
when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying assets for its intended use or sale are 
interrupted or completed. 

  Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on 
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.



121Annual Report ’16
Notes to the Financial Statements

Cont’d

2. Significant accounting policies  cont’d 

 (p) Income tax 

  Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax and deferred tax are recognised in profit or 
loss except to the extent that it relates to a business combination or items recognised directly in equity or other 
comprehensive income.

  Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year, using tax rates 
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in 
respect of previous financial years.

  Deferred tax is recognised using the liability method, providing for temporary differences between the carrying 
amounts of assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position and their tax bases. Deferred tax is not 
recognised for the following temporary differences: the initial recognition of goodwill, the initial recognition of 
assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor 
taxable profit or loss. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary 
differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of 
the reporting period.

  Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities 
and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on 
different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis or their tax assets 
and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.

against which the temporary difference can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at the end of each 
reporting period and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be 
realised.

  Unutilised investment tax allowance, being a tax incentive that is not a tax base of an asset, is recognised as a 
deferred tax asset to the extent that it is probable that the future taxable profits will be available against which 
the unutilised tax incentive can be utilised.

 (q) Earnings per ordinary share

weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period, adjusted for own shares held.
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2. Significant accounting policies  cont’d 

 (q) Earnings per ordinary share  cont’d 

average number of ordinary shares outstanding, adjusted for own shares held, for the effects of all dilutive 
potential ordinary shares, which comprise warrants.

 (r) Operating segments

earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the 
Group’s other components. Operating segments’ results are reviewed regularly by the chief operating decision 

allocated to the segment and to assess its performance, and for which discrete financial information is available.

 (s) Contingencies

  (i) Contingent liabilities

   Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be 
estimated reliably, the obligation is not recognised in the statements of financial position and is disclosed 
as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible 
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more 
future events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of economic 
benefits is remote.

  (ii) Contingent assets

   When an inflow of economic benefit of an asset is probable where it arises from past events and where 
existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future 
events not wholly within the control of the entity, the asset is not recognised in the statements of financial 
position but is being disclosed as a contingent asset. When the inflow of economic benefit is virtually 
certain, then the related asset is recognised.

 (t) Fair value measurements

the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between 
market participants at the measurement date. The measurement assumes that the transaction to sell the asset or 
transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market or in the absence of a principal market, in the most 
advantageous market. 
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2. Significant accounting policies  cont’d 

 (t) Fair value measurements  cont’d 

economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that 
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

  When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses observable market data as far as possible. 

technique as follows:

  Level 1:  quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Group can access 
at the measurement date.

  Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, 
either directly or indirectly.

  Level 3: unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

  The Group recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy as of the date of the event or change in 
circumstances that caused the transfers.
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3. Property, plant and equipment 

Group Land

Buildings
and

renovation
Plant and

machinery
Office

equipment
Motor

vehicles

Furniture
and

fittings
Moulds

and dies

Capital
work-in-
progress Total

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Cost

379,557 1,151,747 2,479,251 53,597 75,462 7,795 266,200 78,132 4,491,741

- 8,898 86,918 3,672 23,785 800 17,441 1,702,070 1,843,584

Disposals - (142) (518) (7) (1,464) (17) - - (2,148)

Written off - - (88,756) (1,196) (796) (21) - (12) (90,781)

Reduction in land 
premium payable (12,549) - - - - - - - (12,549)

Transfers - (124) 8,571 (70) - - - (8,377) -

exchange rates 36,102 29,774 30,725 3,179 654 138 25,417 908 126,897

 
1 January 2016 403,110 1,190,153 2,516,191 59,175 97,641 8,695 309,058 1,772,721 6,356,744

- 197,178 129,725 8,531 15,735 2,177 29,393 49,145 431,884

Disposals - - (3,999) (313) (1,286) (143) (5,342) - (11,083)

Written off - - (20,338) (607) (300) (274) (29,823) - (51,342)

Reduction in land 
premium payable (12,549) - - - - - - - (12,549)

Transfers - 228,298 1,530,501 - - - - (1,758,799) -

exchange rates (5,747) (6,167) (4,122) (197) (49) (119) (4,648) (970) (22,019)

384,814 1,609,462 4,147,958 66,589 111,741 10,336 298,638 62,097 6,691,635
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3. Property, plant and equipment  cont’d 

Group Land

Buildings
and

renovation
Plant and

machinery
Office

equipment
Motor

vehicles

Furniture
and

fittings
Moulds

and dies

Capital
work-in-
progress Total

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Depreciation and 
impairment loss

26,270 107,475 482,460 26,103 27,760 3,431 219,832 - 893,331

Depreciation for the year 6,403 29,036 182,066 3,971 9,001 498 26,406 - 257,381

Disposals - (37) (268) (4) (918) (14) - - (1,241)

Written off - - (34,453) (1,060) (622) (14) - - (36,149)

exchange rates 3,867 7,826 14,695 1,520 465 66 20,593 - 49,032

 
1 January 2016 36,540 144,300 644,500 30,530 35,686 3,967 266,831 - 1,162,354

Depreciation for the year 6,074 35,552 282,180 4,468 10,433 621 25,787 - 365,115

Impairment loss - - 30,000 - - - - - 30,000

Disposals - - (2,913) (290) (755) (128) (5,036) - (9,122)

Written off - - (5,252) (186) (276) (267) (29,023) - (35,004)

exchange rates (501) (1,320) (1,996) (146) (42) (59) (3,888) - (7,952)

42,113 178,532 946,519 34,376 45,046 4,134 254,671 - 1,505,391

Carrying amounts

353,287 1,044,272 1,996,791 27,494 47,702 4,364 46,368 78,132 3,598,410

 1 January 2016 366,570 1,045,853 1,871,691 28,645 61,955 4,728 42,227 1,772,721 5,194,390

342,701 1,430,930 3,201,439 32,213 66,695 6,202 43,967 62,097 5,186,244
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3. Property, plant and equipment  cont’d 

Company Land Buildings Renovation
Plant and

machinery
Office

equipment
Motor

vehicles

Furniture
and

fittings
Moulds

and dies Total

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Cost

25,300 39,292 6,222 155,711 18,028 8,210 2,037 130,946 385,746

- 13 93 4,082 327 939 50 - 5,504

Disposals - - - - (3) (543) - - (546)

 1 January 2016 25,300 39,305 6,315 159,793 18,352 8,606 2,087 130,946 390,704

- - 106 2,596 304 700 13 - 3,719

Disposals - - - (62) (85) (639) - (5,342) (6,128)

Written off - - - (99) (16) (215) (254) - (584)

25,300 39,305 6,421 162,228 18,555 8,452 1,846 125,604 387,711

Depreciation

- 8,526 2,544 107,084 12,134 5,324 987 111,594 248,193

Depreciation for the year - 930 627 6,569 802 940 33 6,793 16,694

Disposals - - - - (1) (441) - - (442)

 1 January 2016 - 9,456 3,171 113,653 12,935 5,823 1,020 118,387 264,445

Depreciation for the year - 930 634 6,160 795 925 38 5,186 14,668

Disposals - - - (42) (85) (311) - (5,036) (5,474)

Written off - - - (27) (10) (215) (254) - (506)

- 10,386 3,805 119,744 13,635 6,222 804 118,537 273,133

Carrying amounts

25,300 30,766 3,678 48,627 5,894 2,886 1,050 19,352 137,553

 1 January 2016 25,300 29,849 3,144 46,140 5,417 2,783 1,067 12,559 126,259

25,300 28,919 2,616 42,484 4,920 2,230 1,042 7,067 114,578
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3. Property, plant and equipment  cont’d 

 3.1 Impairment loss

value less costs of disposal of these assets following the decision to close down the operations of the plant.

 3.2 Leased plant and machinery and motor vehicles

respectively.

 3.3 Security

  The leased plant and machinery, and motor vehicles discussed above secure lease obligations (see Note 16).

respectively, are pledged as security and as fixed and floating charges to secure bank facilities granted to the 
Company and its subsidiaries (see Note 16).

 3.4 Borrowing costs

  Included in capital work-in-progress of the Group was interest capitalised for the financial year amounting to 

 3.5 Government grant

relation to the purchase of assets.
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3. Property, plant and equipment  cont’d 

 3.6 Land 

  Included in the total carrying amount of land are:

 Group  Company

2016 2015 2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

25,300 25,300 25,300 25,300

Leasehold land with
 unexpired lease period of 
 less than 50 years 261,079 271,510 - -

Leasehold land with
 unexpired lease period of 
 more than 50 years 56,322 69,760 - -

342,701 366,570 25,300 25,300

 3.7 Capital work-in-progress

  Included in the total carrying amount of capital work-in-progress are:

 Group

2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000

Plant and machinery-in-progress 51,382 1,538,173

Building-in-progress 10,715 234,548

62,097 1,772,721

Bintulu Sdn. Bhd. in Samalaju, Sarawak (“Samalaju Plant”). 
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4. Investment properties 

Note Group Company

RM’000 RM’000

Cost

6,509 -

502 -

7,011 -

3,534 3,409

10,545 3,409

Depreciation and impairment loss

434 -

Depreciation for the year 42 -

Impairment loss for the year 4.1 200 -

676 -

Depreciation for the year 72 34

748 34

Carrying amounts

6,075 -

6,335 -

9,797 3,375
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4. Investment properties  cont’d

 Group  Company

2016 2015 2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Included in the above are:

812 812 - -

Leasehold land with unexpired lease period of more 
than 50 years 541 544 - -

Buildings 4,465 1,126 3,375 -

5,818 2,482 3,375 -

Properties under construction 3,979 3,853 - -

9,797 6,335 3,375 -

 4.1 Impairment loss

Group which had experienced a decline in market value.

  Investment properties comprise freehold land, leasehold land and a number of residential properties and 
commercial properties that are leased to third parties or are currently vacant. 

facilities granted to a subsidiary (see Note 16).

  2 residential properties are currently under construction and the fair values of these properties are unable to 
be determined as there are uncertainties in estimating their fair values. The estimated fair values are likely to 
approximate their costs.
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4. Investment properties  cont’d

 4.1 Impairment loss  cont’d

  The following are recognised in profit or loss in respect of investment properties:

 Group  Company

2016 2015 2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Rental income 102 114 - -

Direct operating expenses:
- income generating investment properties (74) (93) - -

- non-income generating investment properties (13) (13) (7) -

  Fair value information

 Group  Company

2016 2015 2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Level 3

Land 6,542 7,656 - -

Buildings 6,821 3,260 3,409 -

13,363 10,916 3,409 -

  Valuation process applied by the Group for Level 3 fair value

  The fair value of investment properties is estimated by the Directors using the comparison method, except for 
properties acquired during the financial year, which the Directors have deemed the purchase price amounting 

method entails critical analyses of recent evidences of values of comparable properties in the neighbourhood 

of building, tenure, title restrictions if any and other relevant characteristics.
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5. Goodwill 

Group

RM’000

Cost

14,628

Impairment loss

4,131

Carrying amounts

10,497

 5.1 Impairment testing for cash-generating units containing goodwill

the lowest level within the Group at which the goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes. 

  The aggregate carrying amounts of goodwill allocated to each unit are as follows:

 Group

2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000

9,219 9,219

1,038 1,038

240 240

- -

10,497 10,497
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5. Goodwill  cont’d

 5.1 Impairment testing for cash-generating units containing goodwill  cont’d

years.

impairment testing performed for these cash-generating units. 

  Press Metal International Limited (“PMI”)

  Value in use was determined by discounting the future cash flows expected to be generated from the continuing 
use of the unit and was based on the following key assumptions:

rate was justified due to the long-term nature of the aluminium business.

years. 

The discount rate was estimated based on an industry weighted average cost of capital. 

  The values assigned to the key assumptions represent management’s assessment of future trends in the 
aluminium industry and are based on both external sources and internal sources (historical data).

  The above estimates are not particularly sensitive in any areas.
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6. Investments in subsidiaries

 Company

2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000

Unquoted shares, at cost 1,400,273 1,397,008

Less: Impairment loss (146,149) (159,925)

1,254,124 1,237,083

 The movements of investments in subsidiaries are as follows:

 Company

2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000

At 1 January 1,237,083 713,301

Subscription of additional shares 3,265 538,665

Impairment loss reversed/(provided) during the year 13,776 (14,883)

At 31 December 1,254,124 1,237,083

 Details of the subsidiaries are as follows:

Name of entity

Principal
place of
business Principal activities

 Effective
 ownership
 interest and
 voting interest

2016 2015

% %

Angkasa Jasa Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia Contracting and fabrication of 
aluminium and stainless steel 
products

100 100

PMB Recycling Management  
Sdn. Bhd.

Malaysia Dormant 100 100
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6. Investments in subsidiaries  cont’d

Name of entity

Principal
place of
business Principal activities

 Effective
 ownership
 interest and
 voting interest

2016 2015

% %

PMB Development Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia Construction activities (for a 
related company)

100 100

and its subsidiary,

 PMB Spectrum Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia Dormant 60 60

Wesama Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia Investment holding 100 100

and its subsidiary,

Ace Extrusion Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia Dormant 100 100

PMB Marketing Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia Investment holding 100 100

and its subsidiary,

PMB Marketing (HK) Ltd.* Hong Kong Dormant 100 100
 
Press Metal Sarawak Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia Manufacturing and trading of 

aluminium products
80 80

Press Metal Bintulu Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia Manufacturing and trading of 
aluminium products

80 80
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6. Investments in subsidiaries  cont’d

Name of entity

Principal
place of
business Principal activities

 Effective
 ownership
 interest and
 voting interest

2016 2015

% %

Press Metal (HK) Limited * Hong Kong Investment holding 100 100

and its subsidiary,

Press Metal International 
Limited * 

China Manufacturing and trading 
of aluminium products and  
investment holding

100 100

and its subsidiaries,

Press Metal International 
Technology Ltd. *

China Manufacturing and trading of 
aluminium products

100 100

 
Press Metal Glomag Precision 

Technology Co. Ltd. **
China Manufacturing of moulds 

and dies
51 51

BI-PMB Waste Management  
Sdn. Bhd.

Malaysia Provision of a common waste 
water treatment plant to treat 
toxic waste

100 100

PMS Marketing Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia Dormant 100 100

Press Metal Aluminium  
(Australia) Pty. Ltd. *, #

Australia Marketing of aluminium products 100 70

Press Metal UK Limited * United
Kingdom

Marketing of aluminium products 100 100

Press Metal North America Inc. * United States 
of America

Marketing of aluminium products 100 100
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6. Investments in subsidiaries  cont’d

Name of entity

Principal
place of
business Principal activities

 Effective
 ownership
 interest and
 voting interest

2016 2015

% %

Hubei Press Metal Huasheng 
Aluminium & Electric Co. Ltd. * 

China Investment holding 100 100

and its subsidiary,

Press Metal International 
(Hubei) Ltd. *

China Dormant 100 100 

 * Not audited by member firms of KPMG International
 ** Consolidated based on management accounts
 # In May 2016, the Company acquired the remaining 30% equity interest in Press Metal Aluminium (Australia) Pty. Ltd. for a total 

cash consideration of RM3,265,000. 

 6.1 Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries

  The Group’s subsidiaries that have material non-controlling interests (“NCI”) are as follows: 

 2016

Press
Metal

Sarawak
Sdn. Bhd.

Press
Metal

Bintulu
Sdn. Bhd.

Other
subsidiaries

with
immaterial

NCI Total

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

NCI percentage of ownership interest and 
voting interest 20% 20%

Carrying amount of NCI 160,650 344,410 4,988 510,048

Profit allocated to NCI 18,956 98,974 4,268 122,198
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6. Investments in subsidiaries  cont’d

 6.1 Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries  cont’d

 2016

Press
Metal

Sarawak
Sdn. Bhd.

Press
Metal

Bintulu
Sdn. Bhd.

Other
subsidiaries

with
immaterial

NCI Total

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Summarised financial information before  
intra-group elimination

As at 31 December

Non-current assets 1,260,795 3,680,678

Current assets 511,716 1,870,178

Non-current liabilities (404,615) (1,712,849)

Current liabilities (564,647) (2,115,958)

Net assets 803,249 1,722,049

Year ended 31 December

Revenue 1,155,125 4,274,847

Profit for the year 94,782 494,872

Total comprehensive income 89,140 397,672

Cash flows from operating activities 135,728 611,591

Cash flows from investing  activities (33,051) (375,653)

Cash flows from financing activities (90,003) (142,669)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 12,674 93,269

Dividends paid to NCI 20,000 -
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6. Investments in subsidiaries  cont’d

 6.1 Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries  cont’d

 2015

Press
Metal

Sarawak
Sdn. Bhd.

Press
Metal

Bintulu
Sdn. Bhd.

Other
subsidiaries

with
immaterial

NCI Total

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

NCI percentage of ownership interest and 
voting interest 20% 20%

Carrying amount of NCI 162,822 264,876 862 428,560

Profit allocated to NCI 24,576 2,690 1,358 28,624

Summarised financial information before  
intra-group elimination

As at 31 December

Non-current assets 1,466,802 3,566,137

Current assets 465,892 1,562,622

Non-current liabilities (545,778) (1,836,973)

Current liabilities (572,807) (1,967,409)

Net assets 814,109 1,324,377

Year ended 31 December

Revenue 1,064,834 2,193,856

Profit for the year 122,881 13,448

Total comprehensive income/(expense) 40,418 (91,328)

Cash flows from operating activities 43,410 76,958

Cash flows from investing  activities (9,509) (1,741,615)

Cash flows from financing activities (78,092) 1,604,555

Net decrease in cash and  cash equivalents (44,191) (60,102)

Dividends paid to NCI - -
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6. Investments in subsidiaries  cont’d

 6.2 Significant restrictions

  Restrictions imposed by bank covenants

  The covenants of certain bank loans require the Group to maintain a certain amount of cash in specific bank 
accounts until settlement of the loans, which have been disclosed as part of the deposits pledged with licensed 
banks in Note 14.

7. Investment in an associate

 Group  Company

2016 2015 2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Quoted shares in Malaysia, at cost 11,812 11,812 11,812 11,812

Share of post-acquisition reserves 32,211 29,825 - -

Group’s share of net assets 44,023 41,637 11,812 11,812

Market value:

Quoted shares in Malaysia 33,075 21,477 33,075 21,477

 Details of the associate are as follows:

Name of entity

Principal 
place of 
business Nature of the relationship

 Effective
 ownership
 interest and
 voting interest

2016 2015

% %

PMB Technology Berhad Malaysia Trading of aluminium products 
purchased from the Group

28 28
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7. Investment in an associate  cont’d

 The following table summarises the information of the Group’s associate, adjusted for any differences in accounting 
policies.

 Group

2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000

Summarised financial information

As at 31 December

Non-current assets 90,080 95,130

Current assets 269,972 250,314

Non-current liabilities (14,537) (19,120)

Current liabilities (191,819) (182,012)

Net assets 153,696 144,312

Year ended 31 December

Profit for the year 10,715 7,721

Other comprehensive income 1,768 6,954

Total comprehensive income 12,483 14,675

Included in the total comprehensive income is:

Revenue 371,030 434,293

Group’s share of results for the year ended 31 December

Group’s share of profit or loss 2,970 2,140

Group’s share of other comprehensive income 490 1,928

Group’s share of total comprehensive income 3,460 4,068

Other information

Dividends received by the Group 1,074 859
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7. Investment in an associate  cont’d

 Group

2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000

Contingent liabilities

Share of associate’s contingent liabilities incurred jointly with other investors:

- Guaranteed bank facilities and construction contracts 33,727 54,296

8. Other investments

 Group  Company

2016 2015 2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Non-current

Available-for-sale financial assets

Unquoted shares, at cost 1,803 1,803 750 750

Current 

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:

- Held for trading

- Unit trusts 26,000 - - -

Market value of unit trusts 26,000 - - -
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9. Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) 

 Recognised deferred tax assets/(liabilities)

 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following:

 Assets  Liabilities  Net

2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Group

Property, plant and equipment 38 - (265,024) (245,296) (264,986) (245,296)

Provisions 4,288 1,381 - - 4,288 1,381

Tax loss carry-forwards 181 584 - - 181 584

Capital allowance carry-forwards - 10,410 - - - 10,410

Investment tax allowance  
carry-forwards 184,691 206,339 - - 184,691 206,339

Other items - - (742) (3,261) (742) (3,261)

Tax assets/(liabilities) 189,198 218,714 (265,766) (248,557) (76,568) (29,843)

Set off of tax (121,265) (119,280) 121,265 119,280 - -

Net tax assets/(liabilities) 67,933 99,434 (144,501) (129,277) (76,568) (29,843)

Company

Property, plant and equipment - - (17,023) (17,023) (17,023) (17,023)
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9. Deferred tax assets/(liabilities)  cont’d

 Movement in temporary differences during the year 

At
1.1.2015

Recognised
in profit

or loss
(Note 22)

Recognised
directly

in equity

Effect of
movement

in exchange
rates

At
31.12.2015/

1.1.2016

Recognised
in profit

or loss
(Note 22)

Effect of
movement

in exchange
rates

At
31.12.2016

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Group

Property, plant and equipment (263,747) 25,249 - (6,798) (245,296) (20,834) 1,144 (264,986)

Provisions 1,693 (312) - - 1,381 2,907 - 4,288

Tax loss carry-forwards 406 178 - - 584 (403) - 181

Capital allowance carry-
forwards 82,798 (72,388) - - 10,410 (10,410) - -

Investment tax allowance 
carry-forwards 206,558 (219) - - 206,339 (21,648) - 184,691

Other items 2,099 (5,360) - - (3,261) 2,519 - (742)

RCSLS (14,358) - 14,358 - - - - -

15,449 (52,852) 14,358 (6,798) (29,843) (47,869) 1,144 (76,568)

Company

Property, plant and equipment (17,023) - - - (17,023) - - (17,023)

RCSLS (14,358) - 14,358 - - - - -

(31,381) - 14,358 - (17,023) - - (17,023)

 Estimation uncertainty and significant judgements

 In October 2013, Press Metal Bintulu Sdn. Bhd. (“PM Bintulu”) was awarded Pioneer Status by the Malaysian 
Investment Development Authority (“MIDA”), which entitles PM Bintulu exemption from tax for a period of 5 years 
from 1 January 2013 to 31 December 2017 on 100% of statutory income derived from the production of aluminium 
products. PM Bintulu is allowed to apply for an additional 5 years exemption upon expiry of the first 5 years. 

 In July 2014, the MIDA further granted PM Bintulu the right to apply for an additional 5 years Pioneer Status, resulting 
in a potential extension of exemption from tax up to 31 December 2027.



145Annual Report ’16Annual Report ’16
Notes to the Financial Statements

Cont’d

9. Deferred tax assets/(liabilities)  cont’d

 Estimation uncertainty and significant judgements  cont’d

 The measurement of the net deferred tax liabilities of PM Bintulu amounting to RM86,867,000 (2015: RM67,667,000) 
is based on the assumptions below:

 (i) PM Bintulu will successfully obtain the MIDA’s approval to extend the pioneer period to 31 December 2027 at 
the end of the current 5-year period granted;

 (ii) there will not be any substantial changes to the estimated useful lives of the property, plant and equipment of 
PM Bintulu nor will there be any significant disposals/write-off of existing property, plant and equipment up to 31 
December 2027; and

 (iii) there will not be any substantial changes to the currently enacted tax rates.

 Unrecognised deferred tax assets

 Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the following items (stated at gross):

 Group

2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000

Deductible temporary differences 1,780 50

Tax loss carry-forwards 70,509 57,891

Capital allowance carry-forwards 8,100 7,402

Investment tax allowance carry-forwards 6,665 6,665

87,054 72,008

 Deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against 
which these assets can be utilised. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these items because 
it is not probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the Group entities can utilise the benefits 
therefrom. 
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10. Inventories

 Group  Company

2016 2015 2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

At cost:

Raw materials 478,398 382,870 31,711 22,814

Work-in-progress 145,732 113,989 1,088 3,126

Finished goods 257,033 313,221 11,249 10,359

Consumable parts 20,732 23,020 87 94

Goods in transit 63,941 13,531 7,326 10,988

965,836 846,631 51,461 47,381

At net realisable value:

Finished goods 45,463 23,258 - -

1,011,299 869,889 51,461 47,381

Carrying amount of inventories pledged as security 
for bank borrowings (see Note 16) 660,993 543,299 - -

Recognised in profit or loss:

Inventories recognised as cost of sales 3,616,327 2,167,719 664,891 664,817

Write-down to net realisable value 16,456 19,529 - -

 The write down is included in cost of sales. Due to the decrease in selling price of certain by-products in the Smelting 
and Extrusion operating segment, the Group wrote down these by-products to their net realisable values, which 
resulted in a loss of RM16,456,000 (2015: RM19,529,000). 
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11. Trade and other receivables 

 Group  Company

Note 2016 2015 2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Trade

Trade receivables 756,860 620,882 69,572 63,480

Less: Individual impairment allowance (9,843) (10,290) (325) (325)

747,017 610,592 69,247 63,155

Amounts due from subsidiaries 11.1 - - 235,424 309,892

Less: Individual Impairment allowance 11.1 - - - (558)

- - 235,424 309,334

Amount due from an associate 11.1 49,726 41,098 46,924 40,083

796,743 651,690 351,595 412,572

Non-trade

Amounts due from subsidiaries 11.1 - - 593,349 282,101

Less: Individual impairment allowance 11.1 - - (64,428) (94)

- - 528,921 282,007

Amount due from an associate 11.1 393 386 - -

Other receivables 11.2 54,862 52,864 1,837 2,149

Deposits 7,506 9,770 1,976 1,743

Goods and services tax claimable 11.3 25,779 16,610 1,987 1,176

88,540 79,630 5,800 5,068

88,540 79,630 534,721 287,075

885,283 731,320 886,316 699,647
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11. Trade and other receivables  cont’d

 11.1 Related party balances

  The trade balances due from subsidiaries and an associate are subject to normal trade terms. The non-trade 
balances due from subsidiaries and an associate are unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand. 

  At 31 December 2016, included in non-trade balances due from subsidiaries are dividends receivable 
amounting to RM172,560,000 (2015: Nil).

  During the previous financial year, impairment allowance amounting to RM9,880,000 was written off against 
amounts due from subsidiaries.

 11.2 Other receivables

  Included in other receivables of the Group are advances made to a purchasing agent for the procurement of 
spare parts and materials on behalf of the Group entities amounting to RM7,031,000 (2015: RM11,750,000).

 11.3 Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

  The following table provides information of financial assets and liabilities that have been set off for presentation 
purposes:

Gross
amount

Balances that
are set off

Net carrying 
amount

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Group

2016

Goods and services tax claimable 101,583 (75,804) 25,779

Goods and services tax payable (75,804) 75,804 -

2015

Goods and services tax claimable 66,055 (49,445) 16,610

Goods and services tax payable (49,445) 49,445 -
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11. Trade and other receivables  cont’d

 11.3 Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities  cont’d

Gross
amount

Balances that
are set off

Net carrying 
amount

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Company

2016

Goods and services tax claimable 3,705 (1,718) 1,987

Goods and services tax payable (1,718) 1,718 -

2015

Goods and services tax claimable 3,726 (2,550) 1,176

Goods and services tax payable (2,550) 2,550 -

  The goods and services tax claimable and goods and services tax payable were set off for presentation purposes 
because each of the Group entities has enforceable right to set off and intends to settle on a net basis.

 11.4 Estimation uncertainty and critical judgements 

  The Group and the Company make impairment allowance on receivables based on assessment of recoverability. 
Whilst management’s assessment is guided by past experiences, judgement is made about the future recovery 
of debts.

12. Prepayments

 At 31 December 2016, included in prepayments of the Group are payments amounting to RM4,820,000 (2015: 
RM60,683,000) made by a subsidiary for electricity charges under take-or-pay contracts. The balance represents the 
unutilised portion of electricity charges which the subsidiary is entitled, subject to certain terms and conditions, to 
utilise in future without any additional charges.
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13. Derivative financial assets/(liabilities)

Group Nominal value Assets Liabilities

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

2016

Derivatives held for trading at fair value through profit or loss:

- Commodity swaps 4,339,546 52,918 (1,245)

- Forward exchange contracts 2,778,257 - (127,067)

7,117,803 52,918 (128,312)

2015

Derivatives held for trading at fair value through profit or loss:

- Commodity swaps 69,061 7,308 -

- Forward exchange contracts 1,128,976 21,100 (4,412)

1,198,037 28,408 (4,412)

 Commodity swaps are used to lock in aluminium prices while forward exchange contracts are used to manage the 
foreign currency exposures arising from the monetary assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than the 
functional currencies of Group entities. Most of the derivatives have maturities of one to two years after the end of the 
reporting period. Where necessary, the derivatives are rolled over at maturity.

14. Cash and cash equivalents

 Group  Company

2016 2015 2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
 
Deposits placed with licensed banks 106,646 138,007 3,173 455

Cash and bank balances 271,033 167,113 7,986 20,845

377,679 305,120 11,159 21,300

 Included in deposits placed with licensed banks of the Group is RM90,940,000 (2015: RM76,210,000) pledged for 
bank facilities granted to certain subsidiaries (see Note 16).
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15. Capital and reserves 

 Share capital

 Group and Company

Amount
Number

of shares Amount
Number

of shares

2016 2016 2015 2015

RM’000 ’000 RM’000 ’000

Ordinary shares:

Authorised:

At 1 January 1,000,000 2,000,000 1,000,000 2,000,000

Share split - 2,000,000 - -

Created during the year 1,000,000 4,000,000 - -

At 31 December 2,000,000 8,000,000 1,000,000 2,000,000

Issued and fully paid:

At 1 January 649,416 1,298,831 550,397 1,100,792

Issued during the year:

- Share split - 1,317,697 - -

- Bonus issue 263,539 1,054,157 - -

- Conversion of RCSLS - - 96,300 192,600

- Exercise of warrants 11,518 27,204 2,719 5,439

At 31 December 924,473 3,697,889 649,416 1,298,831

 Ordinary shares

 The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time, and are entitled to one 
vote per share at meetings of the Company.

 Share premium

 Share premium comprises the premium paid on subscription of shares in the Company over and above the par value 
of the shares.
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15. Capital and reserves  cont’d

 Translation reserve

 The translation reserve comprises all foreign currency differences arising from the translation of the financial 
statements of foreign operations. 

 Hedging reserve

 The hedging reserve comprises the effective portion of the cumulative net change in the fair value of cash flow 
hedges related to hedged transactions that have not yet occurred.

 Capital reserves (RCSLS and warrants reserves)

 The capital reserves comprise the equity portion of RCSLS issued together with free warrants attached (see Note 16.3).

 At an extraordinary general meeting held on 29 June 2011, the Company’s shareholders approved a proposed 
renounceable rights issue of up to RM323,735,042 nominal value of 8-year 6% RCSLS at 100% of its nominal value 
together with up to 147,152,292 free warrants on the basis of one RM2.20 nominal value of RCSLS together with one 
warrant for every three existing ordinary shares of RM0.50 each held in the Company.

 On 26 August 2011, the Company issued 145,684,940 RCSLS together with 145,684,940 free detachable warrants for 
cash of RM320,506,868. The RCSLS are convertible into 145,684,940 ordinary shares of RM0.50 each from the first 
anniversary of the issue date of the RCSLS up to 22 August 2019 at the option of the holder, which is at a rate of one 
ordinary share of RM0.50 each for every one RCSLS held (adjusted to two ordinary shares of RM0.50 each for every 
one RCSLS held consequential to the bonus issue credited on 10 November 2014 on the basis of 1 bonus share for 
every existing share held). Unconverted RCSLS will be entitled to receive a coupon of 6% per annum based on the 
nominal value of RCSLS held. 

 In February 2015, the shareholders of the Company approved the conversion of all RCSLS held by Alpha Milestone 
Sdn. Bhd. (“AMSB”) and persons acting-in-concert (“PACS”) without undertaking a mandatory takeover offer. This was 
subsequently approved by the Securities Commission.

 Following the necessary approvals, AMSB and PACS converted all their RCSLS to ordinary shares of the Company. In 
March 2015, the Securities Commission further approved the Company to early redeem and cancel all the remaining 
517,733 unconverted RCSLS. This was completed via the repayment of RM1,139,013 by the Company to the RCSLS 
holders.

 The warrants are in registered form and constituted by a deed poll. The registered holders are entitled to subscribe 
for one new ordinary share in the Company at a price of RM0.39 (adjusted subsequent to the share split and bonus 
issue of the ordinary shares of the Company during the financial year) per ordinary share for every warrant held. 
The conversion ratio is subject to the aforesaid deed poll and can be exercised at any time during the eight-year 
subscription period up to 22 August 2019.
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15. Capital and reserves  cont’d
 
 Capital reserves (RCSLS and warrants reserves)  cont’d

 The number of RCSLS and warrants is as follows:

RCSLS RCSLS Warrants Warrants

2016 2015 2016 2015

’000 ’000 ’000 ’000

Outstanding at 1 January - 96,901 143,611 149,050

Adjusted consequential to the share split during  
the year - - 124,747 -

Adjusted consequential to the bonus issue during  
the year - - 99,797 -

Converted/Exercised during the year - (96,300) (27,204) (5,439)

Redeemed during the year - (601) - -

Outstanding at 31 December - - 340,951 143,611

16. Loans and borrowings

 Group  Company

Note 2016 2015 2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Non-current

Bank loans:

- secured 16.1 1,697,541 1,846,507 3,114 3,642

- unsecured 16.1 69,960 125,656 - -

Finance lease liabilities 16.2 12,660 17,719 1,485 1,379

RCSLS 16.3 - - - -

1,780,161 1,989,882 4,599 5,021
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 Group  Company

Note 2016 2015 2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Current

Bank loans:

- secured 16.1 583,773 511,081 528 528

- unsecured 16.1 61,211 46,181 - -

Bankers’ acceptances:

- secured 16.4 583,009 537,227 7,016 11,848

- unsecured 16.4 183,967 64,995 9,620 62,944

Revolving credits:

- secured 16.5 83,742 160,906 - -

- unsecured 16.5 89,694 85,898 - -

Bank overdrafts:

- secured 16.6 2,817 - 2,817 -

- unsecured 16.6 1,118 1,489 - -

Finance lease liabilities 16.2 12,808 17,092 1,114 2,281

RCSLS 16.3 - - - -

1,602,139 1,424,869 21,095 77,601

3,382,300 3,414,751 25,694 82,622
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 16.1 Bank loans

 Group  Company

2016 2015 2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Loan of the Company:

Loan 1 – secured 3,642 4,170 3,642 4,170

Loans of subsidiaries:

Loan 2 – secured 211 242 - -

Loan 3 – unsecured 131,171 171,837 - -

Loan 4 – secured 619,527 908,875 - -

Loan 5 – secured 162,098 200,475 - -

Loan 6 – secured 794,597 571,037 - -

Loan 7 – secured 201,433 255,660 - -

Loan 8 – secured 359,325 417,129 - -

Loan 9 – secured 140,459 - - -

Loan 10 – secured 22 - - -

2,412,485 2,529,425 3,642 4,170

  Securities and guarantees

  Loan 1 Secured over a building of the Company with a carrying amount of RM5,828,000 (2015: RM5,952,000)
  Loan 2  Secured over a building of a subsidiary with a carrying amount of RM809,000 (2015: RM835,000) and 

guaranteed by the Company
  Loan 3 Guaranteed by the Company
  Loan 4 Secured over a leasehold land of a subsidiary with a carrying amount of RM20,886,000 (2015: 

RM33,996,000), floating charges over other property, plant and equipment, deposits pledged with a 
licensed bank of RM43,525,000 (2015: RM38,455,000) and guaranteed by the Company

  Loan 5 Secured over a leasehold land of a subsidiary with a carrying amount of RM196,270,000 (2015: 
RM205,497,000) and guaranteed by the Company and a subsidiary

  Loan 6 Secured over a leasehold land of a subsidiary with a carrying amount of RM20,886,000 (2015: 
RM33,996,000), floating charges over other property, plant and equipment, deposits pledged with a 
licensed bank of RM9,209,000 (2015: RM6,928,000) and guaranteed by the Company
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 16.1 Bank loans  cont’d

  Securities and guarantees  cont’d

  Loan 7 Secured over deposits pledged with a licensed bank of RM3,000 (2015: RM11,693,000) and 
guaranteed by the Company

  Loan 8 Secured over leasehold land of a subsidiary with a carrying amount of RM33,988,000 (2015: 
RM34,350,000), fixed and floating charges over other property, plant and equipment, deposits 
pledged with a licensed bank of RM27,153,000 (2015: RM18,678,000) and guaranteed by the 
Company

  Loan 9 Secured over deposits pledged with a licensed bank of RM11,050,000 and guaranteed by the 
Company and a subsidiary

  Loan 10 Secured over a building of a subsidiary with a carrying amount of RM627,000 and guaranteed by a 
Director of the Company

  Significant covenants

  In connection with the significant bank loan facilities of Press Metal (HK) Limited, Press Metal Bintulu Sdn. Bhd. 
and Press Metal Sarawak Sdn. Bhd., the subsidiaries and the Company have agreed on the following significant 
covenants with the lenders:

  Press Metal (HK) Limited (Loan 3)

  The subsidiary of Press Metal (HK) Limited, PMI shall maintain a minimum Debt Service Cover Ratio (“DSCR”) of 
1.25 times and Debt-To-Equity Ratio (“DE”) of 70:30.

  Press Metal Bintulu Sdn. Bhd. (Loans 4 and 9)

  i) The subsidiary shall maintain a minimum DSCR of 1.25 times, minimum DE of 1.75 to 2.33 and maximum 
gross debt-to-EBITDA of not more than 2.50 to 5.00 times; 

  ii) The Company shall maintain a minimum DE of 1.5 to 3.0 times for the current financial year and maximum 
gross debt-to-EBITDA of not more than 2.50 to 5.00 times; and

  iii) The Company shall maintain its shareholdings in the subsidiary.
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 16.1 Bank loans  cont’d

  Significant covenants  cont’d

  Press Metal Bintulu Sdn. Bhd. (Loan 6)

  i) The subsidiary shall maintain a maximum gross debt/tangible net worth of 1.50 times for the current 
financial year, minimum DSCR of 1.25 times and maximum gross debt-to-EBITDA of not more than 4.50 
times for the current financial year;

  ii) The Company shall maintain a maximum gross debt/tangible net worth of 1.50 times for the current 
financial year and maximum gross debt-to-EBITDA of not more than 5.50 times for the current financial 
year; and

  iii) The Company shall maintain its shareholdings in the subsidiary.

  Press Metal Sarawak Sdn. Bhd. (Loan 7)

  i) The subsidiary shall maintain a minimum net worth of RM600 million, net gearing ratio of not more than 
1.50 times, net debt-to-EBITDA of not more than 4.00 times and minimum DSCR of 1.25 times;

  ii) The Group shall maintain a minimum net worth of RM1.5 billion, net gearing ratio of not more than 2.50 
times, net debt-to-EBITDA of not more than 4.50 times for the current financial year and minimum DSCR of 
1.25 times; and

  iii) The Company and the non-controlling interest holder shall maintain their shareholdings in the subsidiary.

  Press Metal Sarawak Sdn. Bhd. (Loan 8)

  The subsidiary shall maintain a net gearing ratio of not more than 1.50 times, net debt-to-EBITDA of not more 
3.50 times for the current financial year and minimum DSCR of 1.25 times.



158 Press Metal Berhad 153208 WPress Metal Berhad 153208 W
Notes to the Financial Statements
Cont’d

16. Loans and borrowings  cont’d

 16.2 Finance lease liabilities

  Finance lease liabilities are payable as follows:

Future
minimum

lease
payments Interest

Present
value of

minimum
lease

payments

Future
minimum

lease
payments Interest

Present
value of

minimum
lease

payments

2016 2016 2016 2015 2015 2015

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Group

Less than one year 14,243 (1,435) 12,808 18,890 (1,798) 17,092

Between one and five years 14,355 (1,695) 12,660 19,555 (2,405) 17,150

More than five years - - - 692 (123) 569

28,598 (3,130) 25,468 39,137 (4,326) 34,811

Company

Less than one year 1,294 (180) 1,114 2,654 (373) 2,281

Between one and five years 1,754 (269) 1,485 1,436 (221) 1,215

More than five years - - - 195 (31) 164

3,048 (449) 2,599 4,285 (625) 3,660
 
 16.3 RCSLS 

  On 26 August 2011, the Company issued 145,684,940 RCSLS together with 145,684,940 free detachable 
warrants for cash of RM320,506,868. The RCSLS are convertible into 145,684,940 ordinary shares of RM0.50 
each from the first anniversary of the issue date of the RCSLS up to 22 August 2019 at the option of the holder, 
which is at a rate of one ordinary share of RM0.50 each for every one RCSLS held (adjusted to two ordinary 
shares of RM0.50 each for every one RCSLS consequential to the bonus issue credited on 10 November 2014 on 
the basis of 1 bonus share for every existing share held). Unconverted RCSLS will be entitled to receive a coupon 
of 6% per annum based on the nominal value of RCSLS held.
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16. Loans and borrowings  cont’d

 16.3 RCSLS  cont’d

  In February 2015, the shareholders of the Company approved the conversion of all RCSLS held by AMSB 
and PACS without undertaking a mandatory takeover offer. This was subsequently approved by the Securities 
Commission.

  Following the necessary approvals, AMSB and PACS converted all their RCSLS to ordinary shares of the 
Company. In March 2015, the Securities Commission further approved the Company to early redeem and cancel 
all the remaining 517,733 unconverted RCSLS. This was completed via the repayment of RM1,139,013 by the 
Company to the RCSLS holders.

Group and Company

2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000

Proceeds from issue of 145,684,940 RCSLS and free warrants - 320,507

Transaction costs - (6,819)

Net proceeds - 313,688

Amounts classified as equity:

- RCSLS reserve (see Note 15) - (14,408)

- Warrants reserve (see Note 15) - (76,475)

Amount classified as deferred tax liabilities - (27,719)

Accreted interest - 34,999

Amortisation of transaction costs - 4,905

- 234,990

Less: Converted RCSLS - (206,556)

Less: Redeemed RCSLS - (28,434)

Carrying amount at 31 December - -

Movement of RCSLS during the year

At 1 January - 149,773

Conversion during the year - (148,454)

Redemption during the year - (1,319)

At 31 December - -
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16. Loans and borrowings  cont’d

 16.4 Bankers’ acceptances

 Group  Company

2016 2015 2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
 
Secured over property, plant and equipment 

and/or inventories and/or deposits pledged 
with licensed banks and guaranteed by the 
Company 575,993 525,379 - -

Secured over a building of the Company 7,016 11,848 7,016 11,848

Guaranteed by the Company 9,322 2,051 - -

No securities nor guarantees 174,645 62,944 9,620 62,944

766,976 602,222 16,636 74,792

 16.5 Revolving credits

  The revolving credits of the Group entities amounting to RM83,742,000 (2015: RM160,906,000) are secured 
over fixed and floating charges over the property, plant and equipment, inventories and deposits pledged 
with licensed banks of subsidiaries of which RM173,436,000 (2015: RM89,836,000) is also guaranteed by the 
Company. 

  The entire unsecured revolving credits of the Group entities are guaranteed by the Company.

 16.6 Bank overdrafts 

  The entire secured bank overdrafts of the Group and of the Company are secured over a building of the 
Company with a carrying amount of RM5,828,000.

  The entire unsecured bank overdrafts of the Group entities are guaranteed by the Company.
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17. Trade and other payables

 Group  Company

Note 2016 2015 2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Trade

Trade payables 17.1 802,961 533,752 13,995 13,124

Amounts due to subsidiaries 17.2 - - 1,014,726 599,021

Amount due to an associate 17.2 14,305 11,459 39 55

817,266 545,211 1,028,760 612,200

Non-trade

Amounts due to subsidiaries 17.2 - - 3,139 414,496

Amount due to an associate 17.2 2,635 2,225 1,948 1,958

Other payables 17.3 436,134 851,612 223,142 31,269

Accrued expenses 69,653 56,372 6,495 5,499

508,422 910,209 234,724 453,222

1,325,688 1,455,420 1,263,484 1,065,422

 17.1 Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

  The following table provides information of financial assets and liabilities that have been set off for presentation 
purposes:

Gross
amount

Balances that
are set off

Net carrying 
amount

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Group

2015

Trade receivables 22,382 (22,382) -

Trade payables (27,806) 22,382 (5,424)

  Certain trade receivables and trade payables were set off for presentation purpose because a subsidiary has 
enforceable right to set off and it intends to settle on a net basis.
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17. Trade and other payables  cont’d

 17.2 Related party balances

  The trade balances due to subsidiaries and an associate are subject to normal trade terms. The non-trade 
balances due to subsidiaries and an associate are unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.

 17.3 Other payables

  Included in other payables of the Group and of the Company are: 

 Group  Company

2016 2015 2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Amounts due to: 

- a purchasing agent 56,423 55,843 5,210 -

- contractors of the Samalaju Plant 29,302 231,338 - -

- state government of Sarawak (leasehold land 
premium) 7,335 7,416 - -

Advance payments received in relation to 
forward sale agreements entered with:

- a customer 200,455 332,684 200,455 -

- a non-controlling interest holder 73,728 127,057 - -

18. Revenue

 Group  Company

2016 2015 2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
 
Sale of goods 6,534,546 4,223,825 822,645 807,892

Services 876 854 - -

Contracting and fabrication 114,029 96,592 - -

Dividends - - 172,560 33,240

6,649,451 4,321,271 995,205 841,132
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19. Finance income

 Group  Company

2016 2015 2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Interest income of financial assets that are not at fair 
value through profit or loss:

- fixed deposits 3,987 1,928 - -

- loan to a subsidiary - - - 3,189

3,987 1,928 - 3,189

20. Finance costs

 Group  Company

2016 2015 2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Interest expense of financial liabilities that are not at 
fair value through profit or loss:

- bank overdrafts 61 145 1 34

- bank loans:

- amortisation of transaction costs 15,445 5,300 - -

- interest paid and payable 90,815 58,342 191 221

- bankers’ acceptances 35,449 32,478 17,444 19,948

- finance lease liabilities 1,480 1,462 209 219

- revolving credits 4,049 11,573 - -

- RCSLS:

- coupon payment - 3,189 - 3,189

147,299 112,489 17,845 23,611

Other finance costs 35,309 22,238 260 185

182,608 134,727 18,105 23,796
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20. Finance costs  cont’d

 Group  Company

2016 2015 2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Recognised in profit or loss 160,298 97,726 18,105 23,796

Capitalised on qualifying assets:

- property, plant and equipment 22,310 37,001 - -

182,608 134,727 18,105 23,796

21. Profit before tax

 Group  Company

2016 2015 2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Profit before tax is arrived after charging:

Auditors’ remuneration:

- Audit fees

KPMG in Malaysia 800 765 260 245

Other auditors 638 553 - -

- Non-audit fees

KPMG in Malaysia 190 85 190 25

Bad debts written off 124 4,427 - -

Depreciation of investment properties 72 42 34 -

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 365,115 257,381 14,668 16,694

Fair value loss on derivatives 23,996 - - 1,091
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21. Profit before tax  cont’d

 Group  Company

2016 2015 2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Profit before tax is arrived after charging:  cont’d

Impairment loss:

- Amounts due from subsidiaries - - 64,334 -

- Investment properties - 200 - -

- Investments in subsidiaries - - - 14,883

- Property, plant and equipment 30,000 - - -

- Trade receivables 561 2,214 - -

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 733 491 - -

Personnel expenses (including key management 
personnel):

- Contributions to Employees’ Provident Fund 7,740 6,678 3,007 2,679

- Wages, salaries and others 248,663 216,035 39,912 38,328

Property, plant and equipment written off 16,338 54,632 78 -

Realised foreign exchange loss 6,996 239,552 - 4,748

Rental expense in respect of:

- Property 6,779 6,460 2,405 2,218

- Equipment and machinery 6,232 4,460 772 907

Unrealised foreign exchange loss 42,344 60,113 - 27,888
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21. Profit before tax  cont’d

 Group  Company

2016 2015 2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

and after crediting:

Dividend income from:

- Associate (quoted shares) - - 1,074 859

- Subsidiaries (unquoted shares) - - 172,560 33,240

Fair value gain on derivatives - 15,502 - -

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment - - 127 64

Insurance compensation received 95,017 20,000 - -

Realised derivative gain 36,035 78,901 23,565 28,377

Realised foreign exchange gain - - 7,302 -

Rental income from: 

- Investment property 102 114 - -

- Property 5,646 3,517 - -

Reversal of impairment loss:

- Amounts due from subsidiaries - - 558 34,334

- Investments in subsidiaries - - 13,776 -

- Trade receivables 410 1,657 - -

Unrealised foreign exchange gain - - 9,635 -
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22. Tax expense

 Recognised in profit or loss

 Group  Company

2016 2015 2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Income tax expense 69,062 71,007 9,815 4,539

Share of tax of an equity-accounted associate 715 786 - -

Total income tax expense 69,777 71,793 9,815 4,539

Major components of income tax expense include:

Current tax expense

Malaysian - current year 8,165 5,402 7,558 4,782

 - prior year 2,196 (323) 2,257 (243)

Overseas - current year 10,694 13,074 - -

 - prior year 138 2 - -

Total current tax recognised in profit or loss 21,193 18,155 9,815 4,539

Deferred tax expense

Origination and reversal of temporary differences 44,965 52,558 - -

Under provision in prior year 2,904 294 - -

Total deferred tax recognised in profit or loss (Note 9) 47,869 52,852 - -

Share of tax of an equity-accounted associate 715 786 - -

Total income tax expense 69,777 71,793 9,815 4,539
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22. Tax expense  cont’d

 Recognised in profit or loss  cont’d

 Group  Company

2016 2015 2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Reconciliation of tax expense

Profit for the year 605,770 160,969 151,797 30,923

Total income tax expense 69,777 71,793 9,815 4,539

Profit excluding tax 675,547 232,762 161,612 35,462

Income tax calculated using Malaysian tax rate  
of 24% (2015: 25%) 162,131 58,191 38,787 8,866

Effect of tax rates in foreign jurisdictions (205) (2,234) - -

Non-deductible expenses 32,952 23,883 14,508 13,024

Non-taxable income (40,001) (6,235) (45,737) (17,108)

Tax incentives (93,949) (2,261) - -

Effect of deferred tax assets not recognised 3,611 476 - -

Under/(Over) provision in prior years 5,238 (27) 2,257 (243)

69,777 71,793 9,815 4,539

 Non-taxable income

 The non-taxable income of the Group and of the Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2016 mainly 
relate to insurance compensation received and dividends received from subsidiaries, respectively. 
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22. Tax expense  cont’d

 Tax incentives 

 Press Metal Bintulu Sdn. Bhd. (“PM Bintulu”) 

 In October 2013, PM Bintulu was awarded Pioneer Status by the MIDA, which entitles PM Bintulu exemption from 
tax for a period of 5 years from 1 January 2013 to 31 December 2017 on 100% of statutory income derived from the 
production of aluminium products. PM Bintulu is allowed to apply for an additional 5 years exemption upon expiry of 
the first 5 years. 

 In July 2014, the MIDA further granted PM Bintulu the right to apply for an additional 5 years Pioneer Status, resulting 
in a potential extension of exemption from tax up to 31 December 2027.

23. Earnings per ordinary share

 Basic earnings per ordinary share

 The calculation of basic earnings per ordinary share at 31 December 2016 was based on the profit attributable to 
ordinary shareholders and a weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding, calculated as follows:

 Group

2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000

Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders 483,572 132,345

 Group

2016 2015

’000 ’000
Restated

Issued ordinary shares at 1 January 1,298,831 1,100,792

Effect of share split during the year 1,305,918 1,274,974

Effect of bonus issue during the year 1,044,735 1,019,979

Effect of conversion of RCSLS during the year - 170,385

Effect of exercise of warrants during the year 7,802 3,797

Weighted average number of ordinary shares at 31 December 3,657,286 3,569,927
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23. Earnings per ordinary share  cont’d

 Basic earnings per ordinary share  cont’d

 Group

2016 2015

sen sen
Restated

Basic earnings per ordinary share 13.22 3.71

 Diluted earnings per ordinary share

 The calculation of diluted earnings per ordinary share at 31 December 2016 was based on the profit attributable 
to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding after adjustment for the 
effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares, calculated as follows:

 Group

2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000

Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders 483,572 132,345

 Group

2016 2015

’000 ’000
Restated

Weighted average number of ordinary shares at 31 December (basic) 3,657,286 3,569,927

Effect of warrants on issue 233,573 228,927

Weighted average number of ordinary shares at 31 December (diluted) 3,890,859 3,798,854
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23. Earnings per ordinary share  cont’d

 Diluted earnings per ordinary share  cont’d

 Group

2016 2015

sen sen
Restated

 
Diluted earnings per ordinary share 12.43  3.48

 The average market value of the Company’s shares for purpose of calculating the dilutive effect of warrants was based 
on quoted market prices for the period during which the warrants were outstanding. 

24. Dividends

 Dividends recognised by the Company:

Sen 
per share

Total
amount Date of payment

RM RM’000

2016

Fourth interim 2015 ordinary 1.5 19,482 25 March 2016

First interim 2016 ordinary 3.0 38,984 31 May 2016

Second interim 2016 ordinary 3.0 39,344 20 September 2016

Third interim 2016 ordinary 1.0 36,896 25 November 2016

Total amount 134,706

2015

Fourth interim 2014 ordinary 3.0 38,788 12 March 2015

First interim 2015 ordinary 3.0 38,953 2 June 2015

Second interim 2015 ordinary 1.5 19,482 10 September 2015

Third interim 2015 ordinary 1.5 19,482 28 December 2015

Total amount 116,705
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24. Dividends  cont’d

 After the end of the reporting period the following dividend was declared by the Directors and paid on 28 March 
2017. This dividend will be recognised in subsequent financial period. The Directors do not recommend any final 
dividend to be paid for the financial year under review. 

Sen 
per share

Total
amount

RM RM’000

Fourth interim 2016 ordinary 1.5 55,649

25. Operating segments

 The Group has two reportable segments, as described below, which are the Group’s strategic business units. The 
strategic business units offer different products and services, and are managed separately because they require 
different technology and marketing strategies. For each of the strategic business units, the Chief Operating Decision 
Maker (“CODM”) (i.e. the Group’s Chief Executive Officer) reviews internal management reports at least on a quarterly 
basis. The following summary describes the operations in each of the Group’s reportable segments:

Smelting and Extrusion Includes manufacturing and trading of smelting and extrusion products
Trading Includes marketing of aluminium products

 The manufacturing and trading of smelting and extrusion products are managed by two different segments within the 
Group. These operating segments are aggregated to form a reportable segment as Smelting and Extrusion due to the 
similar nature and economic characteristics of the products. The nature and methods of distribution of the products 
for these divisions are similar. The type of customers for the products are similar, which consist of industrial customers.

 Other non-reportable segments comprise operations related to contracting and fabrication, waste management, 
manufacturing of moulds and dies, investment holding and dormant companies. None of these segments met the 
quantitative thresholds for reporting segments in 2016 and 2015.

 There are varying levels of integration between Smelting and Extrusion reportable segment and Trading reportable 
segment. This integration includes transfers of raw materials and shared distribution services, respectively. Inter-
segment pricing is determined on negotiated basis. 

 Performance is measured based on segment profit before tax and interest, as included in the internal management 
reports that are reviewed by the CODM. Segment profit is used to measure performance as management believes 
that such information is the most relevant in evaluating the results of certain segments relative to other entities that 
operate within these industries.
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25. Operating segments  cont’d

 Segment assets

 The total of segment assets is measured based on all assets (including goodwill) of a segment, as included in the 
internal management reports that are reviewed by the CODM. Segment total assets information is used to measure 
the return on assets of each segment.

 Segment liabilities

 Segment liabilities information is neither included in the internal management reports nor provided regularly to the 
CODM. Hence, no disclosure is made on segment liabilities.

 Segment capital expenditure

 Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the financial year to acquire property, plant and 
equipment, investment properties and other investments.

 Smelting
 and extrusion  Trading  Total

Group 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Segment profit 855,295 327,508 14,254 8,490 869,549 335,998

Included in the measure of segment  
profit are:

Revenue from external customers 6,031,626 4,089,423 478,920 102,739 6,510,546 4,192,162

Inter-segment revenue 371,986 404,595 - - 371,986 404,595

Property, plant and equipment written off 12,738 54,632 1 - 12,739 54,632

Depreciation 361,233 252,915 607 600 361,840 253,515

Not included in the measure of segment 
profit but provided to CODM:

Finance costs 148,695 87,748 56 11 148,751 87,759

Finance income 3,966 1,927 18 1 3,984 1,928

Tax expense 62,502 67,256 2,614 1,701 65,116 68,957
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25. Operating segments  cont’d

 Smelting
 and extrusion  Trading  Total

Group 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Segment assets 6,767,387 6,337,326 227,964 209,905 6,995,351 6,547,231

Included in the measure of segment  
assets are:

Investment in an associate 44,023 41,637 - - 44,023 41,637

Additions to non-current assets other than 
 financial instruments and deferred tax 

assets 433,716 1,814,779 671 743 434,387 1,815,522

 Reconciliation of reportable segment revenues, profit or loss, assets and other material items

Group 2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000

Revenue

Total external revenue for reportable segments 6,510,546 4,192,162

Other non-reportable segments 138,905 129,109

Consolidated total 6,649,451 4,321,271

Profit or loss

Total profit or loss for reportable segments 869,549 335,998

Other non-reportable segments (44,855) 1,891

Elimination of inter-segment losses/(profits) 3,479 (12,255)

Finance income 3,987 1,928

Finance costs (160,298) (97,726)

Share of profit of an associate not included in reportable segments 2,970 2,140

Tax expense (69,062) (71,007)

Consolidated total 605,770 160,969
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25. Operating segments  cont’d

 Reconciliation of reportable segment revenues, profit or loss, assets and other material items  cont’d

Group 2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000

Total assets

Total assets for reportable segments 6,995,351 6,547,231

Other non-reportable segments 890,445 918,881

Elimination of inter-segment balances (183,960) (92,055)

Consolidated total 7,701,836 7,374,057

Depreciation

Total depreciation for reportable segments 361,840 253,515

Other non-reportable segments 3,347 3,908

Consolidated total 365,187 257,423

Additions to non-current assets

Total additions to non-current assets for reportable segments 434,387 1,815,522

Other non-reportable segments 1,031 28,564

Consolidated total 435,418 1,844,086

 Geographical segments

 The Smelting and Extrusion and the Trading segments are managed on a worldwide basis, but operate manufacturing 
facilities and sales offices mainly in Malaysia (country of domicile), Asia region which includes Hong Kong and China, 
Australia for the Oceania region, United Kingdom for the Europe region and the United States of America for the 
America region.

 In presenting information on the basis of geographical segments, segment revenue is based on geographical location 
of customers. Segment assets are based on the geographical location of the assets. 
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 Geographical information

 Revenue  Non-current assets

2016 2015 2016 2015

Group RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Malaysia 1,606,599 1,168,976 4,829,164 4,787,953

Asia 2,610,502 1,370,475 475,762 553,598

Oceania 92,113 74,696 5,624 1,320

Europe 2,217,790 1,598,995 9,551 11,068

America 122,447 108,129 197 157

6,649,451 4,321,271 5,320,297 5,354,096

 Major customers

 The following are major customers with revenue equal or more than 10% of the Group’s total revenue: 

 Revenue Segment

2016 2015

Group RM’000 RM’000

All common control companies of:

Gerald Metal S.A. 996,685 735,505 Smelting and Extrusion

Sumitomo Corporation Asia and Oceania Pte. Ltd. 1,839,509 684,149 Smelting and Extrusion

26. Financial instruments 

 26.1 Categories of financial instruments

  The table below provides an analysis of financial instruments categorised as follows:

  (a) Loans and receivables (“L&R”);
  (b) Fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”):
   - Held for trading (“HFT”); 
  (c) Available-for-sale financial assets (“AFS”);
  (d) Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost (“FL”).
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26. Financial instruments  cont’d

 26.1 Categories of financial instruments  cont’d

Carrying
amount

L&R/
(FL)

FVTPL
- HFT AFS

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

2016

Financial assets

Group

Other investments 27,803 - 26,000 1,803

Trade and other receivables 885,283 885,283 - -

Derivative financial assets 52,918 - 52,918 -

Cash and cash equivalents 377,679 377,679 - -

1,343,683 1,262,962 78,918 1,803

Company

Other investments 750 - - 750

Trade and other receivables 886,316 886,316 - -

Cash and cash equivalents 11,159 11,159 - -

898,225 897,475 - 750

Financial liabilities

Group

Loans and borrowings (3,382,300) (3,382,300) - -

Trade and other payables (1,325,688) (1,325,688) - -

Derivative financial liabilities (128,312) - (128,312) -

(4,836,300) (4,707,988) (128,312) -

Company

Loans and borrowings (25,694) (25,694) - -

Trade and other payables (1,263,484) (1,263,484) - -

(1,289,178) (1,289,178) - -



178 Press Metal Berhad 153208 WPress Metal Berhad 153208 W
Notes to the Financial Statements
Cont’d

26. Financial instruments  cont’d

 26.1 Categories of financial instruments  cont’d

Carrying
amount

L&R/
(FL)

FVTPL
- HFT AFS

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

2015

Financial assets

Group

Other investments 1,803 - - 1,803

Trade and other receivables 731,320 731,320 - -

Derivative financial assets 28,408 - 28,408 -

Cash and cash equivalents 305,120 305,120 - -

1,066,651 1,036,440 28,408 1,803

Company

Other investments 750 - - 750

Trade and other receivables 699,647 699,647 - -

Cash and cash equivalents 21,300 21,300 - -

721,697 720,947 - 750

Financial liabilities

Group

Loans and borrowings (3,414,751) (3,414,751) - -

Trade and other payables (1,455,420) (1,455,420) - -

Derivative financial liabilities (4,412) - (4,412) -

(4,874,583) (4,870,171) (4,412) -

Company

Loans and borrowings (82,622) (82,622) - -

Trade and other payables (1,065,422) (1,065,422) - -

(1,148,044) (1,148,044) - -
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26. Financial instruments  cont’d

 26.2 Net gains and losses arising from financial instruments

 Group  Company

2016 2015 2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Net gains/(losses) on:

Fair value through profit or loss:

- Held for trading (63,355) (92,836) 23,565 27,286

Loans and receivables 48,312 (25,852) (70,147) 86,973

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost (281,686) (374,595) 5,203 (105,882)

(296,729) (493,283) (41,379) 8,377

 26.3 Financial risk management

  The Group and the Company have exposure to the following risks from their use of financial instruments:

 26.4 Credit risk

  Credit risk is the risk of a financial loss to the Group and to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a 
financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations. The Group’s exposure to credit risk arises principally 
from its receivables from customers. The Company’s exposure to credit risk arises principally from its receivables 
from customers (which are predominantly its subsidiaries), loans and advances to subsidiaries and financial 
guarantees given to banks for credit facilities granted to subsidiaries.

  Receivables

  Risk management objectives, policies and processes for managing the risk

  Management has a credit policy in place and the exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis. 
Credit evaluations are performed on customers requiring credit over a certain amount.
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26. Financial instruments  cont’d

 26.4 Credit risk  cont’d

  Receivables  cont’d

  Exposure to credit risk, credit quality and collateral

  As at the end of the reporting period, the maximum exposure to credit risk arising from receivables is 
represented by the carrying amounts in the statement of financial position.

  Management has taken reasonable steps to ensure that receivables that are neither past due nor impaired are 
stated at their realisable values. A significant portion of these receivables are regular customers that have been 
transacting with the Group and with the Company. The Group and the Company use ageing analysis to monitor 
the credit quality of the receivables. Any receivables having significant balances past due more than 150 days, 
which are deemed to have higher credit risk, are monitored individually.

  The exposure of credit risk for non-related party trade receivables as at the end of the reporting period by 
geographic region was as follows:

 Group  Company

2016 2015 2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Domestic 178,941 199,969 62,761 58,911

Asia 335,245 247,993 6,015 4,244

Oceania 16,491 14,806 135 -

Europe 198,054 129,359 324 -

America 18,286 18,465 12 -

747,017 610,592 69,247 63,155
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26. Financial instruments  cont’d

 26.4 Credit risk  cont’d

  Receivables  cont’d

  Impairment losses

  The Group and the Company maintain an ageing analysis in respect of non-related party trade receivables only. 
The ageing of trade receivables as at the end of the reporting period was:

Gross
Individual

impairment Net
Group RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

2016
Not past due 624,434 (136) 624,298
Past due 1 - 150 days 49,737 (72) 49,665
Past due more than 150 days 82,689 (9,635) 73,054

756,860 (9,843) 747,017

2015
Not past due 418,617 - 418,617
Past due 1 - 150 days 119,908 - 119,908
Past due more than 150 days 82,357 (10,290) 72,067

620,882 (10,290) 610,592

Company
2016
Not past due 60,612 - 60,612
Past due 1 - 150 days 8,404 - 8,404
Past due more than 150 days 556 (325) 231

69,572 (325) 69,247

2015
Not past due 50,706 - 50,706
Past due 1 - 150 days 8,840 - 8,840
Past due more than 150 days 3,934 (325) 3,609

63,480 (325) 63,155
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26. Financial instruments  cont’d

 26.4 Credit risk  cont’d

  Receivables  cont’d

  Impairment losses  cont’d

  No allowance for impairment losses of trade receivables has been made for the remaining past due receivables 
as the Group and the Company monitor the results and repayments of these customers regularly and are 
confident of the ability of the customers to repay the balances owing.

  The movements in the allowance for impairment losses of trade receivables during the financial year were:

 Group  Company

2016 2015 2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

At 1 January 10,290 10,675 325 325

Impairment loss recognised 561 2,214 - -

Impairment loss reversed (410) (1,657) - -

Impairment loss written off (486) (1,824) - -

Effect of movements in exchange rates (112) 882 - -

At 31 December 9,843 10,290 325 325

  The allowance account in respect of trade receivables is used to record impairment losses. Unless the Group 
and the Company are satisfied that recovery of the amount is possible, the amount considered irrecoverable is 
written off against the receivable directly.

  Investments 

  Risk management objectives, policies and processes for managing the risk

  Investments are allowed only in liquid securities. Transactions involving derivative financial instruments are with 
approved financial institutions.
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26. Financial instruments  cont’d

 26.4 Credit risk  cont’d

  Investments  cont’d

  Exposure to credit risk, credit quality and collateral

  As at the end of the reporting period, the Group has only invested in domestic securities. The maximum 
exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amounts in the statement of financial position.

  In view of the sound credit rating of counterparties, management does not expect any counterparty to fail to 
meet its obligations.

  The investments are unsecured.

  Financial guarantees

  Risk management objectives, policies and processes for managing the risk

  The Group provides unsecured financial guarantees to customers of contracting and fabrication contracts and 
the Company provides unsecured financial guarantees to banks and suppliers in respect of banking facilities 
and credit terms granted to certain subsidiaries. The Group and the Company monitor on an ongoing basis the 
results of the subsidiaries and repayments made by the subsidiaries.

  Exposure to credit risk, credit quality and collateral

  The maximum exposure to credit risk of the Group and of the Company amounts to RM12,744,000 (2015: 
RM10,123,000) and RM3,470,738,000 (2015: RM3,343,055,000) respectively, as at the end of the reporting 
period. 

  As at the end of the reporting period, there was no indication that any subsidiary would default on repayment.

  The financial guarantees have not been recognised since the fair value on initial recognition was not material.

  Inter-company receivables and loans and advances

  Risk management objectives, policies and processes for managing the risk

  The Group trades with an associate and provides unsecured loans and advances to an associate. The Company 
trades with its subsidiaries and an associate and provides unsecured loans and advances to subsidiaries. The 
Group and the Company monitor the results of the subsidiaries and associate regularly.
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26. Financial instruments  cont’d

 26.4 Credit risk  cont’d

  Inter-company receivables and loans and advances  cont’d

  Exposure to credit risk, credit quality and collateral

  As at the end of the reporting period, the maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by their carrying 
amounts in the statement of financial position.

  Impairment losses

  As at the end of the reporting period, except for non-trade balances of RM64,428,000 (2015: RM652,000) due 
from subsidiaries which are deemed not recoverable and impaired, there was no indication that the receivables 
and loans and advances to subsidiaries and associate are not recoverable. The Group and the Company do not 
specifically monitor the ageing of inter-company receivables and loans and advances. 

 26.5 Liquidity risk

  Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group and the Company will not be able to meet their financial obligations 
as they fall due. The Group’s and the Company’s exposure to liquidity risk arises principally from their various 
payables, loans and borrowings.

  The Group and the Company maintain a level of cash and cash equivalents and bank facilities deemed adequate 
by management to ensure, as far as possible, that they will have sufficient liquidity to meet their liabilities when 
they fall due. The Directors also believe that the Group and that the Company will successfully achieve the action 
plans/activities as disclosed in Note 1(b) to the financial statements.

  It is not expected that the cash flows included in the maturity analysis could occur significantly earlier, or at 
significantly different amounts.
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26. Financial instruments  cont’d

 26.5 Liquidity risk  cont’d

  Maturity analysis

  The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the end of the reporting 
period based on undiscounted contractual payments: 

Group
Carrying
amount

Contractual
interest rate

Contractual
cash flows

Under 1
year

1 - 2
years

2 - 5
years

More than
5 years

2016 RM’000 % RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Non-derivative financial 
liabilities

Trade and other 
payables 1,325,688 - 1,325,688 1,325,688 - - -

Bank loans 2,412,485 * 2,660,853 737,530 751,495 1,048,645 123,183

Revolving credits 173,436 3.00 - 5.87 173,436 173,436 - - -

Bankers’ acceptances 766,976 1.77 - 5.38 766,976 766,976 - - -

Bank overdrafts 3,935 7.56 - 8.15 3,935 3,935 - - -

Finance lease liabilities 25,468 2.23 - 6.75 28,598 14,243 8,444 5,911 -

Financial guarantees - - 12,744 12,744 - - -

4,707,988 4,972,230 3,034,552 759,939 1,054,556 123,183

Derivative financial 
liabilities

Derivatives 128,312 - 128,312 91,613 36,699 - -

4,836,300 5,100,542 3,126,165 796,638 1,054,556 123,183

  * Loans 1, 2, 3, 4, 6, 7, 8, 9 and 10 - Represents lenders’ cost of funds plus/less a margin of -2.30% to +2.90% per annum. 
   Loan 5 - Fixed rate of 5.60% per annum.
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26. Financial instruments  cont’d

 26.5 Liquidity risk  cont’d

  Maturity analysis  cont’d

Group
Carrying
amount

Contractual
interest rate

Contractual
cash flows

Under 1
year

1 - 2
years

2 - 5
years

More than
5 years

2015 RM’000 % RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Non-derivative financial 
liabilities

Trade and other 
payables 1,455,420 - 1,455,420 1,455,420 - - -

Bank loans 2,529,425 * 2,794,585 643,826 496,565 1,653,084 1,110

Revolving credits 246,804 2.95 - 6.22 246,804 246,804 - - -

Bankers’ acceptances 602,222 1.77 - 5.38 602,222 602,222 - - -

Bank overdrafts 1,489 7.60 - 7.85 1,489 1,489 - - -

Finance lease liabilities 34,811 2.23 - 6.75 39,137 18,890 11,192 8,363 692

Financial guarantees - - 10,123 10,123 - - -

4,870,171 5,149,780 2,978,774 507,757 1,661,447 1,802

Derivative financial 
liabilities

Derivatives 4,412 - 4,412 4,412 - - -

4,874,583 5,154,192 2,983,186 507,757 1,661,447 1,802

  *  Loans 1, 2, 3, 4, 6, 7 and 8 - Represents lenders’ cost of funds plus/less a margin of -1.90% to +2.90% per annum. 
   Loan 5 - Fixed rate of 5.98% per annum.
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26. Financial instruments  cont’d

 26.5 Liquidity risk  cont’d

  Maturity analysis  cont’d

  The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities as at the end of the 
reporting period based on undiscounted contractual payments:

Company
Carrying
amount

Contractual
interest rate

Contractual
cash flows

Under 1
year

1 - 2
years

2 - 5
years

More than
5 years

RM’000 % RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

2016

Non-derivative financial 
liabilities

Trade and other 
payables 1,263,484 - 1,263,484 1,263,484 - - -

Bank loan 3,642 * 4,257 693 1,309 1,771 484

Bank overdrafts 2,817 7.65 2,817 2,817 - - -

Bankers’ acceptances 16,636 1.52 - 3.75 16,636 16,636 - - -

Finance lease liabilities 2,599 2.39 - 4.50 3,048 1,294 926 828 -

Financial guarantees - - 3,470,738 3,470,738 - - -

1,289,178 4,760,980 4,755,662 2,235 2,599 484

2015

Non-derivative financial 
liabilities

Trade and other 
payables 1,065,422 - 1,065,422 1,065,422 - - -

Bank loan 4,170 * 4,906 702 1,333 1,825 1,046

Bankers’ acceptances 74,792 1.77 - 5.38 74,792 74,792 - - -

Finance lease liabilities 3,660 2.39 - 5.04 4,285 2,654 460 976 195

Financial guarantees - - 3,343,055 3,343,055 - - -

1,148,044 4,492,460 4,486,625 1,793 2,801 1,241

  * Loan 1 - Represents lender’s cost of funds less a margin of 1.90% per annum. 
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 26.6 Market risk

  Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and other 
prices that will affect the Group’s and the Company’s financial position or cash flows.

  26.6.1 Currency risk

   The Group and the Company are exposed to foreign currency risk on sales, purchases, cash and cash 
equivalents and borrowings that are denominated in a currency other than the respective functional 
currencies of Group entities. The currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily Australian Dollar (“AUD”), 
Great Britain Pound (“GBP”), Singapore Dollar (“SGD”), U.S. Dollar (“USD”), Euro (“EUR”), Renminbi 
(“RMB”) and Hong Kong Dollar (“HKD”).

   Risk management objectives, policies and processes for managing the risk

   The Group and the Company actively monitor their exposure to foreign currency risk and use forward 
exchange contracts to mitigate the risk when the need arises. Most of the forward exchange contracts 
have maturities of one to two years after the end of the reporting period. Where necessary, the forward 
exchange contracts are rolled over at maturity.

   Exposure to foreign currency risk

   The Group’s and the Company’s exposure to foreign currency (a currency which is other than the 
functional currency of the Group entities) risk, based on carrying amounts as at the end of the reporting 
period was:
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 26.6 Market risk  cont’d

  26.6.1 Currency risk  cont’d

   Exposure to foreign currency risk  cont’d

Trade
and other

receivables

Cash
and cash

equivalents
Loans and

borrowings

Trade
and other
payables

Net
exposure

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Functional
currency

Foreign 
currency

Group

2016

RM AUD 136 68 - - 204

RM GBP - 172 (9,620) - (9,448)

RM RMB - 54 - (155,838) (155,784)

RM SGD 3,892 1,123 - - 5,015

RM USD 326,131 156,100 (2,640,856) (483,921) (2,642,546)

RM EUR - 24 - (3,810) (3,786)

RMB USD 18,992 - - (10,578) 8,414

RMB EUR 3,286 - - (238) 3,048

RMB GBP 1,015 - (75,043) - (74,028)

HKD USD - 3,700 (220,868) - (217,168)

HKD RMB 381 2,183 - - 2,564
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26. Financial instruments  cont’d

 26.6 Market risk  cont’d

  26.6.1 Currency risk  cont’d

   Exposure to foreign currency risk  cont’d

Trade
and other

receivables

Cash
and cash

equivalents
Loans and

borrowings

Trade
and other
payables

Net
exposure

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Functional
currency

Foreign 
currency

Group

2015

RM AUD - 2,837 - - 2,837

RM GBP - 5,665 (14,293) - (8,628)

RM RMB - 49 - (115,313) (115,264)

RM SGD 4,265 2,743 - - 7,008

RM USD 182,670 125,893 (2,707,944) (598,871) (2,998,252)

RM EUR - 383 - - 383

RMB USD 25,460 4 (7,728) (1,897) 15,839

RMB EUR 3,580 9 - (353) 3,236

RMB GBP 317 - (81,624) - (81,307)

GBP EUR - 69 - - 69

HKD USD - 4,649 (85,898) - (81,249)

HKD RMB 386 3,535 - - 3,921
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26. Financial instruments  cont’d

 26.6 Market risk  cont’d

  26.6.1 Currency risk  cont’d

   Exposure to foreign currency risk  cont’d

Trade
and other

receivables

Cash
and cash

equivalents
Loans and

borrowings

Trade
and other
payables

Net
exposure

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Functional
currency

Foreign 
currency

Company

2016

RM AUD 37,703 68 - - 37,771

RM GBP 145,924 117 (9,620) (138,020) (1,599)

RM RMB 15,190 43 - (379,042) (363,809)

RM SGD 3,892 1,123 - - 5,015

RM USD 30,344 455 - - 30,799

RM EUR - 24 - - 24

2015

RM AUD 43,238 2,837 - - 46,075

RM GBP 129,099 5,601 (14,293) (158,184) (37,777)

RM RMB 3,947 13 - (284,611) (280,651)

RM SGD 4,265 2,743 - - 7,008

RM USD 24,661 4,390 (7,104) (13,803) 8,144

RM EUR 489 383 - - 872

   Currency risk sensitivity analysis

   Foreign currency risk mainly arises from USD, RMB and GBP against RM and USD against HKD, and 
GBP against RMB. The exposure to other currencies is not material and hence, sensitivity analysis is not 
presented.
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26. Financial instruments  cont’d

 26.6 Market risk  cont’d

  26.6.1 Currency risk  cont’d

   Currency risk sensitivity analysis  cont’d

   A 10% (2015: 10%) strengthening of RM against the following currencies at the end of the reporting 
period would have increased/(decreased) equity and post-tax profit or loss by the amounts shown below. 
This analysis is based on foreign currency exchange rate variances that the Group and the Company 
considered to be reasonably possible at the end of the reporting period. This analysis assumes that all 
other variables, in particular interest rates, remained constant and ignores any impact of forecasted sales 
and purchases.

 Group  Company

 Equity  Equity

2016 2015 2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

USD against RM 151,166 161,453 - -

 Group  Company

 Profit or loss  Profit or loss

2016 2015 2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

USD, RMB and GBP against RM

- USD 49,668 63,416 (2,341) (611)

- RMB 11,840 8,645 27,649 21,049

- GBP 718 647 122 2,833

62,226 72,708 25,430 23,271

USD against HKD 16,505 6,094 - -

GBP against RMB 5,626 6,098 - -
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 26.6 Market risk  cont’d

  26.6.1 Currency risk  cont’d

   Currency risk sensitivity analysis  cont’d

   A 10% (2015: 10%) weakening of RM against the above currencies at the end of the reporting period 
would have had equal but opposite effect on the above currencies to the amounts shown above, on the 
basis that all other variables remained constant.

  26.6.2 Interest rate risk

   The Group’s and the Company’s fixed rate borrowings are exposed to a risk of change in their fair value 
due to changes in interest rates. The Group’s and the Company’s variable rate borrowings are exposed to 
a risk of change in cash flows due to changes in interest rates. Investments in equity securities and short 
term receivables and payables are not significantly exposed to interest rate risk.

   Risk management objectives, policies and processes for managing the risk

   Interest rate exposure arising from the Group’s and the Company’s borrowings is managed through the 
use of fixed and floating rate debts. The Group and the Company will consider entering into derivative 
financial instruments where necessary to achieve an appropriate mix of fixed and floating rate exposure 
within the Group’s policy.

   Exposure to interest rate risk

   The interest rate profile of the Group’s and the Company’s significant interest-bearing financial 
instruments, based on carrying amounts as at the end of the reporting period was:

 Group  Company

2016 2015 2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Fixed rate instruments

Financial assets 106,646 138,007 3,173 455

Financial liabilities (1,127,978) (1,084,312) (22,052) (78,452)

(1,021,332) (946,305) (18,879) (77,997)

Floating rate instruments

Financial liabilities (2,254,322) (2,330,439) (3,642) (4,170)
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26. Financial instruments  cont’d

 26.6 Market risk  cont’d

  26.6.2 Interest rate risk  cont’d

   Interest rate risk sensitivity analysis

   (a) Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

    The Group and the Company do not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at 
fair value through profit or loss, and the Group and the Company do not designate derivatives as 
hedging instruments under a fair value hedge accounting model. Therefore, a change in interest 
rates at the end of the reporting period would not affect profit or loss. 

   (b) Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

    A change of 30 basis points (“bp”) in interest rates at the end of the reporting period would have 
increased/(decreased) post-tax profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes 
that all other variables, in particular foreign currency rates, remained constant.

 Profit or loss

 2016  2015

30 bp
increase

30 bp
decrease

30 bp
increase

30 bp
decrease

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Group

Floating rate instruments (5,140) 5,140 (5,243) 5,243

Company

Floating rate instruments (8) 8 (9) 9
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26. Financial instruments  cont’d

 26.6 Market risk  cont’d

  26.6.3 Other price risk

   Other price risk arises from price fluctuation risk mainly on aluminium related products and equity price 
risk, which arises from the Group’s investments in equity securities.

   Risk management objectives, policies and processes for managing the risk

   The Group and the Company mitigate their risk to the price volatility through establishing fixed price 
level that the Group and the Company consider acceptable and where deemed prudent, entering into 
commodity fixed price contracts. 

   Management monitors the equity investments on a portfolio basis which are managed by financial 
institutions. All buy and sell decisions are approved by the Directors of the Company.

   Equity price risk sensitivity analysis

   As the Group invests in a portfolio of investments with a diversified risk base, the Group is not 
significantly exposed to price fluctuations of a single derivative within the portfolio of investments. As 
a result, the Directors are of the view that the effects of equity price fluctuations within a reasonably 
possible range for the equity investments will not have a significant impact on the earnings of the Group. 
Hence, sensitivity analysis is not presented.

 26.7 Hedging activities

  26.7.1 Cash flow hedge

   The Group has used the following hedging instruments to hedge the cash flow risk in relation to its 
forecast sales denominated in USD:

 

 Group

2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000

Loans and borrowings 1,989,020 2,152,701

Forward exchange contracts 2,778,257 -

Commodity swaps 4,339,546 -

9,106,823 2,152,701
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26. Financial instruments  cont’d

 26.7 Hedging activities  cont’d

  26.7.1 Cash flow hedge  cont’d

   The forecast sales have the same total nominal value and are expected to occur around the repayment 
schedule of the loans and borrowings and maturity of the derivatives.

   The following table indicates the periods in which the cash flows associated with the forecast sales are 
expected to occur and affect profit or loss:

Group
Carrying
amount

Expected 
cash flows

Under 1
year

1 - 2
years

2 - 5
years

More 
than 5 

years

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

2016

Forecast sales - 9,293,202 4,497,273 3,716,077 947,107 132,745

2015

Forecast sales - 2,281,454 311,768 980,116 762,311 227,259

   During the financial year, a loss of RM102,842,000 (2015: RM187,239,000) was recognised in other 
comprehensive income of the Group. 

   Ineffectiveness loss was not material to be recognised in profit or loss during the current and previous 
financial years in respect of the hedges.

 26.8 Fair value information

  The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, short term receivables and payables and short term 
borrowings reasonably approximate fair values due to the relatively short term nature of these financial 
instruments.

  The carrying amounts of finance lease liabilities also approximate fair values upon discounting the expected 
future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the 
risks specific to the liabilities.

  It was not practicable to estimate the fair value of the Group’s and the Company’s investment in unquoted shares 
due to the lack of comparable quoted market prices in an active market and the fair value cannot be reliably 
measured. 
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26. Financial instruments  cont’d

 26.8 Fair value information  cont’d

  The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value and those not carried at fair value for which 
fair value is disclosed, together with their fair values and carrying amounts shown in the statement of financial 
position.

Fair value of financial instruments carried 
at fair value

Fair value of financial instruments not carried 
at fair value Total

fair value
Carrying 
amountLevel 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Group RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

2016

Financial assets

Unit trusts - 26,000 - 26,000 - - - - 26,000 26,000

Derivatives - 52,918 - 52,918 - - - - 52,918 52,918

- 78,918 - 78,918 - - - - 78,918 78,918

Financial liabilities

Derivatives - (128,312) - (128,312) - - - - (128,312) (128,312)

Bank loans - - - - - - (2,351,983) (2,351,983) (2,351,983) (2,412,485)

- (128,312) - (128,312) - - (2,351,983) (2,351,983) (2,480,295) (2,543,797)

Company

Financial liabilities

Bank loans - - - - - - (3,642) (3,642) (3,642) (3,642)
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 26.8 Fair value information  cont’d

Fair value of financial instruments carried  
at fair value

Fair value of financial instruments not carried  
at fair value Total

fair value
Carrying 
amountLevel 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Group RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

2015

Financial assets

Derivatives - 28,408 - 28,408 - - - - 28,408 28,408

Financial liabilities

Derivatives - (4,412) - (4,412) - - - - (4,412) (4,412)

Bank loans - - - - - - (2,529,828) (2,529,828) (2,529,828) (2,529,425)

- (4,412) - (4,412) - - (2,529,828) (2,529,828) (2,534,240) (2,533,837)

Company

Financial liabilities

Bank loans - - - - - - (4,323) (4,323) (4,323) (4,170)

  Level 2 fair value

  Derivatives and unit trusts

  The fair values of derivatives and unit trusts are determined by reference to statements provided by the 
respective financial institutions with which these contracts were entered into.

  Transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair values

  There has been no transfer between Level 1 and Level 2 fair values during the financial year (2015: no transfer in 
either direction).
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26. Financial instruments  cont’d

 26.8 Fair value information  cont’d

  Level 3 fair value

  Valuation process applied by the Group for Level 3 fair value

  For financial instruments not carried at fair value, the Group has applied discounted cash flows valuation 
technique using a rate based on the current market rate of borrowings of the respective Group entities at the 
reporting date in the determination of fair values within Level 3. The Financial Controller has overall responsibility 
for overseeing all significant fair value measurements, including Level 3 fair values. 

27. Capital management

 The Group’s and the Company’s objectives when managing capital are to maintain a strong capital base and 
safeguard the Group’s and the Company’s ability to continue as going concerns, so as to maintain investor, creditor 
and market confidence and to sustain future development of the business. The Directors monitor and are determined 
to maintain an optimal debt-to-equity ratio that complies with debt covenants and regulatory requirements.

 The debt-to-equity ratios at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015 were as follows:

 Group  Company

Note 2016 2015 2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Total loans and borrowings 16 3,382,300 3,414,751 25,694 82,622

Less: Cash and cash equivalents 14 (377,679) (305,120) (11,159) (21,300)

Net debt 3,004,621 3,109,631 14,535 61,322

Total equity 2,716,342 2,367,717 1,028,545 987,450

Debt-to-equity ratio 1.1  1.3 0.01  0.1

 There was no change in the Group’s and the Company’s approach to capital management during the financial year. 

 The Group has not breached any of the loan covenants disclosed in Note 16.1.
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28. Operating leases

 Leases as lessee

 Non-cancellable operating lease rentals are payable as follows:

 Group

2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000

Less than one year 2,607 2,487

Between one and five years 820 1,501

3,427 3,988

 The Group leases a number of properties under operating leases. The leases typically run for a period of 5 years, with 
an option to renew the lease after that date. None of the leases includes contingent rentals.

29. Capital and other commitments

 Group

2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000

Capital expenditure commitments

Property, plant and equipment

Contracted but not provided for 18,563 254,838

 At 31 December 2015, the capital commitments were mainly related to Phase 3 of the Samalaju Plant.
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30. Contingencies

 The Directors are of the opinion that provisions are not required in respect of these matters, as it is not probable that a 
future sacrifice of economic benefits will be required or the amount is not capable of reliable measurement.

 Contingent liabilities not considered remote

 Guarantees (unsecured)

 Group  Company

2016 2015 2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Guarantees given to:

- Customers of contracting and fabrication contracts 12,744 10,123 - -

- Financial institutions for facilities granted to 
subsidiaries - - 3,168,690 3,229,908

- Suppliers for credit terms granted to subsidiaries - - 302,048 113,147

12,744 10,123 3,470,738 3,343,055

 Contingent asset

 Group
 
 Press Metal Sarawak Sdn. Bhd. (“PMS”)

 In June 2013, a state-wide power outage resulted in the primary aluminium production lines of PMS suffering a 
sudden shutdown and consequent damages. The subsidiary was unable to operate its smelting plant for the next few 
months. Plant and machinery of approximately RM41,146,000 were written off as a result of the damages caused by 
the power outage.

 PMS subsequently made a claim to its insurer for the damaged plant and machinery and consequential business 
losses resulting from the suspension of operations. PMS was unable to come to an agreement with the insurer on the 
indemnified amount and in February 2014, PMS commenced legal action against the insurer in the Court. The insurer 
subsequently entered appearance and an application for stay of proceedings to refer the matter for arbitration. 

 In June 2014, the Court allowed the insurer’s application for stay of proceedings for reference of the matter for 
arbitration. PMS, through its solicitors, then filed an appeal to the Court of Appeal against the Court’s decision. In 
October 2014, the Court of Appeal further upheld the decision of the Court to refer the matter for arbitration. 
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30. Contingencies  cont’d

 Contingent asset  cont’d

 Group  cont’d

 Press Metal Sarawak Sdn. Bhd. (“PMS”)  cont’d

 In April 2015, PMS, through its solicitors, further filed another appeal to the Federal Court, which proceeded with the 
hearing of the appeal in September 2015. In August 2016, the Federal Court also allowed the insurer’s application for 
stay of proceedings for reference of the matter for arbitration.

 In January 2017, the Company has made a written request to the Kuala Lumpur Regional Centre of Arbitration for 
registration and commencement of arbitration.

 The solicitors are of the opinion that PMS has a good case for its claims.

31. Related parties 

 Identity of related parties

 For the purposes of these financial statements, parties are considered to be related to the Group or the Company 
if the Group or the Company has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control or jointly control the party or exercise 
significant influence over the party in making financial and operating decisions, or vice versa, or where the Group or 
the Company and the party are subject to common control. Related parties may be individuals or other entities.

 Related parties also include key management personnel defined as those persons having authority and responsibility 
for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Group either directly or indirectly. The key management 
personnel include all the Directors of the Group. 

 The Group has related party relationship with its significant investors, subsidiaries, an associate and key management 
personnel. In the context of these financial statements, an associate also includes the subsidiaries of the associate.
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31. Related parties  cont’d

 Significant related party transactions 

 Related party transactions have been entered into in the normal course of business under negotiated terms. The 
significant related party transactions of the Group and of the Company are shown below. The balances related to the 
transactions are shown in Notes 11 and 17.

 Group  Company

2016 2015 2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

A. Subsidiaries

 Sale of goods - - (383,050) (409,004)

 Purchase of goods and scraps - - 253,218 287,085

 Interest income on loan - - - (3,189)

 Dividend income - - (172,560) (33,240)

 Rental expense on machinery - - 304 427

 Management fees receivable - - (2,485) (930)

B. Associate

 Sale of goods (151,626) (160,620) - -

 Purchase of goods 25,521 21,236 - -

 Dividend income - - (1,074) (859)

 Rental expense on properties 8 10 - -

C. Directors

 - Fees 278 250 278 250

 - Remuneration 6,122 5,210 4,993 4,293

 Total short-term employee benefits 6,400 5,460 5,271 4,543

 Rental expense on properties 720 720 - -

7,120 6,180 5,271 4,543
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32. Business combination

 2016

 Acquisition of non-controlling interests 

 In May 2016, the Company acquired the remaining 30% equity interest in a subsidiary, Press Metal Aluminium 
(Australia) Pty. Ltd. (“PMAA”) for a total cash consideration of RM3,265,000. Consequently, PMAA became a wholly 
owned subsidiary of the Company.

 The Group recognised a decrease in non-controlling interests of RM670,000 and a decrease in retained earnings of 
RM2,595,000 in respect of the above transaction.

33. Subsequent event

 In February 2017, the Company held an Extraordinary General Meeting and Court Convened Meetings to obtain the 
approval of its shareholders and warrant holders for the below proposals:

 (a) Proposed share exchange of all the Company’s shares (“PMB Shares”) with new Newco’s shares (“Newco Shares”) 
on the basis of one new Newco Share for every one PMB Share held as at the entitlement date; 

 (b) Proposed warrants exchange of all the outstanding warrants of the Company (“PMB Warrants”) with new Newco’s 
warrants (“Newco Warrants”) on the basis of one new Newco Warrant for every one existing PMB Warrant held as 
at the entitlement date; and 

 (c) Proposed assumption of the listing status of the Company by Newco and the admission of Newco to and 
withdrawal of the Company from the official list of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (“Bursa Securities”) with the 
listing of and quotation for the Newco Shares and Newco Warrants on the Main Market of Bursa Securities. 

 All the above proposals were approved by the shareholders and warrant holders during the meetings.
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34. Supplementary financial information on the breakdown of realised and unrealised profits or 
losses

 The breakdown of the retained earnings of the Group and of the Company as at 31 December, into realised and 
unrealised profits, pursuant to Paragraphs 2.06 and 2.23 of Bursa Malaysia Main Market Listing Requirements, are as 
follows:

 Group  Company

2016 2015 2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Total retained earnings of the Company and its 
subsidiaries

- realised 1,454,059 1,144,115 80,068 264,334

- unrealised (118,912) (65,960) (7,388) (44,911)

1,335,147 1,078,155 72,680 219,423

Total share of retained earnings of an associate

- realised 29,963 27,945 - -

- unrealised (1,817) (1,938) - -

1,363,293 1,104,162 72,680 219,423

Add: Consolidation adjustments 91,803 168,497 - -

Total retained earnings 1,455,096 1,272,659 72,680 219,423

 The determination of realised and unrealised profits is based on the Guidance on Special Matter No.1, Determination 
of Realised and Unrealised Profits or Losses in the Context of Disclosures Pursuant to Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad 
Listing Requirements, issued by the Malaysian Institute of Accountants on 20 December 2010.
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In the opinion of the Directors, the financial statements set out on pages 89 to 204 are drawn up in accordance with 
Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the 
Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia so as to give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group and of the 
Company as of 31 December 2016 and of their financial performance and cash flows for the financial year then ended.

In the opinion of the Directors, the information set out in Note 34 on page 205 to the financial statements has been 
compiled in accordance with the Guidance on Special Matter No.1, Determination of Realised and Unrealised Profits or 
Losses in the Context of Disclosures Pursuant to Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad Listing Requirements, issued by the 
Malaysian Institute of Accountants, and presented based on the format prescribed by Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors in accordance with a resolution of the Directors:

Dato’ Koon Poh Keong Dato’ Koon Poh Tat
Director Director

Petaling Jaya, Selangor

Date: 26 April 2017

I, Loo Tai Choong, the officer primarily responsible for the financial management of Press Metal Berhad, do solemnly and 
sincerely declare that the financial statements set out on pages 89 to 205 are, to the best of my knowledge and belief, 
correct and I make this solemn declaration conscientiously believing the declaration to be true, and by virtue of the 
provisions of the Statutory Declarations Act, 1960.

Subscribed and solemnly declared by the abovenamed Loo Tai Choong, NRIC 681119-08-5045, at Kuala Lumpur in the 
Federal Territory on 26 April 2017.

Loo Tai Choong

Before me:

Selvaraj A/L Doraisamy W320
Commissioner for Oaths
Kuala Lumpur

Statement by Directors 
Pursuant to Section 251(2) of the Companies Act, 2016

Statutory Declaration 
Pursuant to Section 251(1)(b) of the Companies Act, 2016

Statement by Directors
Statutory Declaration
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Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Press Metal Berhad, which comprise the statements of financial position as 
at 31 December 2016 of the Group and of the Company, and the statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive 
income, statements of changes in equity and statements of cash flows of the Group and of the Company for the financial 
year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies, as set out on 
pages 89 to 204. 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group and 
of the Company as at 31 December 2016, and of their financial performance and cash flows for the financial year then 
ended in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards and the 
requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia. 

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards on 
Auditing. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of 
the Financial Statements section of our auditors’ report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence and Other Ethical Responsibilities

We are independent of the Group and of the Company in accordance with the By-Laws (on Professional Ethics, Conduct and 
Practice) of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants (“By-Laws”) and the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ 
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“IESBA Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with the By-Laws and the IESBA Code.

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the 
financial statements of the Group and of the Company for the current year. These matters were addressed in the context of 
our audit of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and 
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Capitalisation of property, plant and equipment

Refer to Note 2(d) - Significant accounting policy: Property, plant and equipment and Note 3 – Property, plant and 
equipment.

Independent Auditors’ Report 
to the members of Press Metal Berhad
(Company No. 153208 W) 
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Independent Auditors’ Report 
to the members of Press Metal Berhad
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Key Audit Matters  cont’d

The key audit matter

Property, plant and equipment represents the single largest category of assets on the statement of financial position of the 
Group, at RM5,186,244,000 as at 31 December 2016. During the financial year, the Group completed the construction of 
Phase 3 of its plant in Samalaju and recorded significant additions to its property, plant and equipment.

There was a significant degree of judgement involved in assessing the nature and level of expenditures to be capitalised 
as property, plant and equipment, the date of which depreciation should commence and that the capitalisation meets the 
specific recognition criteria under MFRS 116, Property, Plant and Equipment.

There was also a significant degree of judgement involved in considering the level of borrowing costs that should be 
capitalised during the construction of such assets and the point of time in which such capitalisation should cease under 
MFRS 123, Borrowing Costs.

How the matter was addressed in our audit

We performed the following audit procedures, among others:

capital in nature and should have been expensed off.

capitalisation of borrowing costs ceased when the plant was substantially completed.

commencement date for the depreciation of the newly constructed plant.

Hedge accounting

Refer to Note 2(c)(v) - Significant accounting policy: Hedge accounting – Cash flow hedge and Note 26.7 – Financial 
instruments – Hedging activities.

The key audit matter

The Group applied hedge accounting to hedge its cash flows for the payment of certain loans and borrowings, forward 
exchange contracts and commodity swaps (hedging instruments) against its cash flows from highly probable forecast sales 
transactions (hedged items).

Applying hedge accounting is a complex and judgemental area, particularly in assessing the appropriateness of the hedge 
designation and documentation, the effectiveness of the hedge and the probability of forecast transactions.

Independent Auditors’ Report 
to the members of Press Metal Berhad
Cont’d
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Key Audit Matters  cont’d

How the matter was addressed in our audit

We performed the following audit procedures, among others:

hedging relationships with the forecast sales transactions.

risk management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge at the inception.

forecast transactions.

Valuation of inventories

Refer to Note 2(h) - Significant accounting policy: Inventories and Note 10 – Inventories

The key audit matter

Inventories represent the second largest category of assets on the statement of financial position of the Group, at 
RM1,011,299,000 as at 31 December 2016. There was a significant degree of judgement involved to ascertain that the cost 
of inventories accurately reflects the manufacturing costs incurred in bringing them to their physical location and condition. 
This particularly relates to the assessment of direct labour costs incurred, manufacturing overheads to be absorbed and 
other relevant production costs.

How the matter was addressed in our audit

We performed the following audit procedures, among others:

goods, we assessed whether the absorption of fixed production overheads was based on the normal capacity of the 
production facilities and variable production overheads were absorbed into each unit of production on the basis of 
the actual use of the production facilities.

other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. In particular, we considered 
the nature of the overheads absorbed to ascertain whether only directly attributable costs were included. We also 
considered production levels to ensure inefficiencies were not absorbed.

Independent Auditors’ Report 
to the members of Press Metal Berhad

Cont’d
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon 

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information 
included in the annual report, but does not include the financial statements of the Group and of the Company and our 
auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements of the Group and of the Company does not cover the annual report and we do not 
and will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, our responsibility is to read the 
annual report and, in doing so, consider whether the annual report is materially inconsistent with the financial statements of 
the Group and of the Company or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of the annual report, we are 
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Statements

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of financial statements of the Group and of the Company 
that give a true and fair view in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting 
Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia. The Directors are also responsible for such 
internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements of the Group and 
of the Company that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, the Directors are responsible for assessing the 
ability of the Group and of the Company to continue as going concerns, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the Group or the 
Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements of the Group and of the 
Company as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report 
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted 
in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards on Auditing will always detect a 
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually 
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of 
these financial statements.

Independent Auditors’ Report 
to the members of Press Metal Berhad
Cont’d
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Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements  cont’d

As part of an audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards on Auditing, 
we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the internal 
control of the Group and of the Company.

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 
disclosures made by the Directors.

 Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the 
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant 
doubt on the ability of the Group or of the Company to continue as going concerns. If we conclude that a material 
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the financial 
statements of the Group and of the Company or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events 
or conditions may cause the Group or the Company to cease to continue as going concerns.

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, 
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements of the Group and of the Company represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that gives a true and fair view.

 Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities 
within the Group to express an opinion on the financial statements of the Group. We are responsible for the direction, 
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and 
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding 
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear 
on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Independent Auditors’ Report 
to the members of Press Metal Berhad

Cont’d
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Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements  cont’d

From the matters communicated with the Directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit 
of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company for the current year and are therefore the key audit matters. 
We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter 
or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our auditors’ report 
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of 
such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2016 in Malaysia, we report that the subsidiaries of which we 
have not acted as auditors are disclosed in Note 6 to the financial statements. 

Other Reporting Responsibilities

The supplementary information set out in Note 34 is disclosed to meet the requirement of Bursa Malaysia Securities 
Berhad and is not part of the financial statements. The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the supplementary 
information in accordance with Guidance on Special Matter No. 1, Determination of Realised and Unrealised Profits or 
Losses in the Context of Disclosure Pursuant to Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad Listing Requirements, as issued by the 
Malaysian Institute of Accountants (“MIA Guidance”) and the directive of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad. In our opinion, 
the supplementary information is prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the MIA Guidance and the directive 
of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.

Other Matter

This report is made solely to the members of the Company, as a body, in accordance with Section 266 of the Companies 
Act, 2016 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility to any other person for the content of this 
report.

KPMG PLT Foong Mun Kong
(LLP0010081-LCA & AF 0758) Approval Number: 02613/12/2018 J
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountant

Date: 26 April 2017

Petaling Jaya

Independent Auditors’ Report 
to the members of Press Metal Berhad
Cont’d
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List of Properties 
held by the Group as at 31 December 2016

List of Properties 

Proprietor Location
Description/

Age (Year)
Existing 

Use Tenure

Area 
(Square 

feet)

Net Book 
Value as at 

31/12/2016
RM ‘000

Press Metal 
Bintulu Sdn 
Bhd

Lot 36, Block 1
Samalaju Industrial Park
Kemena Land District
97000 Samalaju
Sarawak

Leasehold 
land and 
buildings

6 years

Factory 
cum

office 

Leasehold
for 60 years
expiring 10

July 2071

 20,946,570  946,972 

Press Metal 
Sarawak Sdn 
Bhd

Lot 211 & 212
Block 293 
Mukah Land District KM38 
Jalan Mukah - Balingian
96400 Mukah
Sarawak

Leasehold
land and 
buildings

9 years

Factory 
cum

office

Leasehold
for 99 years

expiring 6
April 2107

 44,913,337  374,506 

Press Metal 
International 
Limited

Area C, 
Sanshui Industrial Park
Sanshui District
Foshan City, Guangdong
Province, China

Leasehold
land and 
buildings
11 years

Factory 
cum

office 

Leasehold
for 48 & 50

years
expiring 

12 July 2055 & 
30 December

2056

 5,092,976  270,111 

Press Metal 
Berhad

Lot 6486, Mukim Kapar 
Daerah Klang
Selangor Darul Ehsan

Freehold 
land and 
buildings
23 years

Factory 
cum

office 

Freehold  417,348  30,296 

Press Metal 
Berhad

Lot 6464, Mukim Kapar
Daerah Klang
Selangor Darul Ehsan

Freehold 
land and 
buildings
23 years

Factory 
cum

office 

Freehold  217,000  15,752 
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Cont’d

Proprietor Location
Description/

Age (Year)
Existing 

Use Tenure

Area 
(Square 

feet)

Net Book 
Value as at 

31/12/2016
 RM ‘000

Press Metal 
Berhad

Suite 61 & 62  
Setia Avenue 
No.2, Jalan Setia Prima 
S U13/S, Setia Alam 
Seksyen U13
40170 Shah Alam
Selangor Darul Ehsan

Commercial 
office
suite

4 years

Corporate
office

Freehold  19,366  5,828 

Angkasa Jasa 
Sdn Bhd

Pt 7649, Cheras Jaya
Mukim Cheras
Daerah Ulu Langat
Selangor Darul Ehsan

Leasehold 
land and 
building
28 years

Factory 
cum

office 

Leasehold 
for 99 years
expiring 14

May 2088

 44,584  3,191 

Press Metal 
Berhad

HS (D) 85856, PTD 48284
Mukim Plentong
Daerah Johor Bahru
Johor Darul Takzim

Factory 
land and 
building

5 years

Warehouse
 

Freehold
 

 849  1,086 

Press Metal 
Berhad

HS (D) 85897, PTD 48325
Mukim Plentong
Daerah Johor Bahru
Johor Darul Takzim

Factory 
land and 
building 
14 years

Warehouse 
cum office

Freehold  6,893  697 

Angkasa Jasa 
Sdn Bhd

Lot 73803
Mukim Klang
Selangor Darul Ehsan

Factory
land and 
building 
11 years

Tenanted Freehold 6,628   650 
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Issued Share : 3,728,014,445 Ordinary Shares    
Class of Shares : Ordinary Shares   
Voting Rights : One vote per share   
     
     

Size of Holdings

No. of 
Shareholders/ 

Depositors

% of 
Shareholders/ 

Depositors
No. of 

Shares Held
% of Issued 

Capital

Less than 100  102 1.18  3,303 0.00

100 to 1,000  691 8.03  532,692  0.02 

1,001 to 10,000  3,740 43.46  18,760,872  0.50 

10,001 to 100,000  3,184 37.00  105,020,758  2.82 

100,001 to less than 5% of issued shares  887 10.31  3,030,570,773  81.29 

5% and above of issued shares  2 0.02  573,126,047  15.37 

Total  8,606 100.00 3,728,014,445  100.00 

Analysis of Shareholdings
as at 3 April 2017

Analysis of Shareholdings
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Directors’ Shareholdings      
as at 3 April 2017      
      

Direct Indirect

Name
No. of 

Shares Held
% of Issued 

Capital
No. of 

Shares Held
% of Issued 

Capital

Koon Poh Ming 155,867,258 4.18 965,372,115 (1) 25.90

Dato' Koon Poh Keong 623,458,672 16.72 970,914,435 (2) 26.04

Koon Poh Kong 65,750,686 1.76 1,116,920 (3) 0.03

Koon Poh Weng 122,757,868 3.29 54,435,760 (4) 1.46

Dato' Koon Poh Tat 91,925,680 2.47 3,468,528 (5) 0.09

Dato' Wira (Dr.) Megat Abdul Rahman Bin Megat 
Ahmad 280,000 0.01 0 0.00

Tan Heng Kui 801,640 0.02 0 0.00

Loo Lean Hock 0 0.00 0 0.00

Noor Alina Binti Mohamad Faiz 0 0.00 0 0.00
      
(1) Deemed interested in the shares held by his spouse, Ong Soo Fan in the Company and his direct interest in Alpha Milestone Sdn Bhd 

pursuant to Section 8 of the Companies Act 2016.     
(2) Deemed interested in the shares held by his spouse, Datin Khoo Ee Pheng in the Company and his direct interest in Alpha Milestone 

Sdn Bhd pursuant to Section 8 of the Companies Act 2016.     
(3) Deemed interested in the shares held by his spouse, Lee Sook Ching in the Company.     
(4) Deemed interested in the shares held by his spouse, Chan Poh Choo and his daughter, Koon Sim Ee in the Company.  
(5) Deemed interested in the shares held by his spouse, Datin Chan Hean Heoh in the Company.     

 

Analysis of Shareholdings
Cont’d
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Cont’d

Substantial Shareholders      
as per Register of Substantial Shareholders 
as at 3 April 2017      
      

Direct Indirect

Name
No. of 

Shares Held
% of Issued 

Capital
No. of 

Shares Held
% of Issued 

Capital

Koon Poh Ming 155,867,258 4.18 965,372,115 (1) 25.90

Dato' Koon Poh Keong 623,458,672 16.72 970,914,435 (2) 26.04

Ong Soo Fan 70,560,000 1.89 155,867,258 (3) 4.18

Datin Khoo Ee Pheng 76,102,320 2.04 623,458,672 (4) 16.72

Alpha Milestone Sdn Bhd 894,812,115 24.00 0 0.00
      
(1) Deemed interested in the shares held by his spouse, Ong Soo Fan in the Company and his direct interest in Alpha Milestone Sdn Bhd 

pursuant to Section 8 of the Companies Act 2016.     
(2) Deemed interested in the shares held by his spouse, Datin Khoo Ee Pheng in the Company and his direct interest in Alpha Milestone 

Sdn Bhd pursuant to Section 8 of the Companies Act 2016.     
(3) Deemed interested in the shares held by her spouse, Koon Poh Ming in the Company.     
(4) Deemed interested in the shares held by her spouse, Dato’ Koon Poh Keong in the Company.     

 

Thirty Largest Shareholders   
as at 3 April 2017   
  

Name of Shareholders
No. of 
Shares

% of Issued 
Capital

1 MAYBANK NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD 
Pledged Securities Account for Alpha Milestone Sdn Bhd

363,126,047 9.74

2 MAYBANK NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD 
Pledged Securities Account for Dato’ Koon Poh Keong

210,000,000 5.63

3 ALLIANCEGROUP NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD 
Pledged Securities Account for Alpha Milestone Sdn Bhd

161,082,143 4.32

4 KENANGA NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD 
Pledged Securities Account for Dato’ Koon Poh Keong

150,143,431 4.03

5 AMSEC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD 
AmBank (M) Berhad for Tan Boon Seng

130,300,240 3.49
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Thirty Largest Shareholders   
as at 3 April 2017  cont’d
 

Name of Shareholders
No. of 
Shares

% of Issued 
Capital

6 CIMSEC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD 
CIMB for Loh Kwi Yong 

99,795,002 2.68

7 ALLIANCEGROUP NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD 
Pledged Securities Account for Alpha Milestone Sdn Bhd 

96,687,553 2.59

8 LOH KWI YONG 89,728,000 2.41

9 ALPHA MILESTONE SDN BHD 80,019,357 2.15

10 KENANGA NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD 
Pledged Securities Account for Alpha Milestone Sdn Bhd

75,880,000 2.03

11 KENANGA NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD 
Alpha Milestone Sdn Bhd

70,000,000 1.88

12 CITIGROUP NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD 
Employees Provident Fund Board

68,356,300 1.83

13 AMSEC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD 
Pledged Securities Account for Dato' Koon Poh Keong

62,573,985 1.68

14 DATIN KHOO EE PHENG 56,000,000 1.50

15 ONG SOO FAN 55,440,000 1.49

16 DATO' KOON POH KEONG 54,880,000 1.47

17 CHAN POH CHOO 54,104,800 1.45

18 BBL NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD 
Pledged Securities Account for Koon Poh Ming

53,200,000 1.43

19 KOON POH KONG 51,246,686 1.37

20 BBL NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD 
Pledged Securities Account for Dato' Koon Poh Keong

50,400,000 1.35

21 ALPHA MILESTONE SDN BHD 48,017,015 1.29

Analysis of Shareholdings
Cont’d
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Thirty Largest Shareholders   
as at 3 April 2017  cont’d

Name of Shareholders
No. of 
Shares

% of Issued 
Capital

22 ALLIANCEGROUP NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD 
Pledged Securities Account for Koon Poh Weng

47,040,224 1.26

23 ALLIANCEGROUP NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD 
Pledged Securities Account for Dato' Koon Poh Tat

45,090,080 1.21

24 ALLIANCEGROUP NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD 
Pledged Securities Account for Koon Poh Weng

44,240,000 1.19

25 KOON POH MING 41,689,704 1.12

26 HLIB NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD 
Pledged Securities Account for Dato' Koon Poh Keong

36,920,536 0.99

27 CIMSEC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD 
CIMB for Dato' Koon Poh Keong

33,600,000 0.90

28 CITIGROUP NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD 
Pledged Securities Account for Koon Yun Hong @ Koon Pow Shyang

32,276,720 0.87

29 TAN MEW LAN 31,528,656 0.85

30 KOON POH WENG 31,477,644 0.84

Total 2,424,844,123 65.04
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Analysis of Warrant Holdings
as at 3 April 2017

Analysis of Warrant Holdings

Total number of Outstanding Warrants C : 310,826,917
Issue date : 23 August 2011
Expiry date : 22 August 2019
Exercise Price of Warrants C : RM0.39 
  
     

Size of Warrant Holdings

No. of Warrant 
Holders/ 

Depositors

% of Warrant 
Holders/ 

Depositors
No. of 

Warrants Held
% of Issued 

Warrants

Less than 100  24 2.85  801 0.00

100 to 1,000  66 7.85  43,907  0.01 

1,001 to 10,000  365 43.40  1,950,680  0.63 

10,001 to 100,000  315 37.45  9,501,818  3.06 

100,001 to less than 5% of issued warrants  68 8.09  33,191,136  10.68 

5% and above of issued warrants  3 0.36  266,138,575  85.62 

Total  841 100.00 310,826,917  100.00 
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Directors’ Warrant Holdings      
as per Register of Directors’ Warrants Holdings 
as at 3 April 2017
      

Direct Indirect

Name
No. of 

Warrants Held
% of Issued 

Warrants
No. of 

Warrants Held
% of Issued 

Warrants

Koon Poh Ming 0 0.00 225,791,215 (1) 72.64

Dato' Koon Poh Keong 0 0.00 225,791,215 (1) 72.64

Koon Poh Kong 0 0.00 0 0.00

Koon Poh Weng 0 0.00 1,075,200 (2) 0.35

Dato' Koon Poh Tat 0 0.00 745,774 (3) 0.24

Dato' Wira (Dr.) Megat Abdul Rahman Bin Megat 
Ahmad 0 0.00 0 0.00

Tan Heng Kui 0 0.00 0 0.00

Loo Lean Hock 0 0.00 0 0.00

Noor Alina Binti Mohamad Faiz 0 0.00 0 0.00
      
(1) Deemed interested in the warrants by virtue of his direct interest in Alpha Milestone Sdn Bhd pursuant to Section 8 of the Companies 

Act 2016.     
(2) Deemed interested in the warrants held by his spouse, Chan Poh Choo and his daughter, Koon Sim Ee in the Company.  
(3) Deemed interested in the warrants held by his spouse, Datin Chan Hean Heoh in the Company.     
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Thirty Largest Warrant Holders   
as at 3 April 2017   
  

Name of Warrant Holders
No. of 

Warrants
% of Issued 

Warrants

1 ALPHA MILESTONE SDN BHD 149,295,613 48.03

2 ALPHA MILESTONE SDN BHD 76,215,602 24.52

3 CIMSEC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD 
CIMB for Loo Seow Hwai

40,627,360 13.07

4 MAYBANK NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD 
Pledged Securities Account for Ang Wing Fah

6,361,880 2.05

5 ALLIANCEGROUP NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD 
Pledged Securities Account for Ooi Chin Hock

3,859,320 1.24

6 PUBLIC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD 
Pledged Securities Account for Yong Kut Sen

1,789,600 0.57

7 MAYBANK NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD 
Pledged Securities Account for Chua Ping Teow

1,536,640 0.49

8 MAYBANK NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD 
Pledged Securities Account for Ng Yih Jing

1,188,880 0.38

9 YONG KUT SEN 1,009,600 0.32

10 CHAN POH CHOO 991,200 0.32

11 OOI CHIN HOCK 864,820 0.28

12 DATIN CHAN HEAN HEOH 745,774 0.24

13 KONG SEN KUAN 709,329 0.23

14 MAYBANK NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD 
Pledged Securities Account for Phuah Seow Seng

616,000 0.20

15 MAYBANK NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD 
Phuah Seow Seng

616,000 0.20

16 PUBLIC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD 
Pledged Securities Account for Ng Yih Jing

597,380 0.19

Analysis of Warrant Holdings
Cont’d
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Thirty Largest Warrant Holders   
as at 3 April 2017  cont’d
 

Name of Warrant Holders
No. of 

Warrants
% of Issued 

Warrants

17 YEOH OOI CHAT 588,000 0.19

18 CIMSEC NOMINEES (ASING) SDN BHD 
Pledged Securities Account for Michael Hooi Jee-oon

522,000 0.17

19 CIMSEC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD 
Pledged Securities Account for Julian Ting Yew Wei

469,840 0.15

20 PUBLIC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD 
Pledged Securities Account for Ho Liong Kwong

453,600 0.14

21 QUAH CHOO HUEG 406,400 0.13

22 AFFIN HWANG NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD 
Pledged Securities Account for Liow Horng Wei

392,000 0.13

23 MAYBANK NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD 
Pledged Securities Account for Wong Tiong Seng

377,500 0.12

24 LAI BOON KIAT 336,000 0.11

25 JONY RAW @ RAW JONY 334,000 0.11

26 PUBLIC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD 
Pledged Securities Account for Francis Kong @ Kong Fen Shin

302,400 0.10

27 KENANGA NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD 
Pledged Securities Account for Eg Kaa Chee

280,000 0.09

28 KENANGA NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD 
Pledged Securities Account for Alpha Milestone Sdn Bhd

280,000 0.09

29 LOI TEIK TONG @ LEE TEIK TONG 280,000 0.09

30 PUBLIC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD 
Pledged Securities Account for Chua Ping Teow

270,200 0.09

Total 292,316,938 94.04

Analysis of Warrant Holdings
Cont’d
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

Notice of Annual General Meeting

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT the Thirty-First Annual General Meeting of Press Metal Berhad will be held at Topaz 
Ballroom, Level G, One World Hotel, First Avenue, Bandar Utama City Centre, 47800 Petaling Jaya, Selangor Darul Ehsan on 
Thursday, 15 June 2017 at 10.30 a.m.

A G E N D A

As Ordinary Business

1. To receive the Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31 December 
2016 together with the Reports of the Directors and Auditors thereon. 

 
2. To approve the payment of Directors’ Fees for the financial year ended 31 December 

2016. 

3. To approve the payment of Directors’ Fees and benefits payable to the Directors up to 
an aggregate amount of RM357,000 for the financial year ending 31 December 2017.

4. To re-elect the following Directors retiring pursuant to Article 92 of the Articles of 
Association of the Company:

(i) Dato’ Wira (Dr.) Megat Abdul Rahman Bin Megat Ahmad

(ii) Mr Tan Heng Kui 

(iii) Mr Loo Lean Hock 

5. To re-elect Puan Noor Alina Binti Mohamad Faiz who is retiring pursuant to Article 97 of 
the Articles of Association of the Company.

6. To re-appoint KPMG PLT (converted from a conventional partnership, Messrs KPMG, on 
27 December 2016) as Auditors of the Company and to authorise the Directors to fix 
their remuneration.                                            

(Please refer to Note 1 of 
the Explanatory Notes)

Ordinary Resolution 1

Ordinary Resolution 2

Ordinary Resolution 3

Ordinary Resolution 4

Ordinary Resolution 5

Ordinary Resolution 6

Ordinary Resolution 7



225Annual Report ’16Annual Report ’16
Notice of Annual General Meeting

Cont’d

As Special Business

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolutions:

7. Authority under Section 76 of the Companies Act 2016 for the Directors to allot and 
issue shares

 “THAT pursuant to Section 76 of the Companies Act 2016, the Directors be and are 
hereby authorised to allot and issue shares in the Company at any time until the 
conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting and upon such terms and conditions 
and for such purposes as the Directors may, in their absolute discretion, deem fit 
provided that the aggregate number of shares to be issued does not exceed ten per 
centum (10%) of the total number of issued shares of the Company for the time being, 
subject always to the approval of all relevant regulatory bodies being obtained for such 
allotment and issuance.”           

8. Authority for Dato’ Wira (Dr.) Megat Abdul Rahman Bin Megat Ahmad to continue in 
office as Independent Non-Executive Chairman

 “THAT authority be and is hereby given to Dato’ Wira (Dr.) Megat Abdul Rahman Bin 
Megat Ahmad who has served as an Independent Non-Executive Chairman of the 
Company for a cumulative term of more than nine (9) years, to continue to act as an 
Independent Non-Executive Chairman of the Company until the conclusion of the 
next Annual General Meeting in accordance with the Malaysian Code on Corporate 
Governance 2012.”                                                    

9. Authority for Tan Heng Kui to continue in office as Independent Non-Executive 
Director

 “THAT authority be and is hereby given to Tan Heng Kui who has served as an 
Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company for a cumulative term of more 
than nine (9) years, to continue to act as an Independent Non-Executive Director of the 
Company until the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting in accordance with 
the Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance 2012.”

10. Authority for Loo Lean Hock to continue in office as Independent Non-Executive 
Director

 “THAT authority be and is hereby given to Loo Lean Hock who has served as an 
Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company for a cumulative term of more 
than nine (9) years, to continue to act as an Independent Non-Executive Director of the 
Company until the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting in accordance with 
the Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance 2012.”

Ordinary Resolution 8

Ordinary Resolution 9

Ordinary Resolution 10

Ordinary Resolution 11
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11. Proposed Renewal of Shareholders’ Mandate for Press Metal Berhad and its 
subsidiaries to enter into Recurrent Related Party Transactions of a Revenue or Trading 
Nature (“Proposed Shareholders’ Mandate”)

 “THAT approval be and is hereby given to the Company and its subsidiaries (“PMB 
Group”) to enter into recurrent related party transactions of a revenue or trading 
nature as set out in Section 2.3 (i) of the Circular to Shareholders dated 28 April 2017 
(“Circular”) which are necessary for the PMB Group’s day-to-day operations subject to 
the following:-

a) the transactions are in the ordinary course of business and on normal commercial 
terms which are not more favourable to the related parties than those generally 
available to the public and are not to the detriment of the minority shareholders 
of the Company; and

b) the disclosure will be made in the Annual Report of the breakdown of the 
aggregate value of the recurrent related party transactions conducted pursuant 
to the Proposed Shareholders’ Mandate during the financial year on the 
type of recurrent related party transactions made, the names of the related 
parties involved in each type of recurrent related party transactions and their 
relationships with the Company. 

 THAT the authority conferred shall continue to be in force until:-

i) the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the Company 
following the forthcoming AGM at which the Proposed Shareholders’ Mandate 
is approved, at which time it will lapse, unless by a resolution passed at the AGM, 
the mandate is again renewed;

ii) the expiration of the period within which the next AGM of the Company is 
required to be held pursuant to Section 340(2) of the Companies Act 2016 (“Act”) 
(but shall not extend to such extension as may be allowed pursuant to Section 
340(4) of the Act); or

iii) revoked or varied by resolution passed by the shareholders in general meeting,

 whichever is earlier.

 AND THAT the Directors of the Company be and are hereby authorised to complete 
and do all such acts and things (including executing all such documents as may be 
required) as they may consider expedient or necessary to give effect to the Proposed 
Shareholders’ Mandate.” 

Ordinary Resolution 12

Notice of Annual General Meeting
Cont’d
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12. Proposed Renewal of Authority for the Company to Purchase its own Ordinary Shares 

 “THAT subject to the Companies Act 2016 (“Act”), the Memorandum and Articles of 
Association of the Company, the Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia 
Securities Berhad (“Bursa Securities”) and the approvals of all relevant governmental 
and/or regulatory authorities (if any), the Company be and is hereby authorised 
to utilise an amount not exceeding the Company’s aggregate retained profits as 
at 31 December 2016 to purchase such amount of ordinary shares in the Company 
(“Proposed Renewal of Share Buy-Back Authority”) as may be determined by the 
Directors of the Company from time to time through Bursa Securities upon such 
terms and conditions as the Directors may deem fit and expedient in the interest of 
the Company provided that the aggregate number of shares purchased and/or held 
pursuant to this resolution does not exceed ten per centum (10%) of the total number 
of issued shares of the Company.

 THAT an amount not exceeding the Company’s retained profits be allocated by the 
Company for the Proposed Renewal of Share Buy-Back Authority.

 THAT authority be and is hereby given to the Directors of the Company to decide at 
their absolute discretion to either retain the shares so purchased as treasury shares 
(as defined in Section 127 of the Act) and/or to cancel the shares so purchased and if 
retained as treasury shares, may resell the treasury shares and/or to distribute them as 
share dividend and/or subsequently cancel them.

 THAT the authority conferred by this resolution will be effective immediately upon the 
passing of this resolution and will expire at:-

(i) the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the Company, 
at which time the said authority will lapse unless by an ordinary resolution 
passed at a general meeting of the Company, the authority is renewed, either 
unconditionally or subject to conditions;

(ii) the expiration of the period within which the next AGM of the Company is 
required by law to be held; or

(iii) revoked or varied by an ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders in a 
general meeting;

 whichever occurs first, but not so as to prejudice the completion of the purchase(s) by 
the Company before the aforesaid expiry date and in any event, in accordance with 
the provisions of the guidelines issued by Bursa Securities and/or any other relevant 
governmental and/or regulatory authorities (if any).

Ordinary Resolution 13

Notice of Annual General Meeting
Cont’d
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 AND THAT the Directors of the Company be authorised to take all steps necessary 
to implement, complete and do all such acts and things (including executing all such 
documents as may be required) as they may consider expedient or necessary to give 
effect to the Proposed Renewal of Share Buy-Back Authority as may be agreed or 
allowed by any relevant governmental and/or regulatory authority.”

13. To transact any other business for which due notice shall have been given.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

TAN AI NING (MAICSA  7015852)
TE HOCK WEE (MAICSA  7054787)
Company Secretaries

Selangor Darul Ehsan
Date: 28 April 2017
 
NOTES:

1. A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy or proxies to attend and vote in his 
stead. A proxy may but need not be a member of the Company. There shall be no restriction as to the qualification of the proxy. 

2. Where a member appoints two (2) or more proxies, the appointments shall be invalid unless he specifies the proportion of his 
shareholdings to be represented by each proxy. 

3. Where a member is an Exempt Authorised Nominee which holds ordinary shares in the Company for multiple beneficial owners in one 
securities account (“omnibus account”) as defined under the Securities Industry (Central Depositories) Act, 1991, there shall be no limit 
to the number of proxies which the Exempt Authorised Nominee may appoint in respect of each omnibus account it holds.

4. The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing under the hand of the appointor or of his attorney duly authorised in writing or, if 
the appointor is a corporation, either under its Common Seal or signed by an officer or attorney so authorised.

5. The instrument appointing a proxy or proxies and the power of attorney or other authority (if any) under which it is signed or a 
notarially certified copy of such power or authority, must be deposited at the Share Registrar’s office of the Company at Unit 32-01, 
Level 32, Tower A, Vertical Business Suite, Avenue 3, Bangsar South, No. 8, Jalan Kerinchi, 59200 Kuala Lumpur, Wilayah Persekutuan, 
not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for holding the meeting or adjourned meeting, otherwise the instrument of proxy 
shall not be treated as valid.

6. In respect of deposited securities, only members whose names appear on the Record of Depositors on 5 June 2017 (General Meeting 
Record of Depositors) shall be eligible to attend the meeting or appoint proxy(ies) to attend and/or vote on his behalf.

7. Pursuant to Paragraph 8.29A(1) of the Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad, all resolutions at the 
Thirty-First Annual General Meeting of the Company shall be put to vote by way of poll.

Notice of Annual General Meeting
Cont’d
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EXPLANATORY NOTES ON SPECIAL BUSINESS

1. To receive the Audited Financial Statements

 The Audited Financial Statements are laid in accordance with Section 340(1)(a) of the Companies Act 2016 for discussion only under 
Agenda 1. They do not require shareholders’ approval and hence, will not be put for voting.

2. Ordinary Resolution 8 on Authority under Section 76 of the Companies Act 2016 for the Directors to allot and issue shares

 The Company had, during its Thirtieth Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) held on 16 June 2016, obtained its shareholders’ approval 
for the general mandate for issuance of shares pursuant to the then Section 132D of the Companies Act, 1965. As at the date of this 
notice, the Company did not issue any shares pursuant to this mandate obtained.

 Ordinary Resolution 8 proposed under item 7 of the Agenda is a renewal of the general mandate for issuance of shares by the 
Company under Section 76 of the Companies Act 2016. The mandate, if passed, will provide flexibility for the Company and empower 
the Directors to allot and issue new shares speedily in the Company up to an amount not exceeding in total 10% of the total number 
of issued shares of the Company for purpose of funding the working capital or strategic development of the Group. This would 
eliminate any delay arising from and cost involved in convening a general meeting to obtain approval of the shareholders for such 
issuance of shares. This authority, unless revoked or varied by the Company at a general meeting, will expire at the next AGM.

 At this juncture, there is no decision to issue new shares. If there should be a decision to issue new shares after the general mandate is 
sought, the Company will make an announcement in respect thereof.

3. Ordinary Resolution 9 on Authority for Dato’ Wira (Dr.) Megat Abdul Rahman Bin Megat Ahmad to continue in office as Independent 
Non-Executive Chairman

 The Board of Directors had on 27 February 2017 via the Nomination Committee conducted an annual performance evaluation and 
assessment of Dato’ Wira (Dr.) Megat Abdul Rahman Bin Megat Ahmad who has served as an Independent Non-Executive Chairman 
of the Company for a cumulative term of more than nine (9) years and recommended him to continue to act as Independent Non-
Executive Chairman of the Company based on the following justifications:-

a. He fullfilled the criteria under the definition on Independent Directors as stated in the Main Market Listing Requirements of 
Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad. 

b. His experience enable him to provide the Board with a diverse set of experience, expertise, skills and competence. He has been 
with the Company for more than nine (9) years and therefore understands the Company’s business operations which enable him 
to participate actively and contribute during deliberations and discussions at Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee 
and Board meetings without compromising his independent and objective judgement.

c. He exercised due care during his tenure as an Independent Non-Executive Chairman of the Company and carried out his 
professional duties in the interest of the Company and shareholders.

Notice of Annual General Meeting
Cont’d
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4. Ordinary Resolution 10 on Authority for Tan Heng Kui to continue in office as Independent Non-Executive Director

 The Board of Directors had on 27 February 2017 via the Nomination Committee conducted an annual performance evaluation and 
assessment of Tan Heng Kui who has served as an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company for a cumulative term of more 
than nine (9) years and recommended him to continue to act as Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company based on the 
following justifications:-

a. He fullfilled the criteria under the definition on Independent Directors as stated in the Main Market Listing Requirements of 
Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad. 

b. He has been with the Company for more than nine (9) years and therefore understands the Company’s business operations 
which enable him to participate actively and contribute during deliberations and discussions at Audit Committee, Remuneration 
Committee and Board meetings without compromising his independent and objective judgement.

c. He exercised due care in the interest of the Company and shareholders during his tenure as an Independent Non-Executive 
Director of the Company.

5. Ordinary Resolution 11 on Authority for Loo Lean Hock to continue in office as Independent Non-Executive Director

 The Board of Directors had on 27 February 2017 via the Nomination Committee conducted an annual performance evaluation and 
assessment of Loo Lean Hock who has served as an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company for a cumulative term of 
more than nine (9) years and recommended him to continue to act as Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company based on 
the following justifications:-

a. He fullfilled the criteria under the definition on Independent Directors as stated in the Main Market Listing Requirements of 
Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad. 

b. His experience in audit and accounting industries enables him to provide the Board with a diverse set of experience, expertise, 
skills and competence. As he has been with the Company for more than nine (9) years, he therefore understands the Company’s 
business operations which enable him to participate actively and contribute during deliberations and discussions at Audit 
Committee, Nomination Committee and Board meetings without compromising his independent and objective judgement. 

c. He exhibited high commitment and devoted sufficient time to his responsibilities as an Independent Non-Executive Director of 
the Company.

6. Ordinary Resolution 12 on Proposed Renewal of Shareholders’ Mandate for Press Metal Berhad and its subsidiaries to enter into 
Recurrent Related Party Transactions of a Revenue or Trading Nature (“Proposed Shareholders’ Mandate”)

 Ordinary Resolution 12 proposed under item 11 of the Agenda, if passed, will allow the Company and its subsidiaries to enter into 
recurrent related party transactions in accordance with Paragraph 10.09 of the Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia 
Securities Berhad without the necessity to convene separate general meetings from time to time to seek shareholders’ approval as and 
when such recurrent related party transactions occur. This would reduce substantial administrative time and expenses associated with 
the convening of such meetings without compromising the corporate objectives of the Group or affecting the business opportunities 
available to the Group. The shareholders’ mandate is subject to renewal on an annual basis.

 For further information on Ordinary Resolution 12, please refer to Part A of the Circular to Shareholders dated 28 April 2017 
accompanying the Annual Report of the Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2016.
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7. Ordinary Resolution 13 on Proposed Renewal of Authority for the Company to Purchase its own Ordinary Shares

 The proposed Ordinary Resolution 13, if passed, will give the Directors of the Company authority to take all such steps as are 
necessary or expedient to implement, finalise, complete and/or to effect the purchase(s) of shares by the Company as the Directors 
may deem fit and expedient in the best interest of the Company. The authority will, unless revoked or varied by the Company in a 
general meeting, continue to be in force until the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company or the expiry of the 
period within which the next Annual General Meeting of the Company is required by law to be held.

 For further information on Ordinary Resolution 13, please refer to the Statement to Shareholders in Part B of the Circular to 
Shareholders dated 28 April 2017 accompanying the Annual Report of the Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2016.

Personal data privacy: 

By submitting an instrument appointing a proxy(ies) and/or representative(s) to attend, speak and vote at the AGM and/or any adjournment 
thereof, a member of the Company (i) consents to the collection, use and disclosure of the member’s personal data by the Company (or its 
agents) for the purpose of the processing and administration by the Company (or its agents) of proxies and representatives appointed for 
the AGM (including any adjournment thereof) and the preparation and compilation of the attendance lists, minutes and other documents 
relating to the AGM (including any adjournment thereof), and in order for the Company (or its agents) to comply with any applicable 
laws, listing rules, regulations and/or guidelines (collectively, the “Purposes”), (ii) warrants that where the member discloses the personal 
data of the member’s proxy(ies) and/or representative(s) to the Company (or its agents), the member has obtained the prior consent of 
such proxy(ies) and/or representative(s) for the collection, use and disclosure by the Company (or its agents) of the personal data of such 
proxy(ies) and/or representative(s) for the Purposes, and (iii) agrees that the member will indemnify the Company in respect of any penalties, 
liabilities, claims, demands, losses and damages as a result of the member’s breach of warranty.
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PRESS METAL BERHAD 
(Company No. 153208-W)
Incorporated in Malaysia

I/We,                                                     (name of shareholder as per NRIC, in capital letters) 

NRIC No./ID No./Company No.              (new)                                                                             (old) 

of                                                              (full address)

being a member of PRESS METAL BERHAD, hereby appoint                                                 

(name of proxy as per NRIC, in capital letters) NRIC No.                    (new)                                               (old) 

of                                                              (full address)

or failing him/her                                                 (name of proxy as per NRIC, in capital letters)  

NRIC No.                    (new)                         (old) of    

                                                                             (full address) 

or failing him/her, the *Chairman of the Meeting as my/our proxy to vote for me/us on my/our behalf at the Thirty-First Annual General Meeting of 
the Company to be held at Topaz Ballroom, Level G, One World Hotel, First Avenue, Bandar Utama City Centre, 47800 Petaling Jaya, Selangor Darul 
Ehsan on Thursday, 15 June 2017 at 10.30 a.m. or at any adjournment thereof.

My/our proxy is to vote as indicated below.

RESOLUTIONS FOR AGAINST
1. Approval of Directors’ Fees for the financial year ended 31 December 2016 Ordinary Resolution 1
2. Approval of Directors’ Fees and benefits payable to the Directors up to an aggregate 

amount of RM357,000 for the financial year ending 31 December 2017
Ordinary Resolution 2

3. Re-election of Dato’ Wira (Dr.) Megat Abdul Rahman Bin Megat Ahmad as Director Ordinary Resolution 3
4. Re-election of Tan Heng Kui as Director Ordinary Resolution 4
5. Re-election of Loo Lean Hock as Director Ordinary Resolution 5
6. Re-election of Noor Alina Binti Mohamad Faiz as Director Ordinary Resolution 6
7. Re-appointment of KPMG PLT as Auditors of the Company Ordinary Resolution 7
8. Authority under Section 76 of the Companies Act 2016 for the Directors to allot and issue 

shares
Ordinary Resolution 8

9. Authority for Dato’ Wira (Dr.) Megat Abdul Rahman Bin Megat Ahmad to continue in office 
as Independent Non-Executive Chairman

Ordinary Resolution 9

10. Authority for Tan Heng Kui to continue in office as Independent Non-Executive Director Ordinary Resolution 10
11. Authority for Loo Lean Hock to continue in office as Independent Non-Executive Director Ordinary Resolution 11
12. Proposed Renewal of Shareholders’ Mandate for Recurrent Related Party Transactions of a 

Revenue or Trading Nature 
Ordinary Resolution 12

13. Proposed Renewal of Authority for the Company to Purchase its own Ordinary Shares Ordinary Resolution 13

(Please indicate with an “X” in the spaces provided on how you wish your vote to be cast.  If you do not do so, the proxy will vote or abstain from voting at his/
her discretion.)

    
          Signature/Common Seal  
    
Number of shares held :      
 
Date :     
      

Proxy Form

For appointment of two proxies, percentage of 
shareholdings to be represented by the proxies:

No. of shares Percentage

Proxy 1 %
Proxy 2 %

Total 100  %

CDS account number of holder



NOTES:

1. A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy or proxies to attend and vote in his stead. A proxy may but 
need not be a member of the Company. There shall be no restriction as to the qualification of the proxy. 

2. Where a member appoints two (2) or more proxies, the appointments shall be invalid unless he specifies the proportion of his shareholdings to be represented by 
each proxy. 

3. Where a member is an Exempt Authorised Nominee which holds ordinary shares in the Company for multiple beneficial owners in one securities account 
(“omnibus account”) as defined under the Securities Industry (Central Depositories) Act, 1991, there shall be no limit to the number of proxies which the Exempt 
Authorised Nominee may appoint in respect of each omnibus account it holds.

4. The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing under the hand of the appointor or of his attorney duly authorised in writing or, if the appointor is a 
corporation, either under its Common Seal or signed by an officer or attorney so authorised.

5. The instrument appointing a proxy or proxies and the power of attorney or other authority (if any) under which it is signed or a notarially certified copy of such 
power or authority, must be deposited at the Share Registrar’s office of the Company at Unit 32-01, Level 32, Tower A, Vertical Business Suite, Avenue 3, Bangsar 
South, No. 8, Jalan Kerinchi, 59200 Kuala Lumpur, Wilayah Persekutuan, not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for holding the meeting or adjourned 
meeting, otherwise the instrument of proxy shall not be treated as valid.

6. In respect of deposited securities, only members whose names appear on the Record of Depositors on 5 June 2017 (General Meeting Record of Depositors) shall 
be eligible to attend the meeting or appoint proxy(ies) to attend and/or vote on his behalf.

7. Pursuant to Paragraph 8.29A(1) of the Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad, all resolutions at the Thirty-First Annual General 
Meeting of the Company shall be put to vote by way of poll.

Personal Data Privacy:

By submitting an instrument appointing a proxy(ies) and /or representative(s), the member accepts and agrees to the personal data privacy terms set out in the Notice of 
Annual General Meeting dated 28 April 2017.

AFFIX
STAMP

The Share Registrar
PRESS METAL BERHAD 
(Company No. 153208-W)

Unit 32-01, Level 32, Tower A
Vertical Business Suite
Avenue 3, Bangsar South
No. 8, Jalan Kerinchi
59200 Kuala Lumpur
Malaysia

Fold This Flap For Sealing

1st Fold Here

Then Fold Here



Press Metal 
Group Directory

PRESS METAL BERHAD
(Company No. 153208-W)

Suite 61 & 62, Setia Avenue, No. 2, Jalan Setia Prima S U13/S, Setia Alam Seksyen U13
40170 Shah Alam, Selangor Darul Ehsan, Malaysia
Tel : +603 3362 2188 Fax : +603 3362 2000
Website : www.pressmetal.com 

MALAYSIA

PRESS METAL BINTULU SDN BHD
(Company No. 918822-X)
Lot 36, Block 1
Samalaju Industrial Park
Kemena Land District
97000 Samalaju
Sarawak, Malaysia
Tel  : +6086 297 011
Fax : +6086 297 190

PRESS METAL SARAWAK SDN BHD
(Company No.767704-M)
Lot 211 & 212, Block 293
Mukah Land District
KM38, Jalan Mukah-Balingian
96400 Mukah
Sarawak, Malaysia
Tel  : +6086 855 199 
Fax  : +6086 855 050  

PRESS METAL BERHAD 
(EXTRUSION DIVISION)
(Company No. 153208-W)
Lot 6464, Batu 5 ¾, 
Jalan Kapar, Sementa
42100 Klang
Selangor Darul Ehsan, Malaysia
Tel  : +603 3291 3188 
Fax  : +603 3291 3637

ANGKASA JASA SDN BHD
(Company No. 110854-M)
27, Jalan 3A
Kawasan MIEL Balakong
Taman Cheras Jaya
43200 Kajang
Selangor Darul Ehsan, Malaysia
Tel : +603 9075 2136   
Fax : +603 9075 2139
E-mail  : ajsb@angkasajasa.com.my
 

CHINA

PRESS METAL INTERNATIONAL LTD
No. 21, Qili Road (South)
Leping Town, Sanshui District
Foshan City
Guangdong Province, China
Postcode : 528137 
Tel : +86 757 8736 3333  
Fax : +86 757 8738 8818
Website : www.pressmetal.com.cn
E-mail : pmisales@pressmetal.com.cn

AUSTRALIA

PRESS METAL ALUMINIUM (AUSTRALIA) 
PTY LTD 
(ACN 085 370 010) 
Website  : www.pmaa.net.au

1012-1016 Canley Vale Road
Wetherill Park
New South Wales, 2164 Australia
Tel : +612 9756 5555  
Fax : +612 9756 5499
Email  : sales@pmaa.net.au

23 Frankston Gardens Drive
Carrum Downs
Victoria, 3201 Australia
Tel : +613 9776 9976 
Mobile : +61 0439 926 715
Email  : sales@pmaa.net.au

2/22 Eastern Service Road 
Stapylton 
Queensland, 4207 Australia 
Tel : +617 3382 6640  
Fax : +617 3382 6244 
Email  : sales@pmaa.net.au

NORTH AMERICA

PRESS METAL NORTH AMERICA INC
102 Mary Alice Park Road, Suite 602
Cumming, GA 30040
United States of America
Tel  : +678 4568 618  
Fax  : +866 5397 197
Website : www.pressmetalna.com
Email  : keith.burlingame@
   pressmetalna.com

UNITED KINGDOM

PRESS METAL UK LIMITED
(Company No. 3653082)
Beldray Road, Mount Pleasant, Bilston
West Midlands, WV14 7NH
United Kingdom
Tel  : +44 1902 498867 
Fax  : +44 1902 495567
Email : andrewc@
   pressmetalukltd.com




